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BEFORE THE PUNJAB STATE ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION,
CHANDIGARH

PETITION NO. oo iieeeeeeceeiriens Case NOwvcevrerann,

IN THE MATTER OF: Approval of the True up petition for FY 2017-18, Annual Performance
Review for the FY 2018-19 and ARR of FY 2019-20 under Section 62, 64 and 86 and other
applicable provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 read with Regulation-11, 81 & 63 of the
PSERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Generation, Transmission, Wheeling
and Retail Supply Tariffy Regulations, 2014 and other applicable relevant regulations
(including its amendments) and guidelines of the Punjab State Regulatory Commission for
the Electricity business of Punjab State Transmission Corporation Lid. and State Load

Dispatch Ceritre.

AND
IN THE MATTER OF: Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited
Regd.Office : PSEB Head Office, The Mall, Patiala -147001 This Documenis has been registeret
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AFFIDAVIT This doy of.. (-9 0 - 9018

I, Jatinder Tageja, son of Sh. Radhe Sham aged 42 residing at Patiala do hereb solemnly
affirm and state as follows:

I am the Chief Accounts Officer (Finance & Audit) of Punjab State Transmission Corporation
Limited, the petitioner in the above matter and am duly authorized by the Corporation o
make this affidavit on its behalf.

The statement made in Sections 1 o 6 of the petition are true to my knowledge and the
statement made in Sections 1 to 6 are based on the information collected from the
concerned offices of the PSTCL and believe them to be true.

There is no case pending in any court of law with regards to the subject matter of the

petition.
The Lomants of this Afficaviv A
document have been read over to -
the deponent He/She has accepted DEPONENT
*ound & Correct (Jatinder Tageja)

I, the deponent named above do hereby verify that the content of my above affidavit are {rue
to my knowledge and belief and nothing material has been concealed there from.

Verified at Patiala on the date of 27.11.2018.
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BEFORE THE PUNJAB STATE ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION, CHANDIGARH

Case No.___ of 2018

IN THE MATTER OF: Filing of the Petition for True-up for FY 2017-18, Annual
Performance Review for FY 2018-19 and approval of
revised ARR forecast and determination of Tariff for FY
2019-20 under Section 62, 64 and 86 of the Electricity Act,
2003 read with read with Regulation 11, 12, 61 and 63 of
PSERC (Terms and Conditions of Determination of
Generation, Transmission, Wheeling and Retail Supply
Tariff} Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time.

AND
INTHE MATTER OF  Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (hereinafter

referred as “PSTCL” or “the Petitioner”)

The Petitioner respectfully submits as under: -

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

The Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as
PSTCL or the Petitioner) is a transmission licensee for transmission of electricity in
the areas as notified by the Government of Punjab vide Notification No. 1/9/08-
EB(PR) 196 dated April 16, 2010. PSTCL is vested with the function of intra-State
transmission of electricity in the State of Punjab and the operation of State Load
Despatch Centre (SLDC). Further, in terms of Section 39 of the Act, the Government
of Punjab notified PSTCL as the State Transmission Utility (STU).
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1.2 Submission of True-up and Annual Performance Review Petition

The Hon'ble Punjab State Electricity Regulatory Commission (“the Commission” or
“PSERC”) has notified the PSERC (Terms and Conditions of Determination of
Generation, Transmission, Wheeling and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2014
(hereinafter referred to as “PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014") in exercise of powers
conferred on it by Section 61 read with Section 181(2) of the Electricity Act, 2003 (No.
36 of 2003) (herein after referred as “the Act”). Hon'ble Commission also notified
two (2) amendments in PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 on February 3, 2016 and on
August 8, 2018. The said Regulations are applicable to Generating Stations,
Transmission system, SLDC and Distribution system where tariff for generation and
transmission is not determined under Section 63 of the Electricity Act, 2003 through
transparent process of competitive bidding in accordance with the Guidelines issued

by the Central Government.

As per the Hon’ble Commission’s notification dated May 28, 2015, the effective date
of enforcement of these Regulations was April 1, 2017 and three-year Multi Year
Tariff (“MYT”) Control Period is from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20.

PSTCL submits that, in accordance with Regulation 9 and 10 of PSERC MYT
Regulations, 2014, it had filed Petition for approval of Capital Investment Plan
(Petition No. 44 of 2016) and Business Plan (Petition No. 45 of 2016) for the Control
Period from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 on May 30, 2016.

Further, PSTCL had filed the Petition for True-up for FY 2014-15, Review of FY 2016-
17 and approval of ARR and Transmission Tariff for MYT Control Period from FY
2017-18 to FY 2019-20 (Petition No. 89 of 2016) on November 30, 2016. The Hon’ble
Commission vide its Order dated October 23, 2017 had approved the True-up of FY
2014-15, True-up for FY 2015-16, Review of FY 2016-17 and Aggregate Revenue
Requirement (ARR) for MYT Control period FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 and Tariff for
FY 2017-18 for PSTCL; including Transmission Business and SLDC.
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Further, PSTCL had filed Petition (Petition No. 65 of 2017) for Annual Performance
Review (hereinafter referred as “APR") for FY 2017-18 and revised estimates of ARR
and Tariff for FY 2018-19 on November 30, 2017. Further, PSTCL had filed the
Petition (Petition No. 04 of 2018) for True-up of FY 2016-17 on February 9, 2018. The
Hon’ble Commission, vide its Order dated April 19, 2018, approved the True-up for
IY 2016-17, APR for FY 2017-18 and revised ARR and Tariff for FY 2018-19.

Further, Regulation 11 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:

“11. ANNUAL REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
11.1. The Applicant shall make an application for Annual Performance Review and

tariff resetting not less than 120 days before the close of each year of the control

period.

11.3. The Applicant shall publish its application filed for Anmual Performance
Review as required by Conduct of Business Regulations. The Applicant shall also
displny the application on its official website.

11.4. The Annual Performance Review shall include the details of actual capital
expenditure, details of income tax paid and actual operational and cost data fo enable
the Commission to monitor the implementation of its order including comparison of
actual performance with the approved forecasts (and reasons for deviations). In
addition, the Applicant shall also submit Annual Statement of its performance of
generation business (indicnting the cost data - plant-wise, and performance
parameters - unit-wise), transmission business or distribution business, as the case
may be, including a copy of its latest audited accounts.

11.5. The Applicant shall provide any other information, as may be asked for by the
Commission with a view to assess the reasons and extent of any varintion in the
performance from the approved forecast and the need for tariff resetting.

11.6. In the application, Applicant shall submit information for the purpose of
calculating expected tariff and expenditure along with information on financial and
operational performance for the previous year(s). The information for the previous
year(s) shall be based on audited accounts and in case audited accounts for the

previous year(s) are not available, audited accounts for the latest previous year shall

\
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be filed along with unaudited accounts (provisional accounts) for all the succeeding
years.

11.7. The scope of the Annunl Performance Review shall be a comparison of the
performance of the Applicant with the approved forecast of ARR along with the
performance targets specified by the Contmission.

11.8. The Commission shall review the application made under the preceding claises
based on the smme principles as approved in the MYT Order on original application
for determination of ARR and Tariff and upon completion of such review, either
approve the proposed modification(s) with such changes as it deems appropriate, or

reject the application for reasons to be recorded in writing.”

Also, Regulation 61 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:

“61. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW FILING
The Applicant shall file the Annual Performance Review on or before 30 November
in each year of the control period as per the details mentioned in regulation 11 for the

Commission s review and approval.”

Further, Regulation 12 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:

“12. TRUE UP
12.1. Truing up of the ARR of the previous year shall be carvied out along with the
Annual Performance Review and will be adjusted in the ARR of the next year of the

control period.

12.2. Truing up of uncontrollable itents and normative items shall be carried out at

the end of each year of the control period.
12.3. Truing up of controllable items would be done in accordance with regulation 8.

12.4. Truing-up exercise will be undertaken only when audited accounts for the

year(s) under consideration have been made available. The approved aggregate gain or
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loss for each business on account of controllable items will be subject to provisions of

regulation 30.
12.5, It case of any change in the approved amounts (positive or negntive) during the
Trueup exercise, the Conmmmission shall consider the approved carrying cost as a

separate iter of expense.

12.6. The Commssion may allow/recover the carrying cost for the trued up amount

at the interest rate mentioned in regulation 25.1;

Provided that no carrying cost shall be permitted for the period of delay in filing of
trie up on account of non submission of audited accounts due to the fault of the
utility: Provided that if the Commission determines an over recovery by the licensee
during the True-up, carrying cost for such trued up amount shall be recovered from

the Applicant.”

In line with the above provisions of regulations, PSTCL is filing the present Petition
for True-up of FY 2017-18, Annual Performance Review for FY 2018-19 and approval
of revised ARR estimates and determination of tariff for FY 2019-20.

1.3 Overall approach for filing Annual Performance Review

Regulation 12 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies that True-up will be

undertaken only when audited accounts for that respective year have been made

available.

Further, Regulation 11 of PSERC MYT Regulations specifies that Annual
Performance Review shall include the details of actual capital expenditure, details of
income tax paid and actual operational and cost data. Also, it is mentioned that the
information for the previous year(s) shall be based on audited accounts and in case
audited accounts for the previous year(s) are not available, audited accounts for the
latest previous year shall be filed along with unaudited accounts (provisional

accounts) for all the succeeding years.
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PSTCL submits that annual audited accounts for FY 2017-18 have been finalised.

In view of the above, PSTCL submits the present Petition on the basis of audited
accounts for FY 2017-18, actual values for first half for FY 2018-19, estimated values
for second half for FY 2018-19 and revised projections for FY 2019-20.

Further, PSTCL submits that submissions made in the present Petition is without

prejudice to contentions made in the pending Appeals before higher courts.

1.4 Contents of the Petition

The present Petition consists of following Chapters as outlined below:
Chapter 1 - Introduction (present Chapter)

Chapter 2 - True-up for FY 2017-18: In this Chapter, the Petitioner submits the ARR
based on the actual expenses and income as per the audited annual accounts for FY
2017-18. In this Chapter, the Petitioner has also presented its submissions regarding

certain critical aspects influencing the true-up of expenses for FY 2017-18.

Chapter 3 - Annual Performance Review for FY 2018-19 and revised ARR for FY
2019-20: In this Chapter, the Petitioner has submitted the APR for FY 2018-19 based
on actual values for first half and estimated values for second half of the year. Also,
the revised ARR for FY 2019-20 has been projected based on Annual Performance
Review for FY 2018-19. In this Chapter, the Petitioner has also presented its
submissions regarding certain critical aspects inﬂuencinglthe determination of ARR
for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

Chapter 4 - Proposed Tariff for FY 2019-20: In this Chapter, the Petitioner submits
the proposed Tariff for Transmission Business and SLDC for FY 2019-20 considering
the revised ARR for FY 2019-20 and Annual Performance Review for FY 2018-19.
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Chapter 5 ~ Prayers: This Chapter details the prayers made by PSTCL in the present
Petition.

Chapter 6 - Directives: This Chapter includes the status and compliance ofdirectives

issued by the Hon'ble Commission in the past Tariff Orders.
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2 TRUE UP ARR FOR FY 2017-18

2.1 Background

The Hon'ble Commission in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 approved the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) of Rs. 1234.87 Crore, after adjustment of
carrying cost, for PSTCL for FY 2017-18. Out of this, the Net ARR of Rs. 17.88 Crore
was approved for SLDC for FY 2017-18.

Further, Hon'ble Commission vide Order dated April 19, 2018, has approved the
revised Net ARR of Rs. 1216.99 Crore for Transmission Business and Rs. 16.01 Crore
for SLDC and approved surplus of Rs. 1.87 Crore for FY 2017-18.

Regulation 12 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time,

specifies as under:

“I2. TRUE UP

12.1. Truing up of the ARR of the previous year shall be carried out along with the
Arnnual Performance Review and will be adjusted in the ARR of the next year of the
control period.

12.2. Truing up of uncontrollable items and normative items shall be carried out at
the end of each year of the control period.

12.3. Truing up of controllable items would be done in accordance with regulation 8.
12.4. Truing-up exercise will be undertaken only when audited accounts for the
year(s) under consideration have been made available. The approved aggregate gain
or loss for each business on account of controllable items will be subject to
provisions of regulation 30.

12.5. In case of any change in the approved amounts (positive or negative) during the
Trueup exercise, the Commission shall consider the approved carrying cost as a
separale item of expense.

12.6. The Commission may allow/recover the carrying cost for the trued up amount af
the interest rate mentioned in regulation 25.1:

Provided that no carrying cost shall be permitied for the period of delay in filing of
true up on account of non submission of audited accounts due to the fault of the
utility:

Provided that if the Commission determines an over recovery by the licensee during
the True-up, carrying cost for such trued up amount shall be recovered from the
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Applicant.”

In the present Petition, the Petitioner has submitted the True-up for FY 2017-18
based on the audited accounts for FY 2017-18. The Petitioner also submits its
rationale for the key heads of expenditure, which critically impact its overall
financial health. This Chapter further describes the various components of ARR as

well as the performance of PSTCL in FY 2017-18 for transmission and SLDC

business.

2.2 Description of the Transmission System

The details of the transmission system of PSTCL as on April 1, 2017 to March 31,
2018 are tabulated below:

Table 1: Transmission System of PSTCL during FY 2017-18

Transmission Lines (Circuit-lkkms)
1 400 kV 1,599.75 - - 1,599.75
2 220 kV 6,740.60 7215 3114 6,781.61
3 132 3,125.18 23.92 13.46 3,135.64
Total 11,465.53 96.07 44.60 11,516.99
Substations (Nos.}
1 400 kV 5 - - 5
2 220kV 94 2 - 96
3 132 kV 69 - - 69
Total 168 2 - 170
Transmission Substation Bays {(Nos.)
1 400 kV 60 - - 60
2 220V 628 22 - 650
3 132 kV 513 1 5 509
4 66 KV 1,139 15 - 1,154
5 33kV 12 - - 12
Total 2,352 38 5 2,385
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| Substation 33566.17 1388.00 - 34954.17
Capacity

2.3 Transmission System Availability

The Petitioner submits that the overall Transmission System Availability for FY
2017-18, as certified by Chief Engineer SLDC,(Copy attached as per Annexure - I)
was 99.97%. The following table provides the transmission system availability for

each month of FY 2017-18:
for FY 2017-18

1 [Apr17 | " 09.97%
2 May-17 99.94%
3 Jun-17 99.97%
4 Jul-17 99.99%
5 Aug-17 99.98%
6 Sep-17 99.99%
7 Oct-17 99.99%
8 Nov-17 99.96%
9 Dec-17 99,99%
10 Jan-18 99.94%
11 Eeb-18 99.98%
12 Mar-18 99.99%
13 Grand Total 99.97%

The incentive on account of achievement of Transmission System Availability is

discussed subsequently in this Chapter.
24 Transmission Losses

The Hon'ble Commission, in the APR for FY 2017-18, had stated that although
PSTCL had completed Intra-State Boundary metering cum Transmission Level

Energy Scheme, the data was yet to be stabilized. The Hon’ble Commission in APR
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for 2017-18, had provisionally retained the Transmission Loss level for FY 2017-18 at
2.50%, as approved in the Tariff Order for FY 2017-18. In the Tariff Order for FY
2017-18, the Hon'ble Commission had stated that it would revisit the Transmission

Losses for FY 2017-18 during review/true-up on the basis of stabilized transmission

loss data for full year.

Further, PSTCL submits that in reference to the meeting held by Hon'ble
Commission on September 18, 2018, PSTCL has submitted the detailed justification
of Transmission Losses vide Memo. No. 2455/FA/Comml.-23/Vol-VI, dated

QOctober 5, 2018,

Further, PSTCL submits that the stabilised data for transmission loss is available

from April 2017 toMarch 2018 as shown in the Table below:

Table 3: Actual Transmission Loss for FY 2017-18

S EnergyTnput | Energysentto | Transmssion Loss
No. (MWh) | Distribution - (%) oo
s e network (MW e e
1 Apr-17 3178328 3072798 3.32%
2 May-17 4582304 4448238 2,93%
3 Jun-17 4981671 4851319 2.62%
4 Jul-17 6603951 6471100 2.01%
5 Aug-17 6178639 5966840 3.43%
6 Sep-17 5336484 5127861 3.91%
7 Oct-17 3959420 3872626 2.19%
8 Nov-17 2660262 2527512 4.99%
9 Dec-17 2918229 2800907 4.02%
10 Jan-18 2928285 2832306 3.28%
11 Feb-18 2695787 2627711 2.53%
12 Mar-18 3331106 3216383 3.44%
Total 49354466 47815601 3.12%
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Accordingly, transmission loss for FY 2017-18 works out to 3.12%. Therefore, the
Petitioner prays to Hon’ble Commission to approve the transmission loss of 3.12%
for FY 2017-18.

2.5 O&M Expenses

Regulation 26 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, and its subsequent first amendment
specifies as under:
“26. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) EXPENSES)
26.1. The O&M expenses for the nth year of the Control Period shall be approved
based on the formula shown below:
O&Mn = (R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn) x (1-Xn)
Where,

(iii) Xn is an efficiency factor for nth year
The value of Xn shall be determined by the Commiission in its first MYT order for the
Control Period.”

In view of above said Regulation, PSTCIL makes its submission of Employee Costs,
R&M and A&G Expenses as under:

2.5.1 Employee Costs

In the MYT Petition for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, PSTCL claimed Employee Costs of
Rs. 530.43 Crore for Transmission business and Rs: 7.59 Crore for SLDC for FY 2017-
18. As against this, the Hon'ble Commission had approved employee costs of Rs.
430.58 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 6.75 Crore for SLDC in for FY 2017-18.

In the APR for FY 2017-18, the Petitioner submitted revised estimates for employee
cost as Rs. 497.91 Crore for Transmission business and Rs. 7.57 Crore for SLDC
business. As against this, the Hon'ble Commission has approved the employee costs
of Rs. 430.58 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 6.75 Crore for SLDC for FY 2017-18.
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Actual Employee Costs
The Petitioner submits the actual Employee Costs to the Hon'ble Commission for
consideration. The details of Employee Costs as per Audited Accounts for FY 2017-

18 are shown in the following table:

Table 4: Employee Costs for FY 2017-18 as per Audited Accounts (Rs. Crore}

77.50 2.50 80.00

1 Salaries
2 Interim relief/ Wage Revision - - -
3 Overtime 4.66 - . 4.66
4 Dearness Allowance 94.81 3.07 97.88
5 Other Allowances 16.13 0.50 16.63
6 Bonus 0.06 0.00 0.06
Total (A) 193.16 | 6.07| 199.23
7 Staff Welfare Expenses
I Electricity Concession to Employees 1.68 - 1.68
I | Other Staff Welfare Expenses (Uniforms, etc.) (.08 0.00 0.08
Total (B) 176 | 0.00 1.76
8 Medical Reimbursement 1.00 0.02 1.03
9 LTC Expenses 0.14 0.03 0.17
10 | Payment under Workmen Compensation Act . - -
Total (C) 114 0.05 1.19
11 | Manpower Outsourcing cost (D) 23.71 0.25 23.96
12 | Less:
Employee costs capitalized 39.08 - 39.08
Total (E) 39.08 - 39.08
13 Net Total (F=A+B+C+D-E) 180.69 6.38 187.06
14 | Terminal benefits (G) 283.89 0.13 284.01
15 | Grand Total (F+G) 464.57 6.50 471.08

The Petitioner has considered the Terminal benefits for the employees of erstwhile
PSEB covered under Pension as Rs. 279.45 Crore being 11.36% of the total amount as
intimated by PSPCL. It is submitted that the employees recruited by PSTCL are
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covered under New Pension Scheme (NPS) and are entitled to gratuity under the
provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the leave salary under the

Leave Rules of the Corporation.

PSTCL has considered the Terminal benefits for employees of erstwhile PSEB and
the terminal liabilities towards NIS is considered based on actual pay-out made.

The terminal benefits considered by PSTCL is as shown in the following Table:

Table 5: Terminal Benefits for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Terminal Benefits for the Employees of erstwhile PSEB 27945

Terminal Benefits towards NPS for new employees recruited by

2 415
PSTCL

3 Terminal Benefits towards Gratuity and Leave encashment for %

new employees recruited by PSTCL

Miscellaneous -PT Inspection fees, solatium, contribution to
CPF, PF, LWF, elc.

5 Grand Total 284.01

0.42

* Further, PSTCL submits that, as directed by the Hon’ble Commission, it has not
considered the Terminal Benefits of Rs. 1.10 Crore on account of the provision for
gratuity and leave encashment for employees recruited by PSTCL in the present
Petition. However, PSTCL will claim such expenses on Pay as you go basis, as and

when such expenses will occur, as directed by the Hon’ble Commission.

Hon'ble Commission is not allowing Progressive funding to PSTCL on the
ground that PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 provides for payment of terminal
liabilities on the principle of Pay as you go basis. The Petitioner has not
considered any progressive funding of terminal benefits in view of pending

appeal before Hon’ble Supreme Court.

PSTCL further submits that Rs. 0.01 Crore, Miscellaneous losses and write offs on
account of compensation paid to staff under The Employee Compensation Act, 1923,
is included in the Actual Employee Cost submitted by the PSTCL in the above Table.
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The details of head-wise actual Employee cost for Transmission and SLDC have

been provided in Format F1.

Computation of Normative Employee Cost
First Amendment of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 dated February 3, 2016 specifies
as under:
“Clause 26.1 of regulation 26 shall be substituted as under:
26.1. The O&M expenses for the nth year of the Control Period shall be approved
based on the formula shotwn below:
O&Mn = (R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn) x (1-Xn)
Where,

(it) EMPn = (EMPn-1)*(INDEX n/INDEX n-1)

o INDEXn - Inflation Factor to be used for indexing the Employee Cost.

e This will be a combination of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and the
Wholesale Price Index (WPI) of nth year and shall be calculated as under:-

INDEXn = 0.50*"CPIn + 0.50*WPIn

‘WPIn" means the average rate (on monthly basis) of Wholesale Price Index (all

commodities) over the year for the nth year.

‘CPIn" means the average rate (on monthly basis) of Consumer Price Index

(Industrial workers) over the year for the nth year.

Note 4: Terminal Liabilities such as death-cum-retirement gratuity, pension,
commuted pension, leave encashment, LTC, medical reimbursement including fixed
medical allowance in respect of pensioners will be approved as per the actuals paid
by the Applicant.

Note 5: O&M expenses made on account of extraordinary situations (if any) shall
be submitted to Conumission for its approval. Such expenses shall be filed separately
and will not be subjected to provisions of Regulation 30. The approved amount by
the Commission shall be trued up in the Annual Performance Review.

Note 6: Exceptional increase in employee cost on account of pay revision etc. will be

considered separately by the Connmission.
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Note 7: Any expenditure on account of license fee, initial or remewal, fee for
determination of tariff and audit fee shall be allowed on actual basis, over and above

the A&G expenses approved by the Commission.

i’

In view of the above-mentioned Regulation, the Petitioner has considered the
Terminal benefits of Rs. 284.01 Crore for FY 2017-18 based on audited accounts.

It may be noted that the Hon'ble Commission, in APR of FY 2017-18, has considered
the normative Employee Cost at the same level as approved in the MYT Order dated
October 23, 2017, which was based on the other employee cost allowed for FY 2015-
16.

Further, Regulation 26.1 of first amendment of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014

specifiesas under:
“(ii) EMPn = (EMPy.1)"(INDEX n/INDEX y.1)"

wherein, EMPn is defined as Employee Cost of the Applicant for the nth year.
Therefore, as per PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, EMPn1 is the Employee Cost for
previous year. Therefore, as per first amendment of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014,
the other Employee Cost in FY 2016-17 has been taken as the base for computing
normative Employee Cost for FY 2017-18. PSERC MYT Regulations 2014, as
amended from time to time, do not specify whether the base expenses to be
considered should be gross or net. The Hon’ble Commission may appreciate that the
normative Employee expenses to be permitted should be at gross level only, as the
expense capitalisation depends on capital projects undertaken and staff or

employees of PSTCL dedicated to such project execution.

For example, in case the normative Employee expenses are allowed on a net of
capitalization taking a base year but actual capitalisation of that respective year is
different from that of base year, then the normative allowance would be
lower/higher because these may not be exactly same as of the current year. In some

years, the capitalization may be veryhigh due to several capital projects being taken
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up by the licensee whereas; in some years it may be negligible due to very less
capital projects taken up. The expense capitalised, therefore, is a factor which varies
unpredictably and normative Employee expense should be provided at gross level
only. The Petitioner respectfully submits that the actual expense capitalized can only

be considered in ARR.

In view of the above, the Petitioner has considered Other Employee Cost of Rs.
215.90Crore for FY 2016-17 for Transmission Business as base expenses after adding
capitalised employee costs of Rs. 43.43 Crore, as per audited accounts. Since, no
employee cost has been capitalised for SLDC for FY 2016-17, the Petitioner has
considered the Other employee cost of Rs. 6.42 Crore for FY 2016-17 for SLDC as

base expenses as per audited accounts.

The Petitioner has computed the Gross Other employee costs for FY 2017-18 as

shown in the following table:

Table 6: Computatio

1 | Net Other Employee Cost for FY 2016-17 172.47 6.42 1 178.89

2 | Add: Employee Costs capitalised in FY 2016-17 43.43 - 4343

3 1G7ross Other Employee Costs allowed for FY 2016- 21590 6.42 | 22232

4 CPLWPI (50:50) Increase of FY 2017-18 over FY 3.03% | 3.03% | 3.03%
2016-17

5 | Gross Other Employee Cost for FY 2017-18 222.45 6.61 | 229.06

Further, PSTCL submits that 362 new employees were recruited in FY 2017-18 at
various designations having different pay scales. The impact of recruitment of these
new employees is Rs. 4.91 Crore. PSTCL has considered the impact of addition of

new employees in Transmission Business for computing Normative Employee

Costs,
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Accordingly, the normative employee costs for FY 2017-18 are computed as shown

in the following table:

Table 7: Normative Employee Cost for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Gross Other Employee Cost 222.45 6.61 229.06
2 Terminal Benefits 283.89 0.13 284.01
3 Impact of new recruitments 491 - 4.91
4 Arrears of Pay Revision 0.04 - 0.04
5 Less: Employee Expenses capitalised 39.08 - 39.08
6 Total Employee Costs 472.20 6.74 478.94

The Petitioner submits that the normative Employee Cost for FY 2017-18, is higher
than actual audited Employee Cost for FY 2017-18, as seen from the Tables above.
Although PSTCL is eligible for higher Employee Cost as per PSERC MYT
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time, PSTCL claims the actual Employee
Costs for FY 2017-18 as shown in the Table below:

Table 8: Employee Costs for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

Terminal Benefits 283.89 0.13 284.01
Other Employee Costs 180.69 6.38 187.06
Total Employee Costs 464.57 6.50 471.08

The Petitioner requests Hon'ble Commission to allow actual employee cost on the

basis of audited annual accounts, as shown in the Table above.

2.6 R&M and A&G Expenses-

In the MYT Petition for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, PSTCL claimed R&M and A&G
Expenses of Rs. 58.93 Crore for Transmission business and Rs. 2.60 Crore for SLDC
for FY 2017-18. As against this, the Honble Commission had provisionally approved
R&M and A&G expenses of Rs. 57.30 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.89 Crore for
SLDC in the MYT Order for FY 2017-18.
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In the APR for FY 2017-18, the Petitioner submitted revised estimates for R&M and
A&G expenses as Rs. 58.83 Crore for Transmission business and Rs. 1.85 Crore for
SLDC business. As against this, the Hon'ble Commission had approved R&M and
A&G expenses of Rs. 57.30 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.89 Crore for SLDC in

APR for FY 2017-18.

The actual R&M and A&G expenses incurred, as per the audited annual accounts for

FY 2017-18 are provided as below:

Table 9: R&M and A&G Expenses for FY 2017-18 (Audited) (R

T k&M E)héﬂenses 22.26 0.55 2281
2 A&G Expenses 2717 0.80 27.97
R&M and A&G Expenses 49.43 1.35 50.78

The details of head-wise R&M and A&G Expenses for FY 2017-18 for Transmission
and SLDC have been provided in Format F4 and F5.

PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies the R&M and A&G expenses on normative
basis. Accordingly, on the basis of actual Capitalisation and Capital Expenditure for
FY 2017-18 as per audited accounts, PSTCL has reworked the Normative R&M and
A&G Expenses for FY 2017-18 as per Regulation 26 of PSERC MYT Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time.Accordingly, the K-factor has been computed
for FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19 as shown in the following Table:

Table 10 Comp tation of K for FY 2017-18

Particulars 0 i . Transmission - |- SSLDC
K-factor | 061% 731%
WPI Index 2.92% 2.92%
Escalated K-factor 0.63% 7.52%
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Further, PSTCL submits that assets funded through Contributory Works of Rs. 45.55
Crore were added in fixed assets in FY 2017-18. However, the assets, including the
assets funded through Contributory Works, have to be operated and maintained by
PSTCL. Therefore, PSTCL has considered the impact of these assets in Gross Fixed
Assets for FY 2017-18 for computing R&M and A&G Expenses. Accordingly, PSTCL
has submitted combined Normative R&M and A&G expenses for Transmission and

SLDC Business as under:

Table 11: Nmmatwe R&M and A&G Expenses for FY 201’7~18 (Rs Crare)

liro :'.Partlculars _' e Sl Transnussmn SLDC

| Transmission Business
1 | Opening GFA 8881.83 18.47
2 | Closing GFA 9444.25 18.57
3 | Average GFA 9163.04 18.52
4 | Escalated K-factor 0.63% 7.52%
5 R&M and A&G Expenses 57.53 1.39
6 | Add: Audit Fee 0.26 -
7 | Add: Licence Fee and ARR Fee 0.50 -
8 | Grand Total 58.29 1.39

The Petitioner requests Hon'ble Commission to allow actual R&M and A&G
Expenses of Rs. 49.43 Crore for Transmission Business and Rs. 1.35 Crore for

SLDC, on the basis of audited annual accounts.
2.7 Investment and Capital Expenditure

The Petitioner submits that Opening Capital Work in Progress for FY 2017-18 as per
audited accounts is Rs. 665.20 Crore. The Petitioner had made Investment of
Rs.354.10 Crore during FY 2017-18 and; out of thisan amount of Rs. 564.41 Crore has
been capitalised and transferred to Fixed Assets. The remaining investment was

carried over as Capital Work in Progress to the next year.

Further, PSTCL submits that in FY 2017-18, the assets funded through Contributory
Works of Rs. 45.55 Crore were added to fixed assets.The Capital Expenditure of Rs.
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22.77 Crore for these assets was funded through Contributory Works in FY 2017-18
and remaining Capital Expenditure for these assets, i.e., Rs. 22.78 Crore, was funded
through Contributory Worksover past years. However, PSTCL had inadvertently
claimed the funding of Capital Expenditure of Rs. 22.78 Crore for these assets

through Loans in previous years, which the Hon’ble Commission had disallowed.

PSTCL submits that Hon'ble Commission has already disallowed funding of Capital
Expenditure of Rs. 249.20 Crore (detailed break-up provided in this Section
subsequently) through loans. After excluding funding of Assets funded through
contributory works amounting to Rs. 22.78 Crore inadvertently claimed by PSTCL
through loans in previous years, the revised disallowances on funding of Capital
Expenditure through such Joansby Hon'ble Commission works out to Rs. 226.42
Crore (Rs. 249.20 Crore - Rs. 22.78 Crore).

Further, since these assets funded through Contributory Works of Rs. 45.55 Crore
were Capitalised in FY 2017-18, PSTCL has excluded the Depreciation on these
assets funded through Contributory Works in FY 2017-18.

Further, PSTCL submits that Capital Expenditure to the extent of Rs. 22.77 Crore on
the assets funded through Contributory Work in FY 2017-18 has not been considered
for funding through Equity or Loans in FY 2017-18.

PSTCL further submits that Capital Expenditure of Rs. 25.86 Crore for Procurement
of Emergency Restoration System (ERS) was incurred in FY 2017-18. However, this
Capital Expenditure during 2017-18 on this work was Capitalised directly as there

was no construction activity involved and,therefore, was not routed through Capital

Expenditure.

The details for Capital Investment for Transmission and SLDC are shown in the

following table:

Table 12: Capital Investment for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)
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1| Opening Capital work in progress 660.78 442 | 665.20
5 | Add: Addition of Capital Expenditure during 352.51% 1.59 | 354.10%
the year
Less: Transferred to fixed assets during the year 564.33 0.08 | 564.41
Closing Capital Works in progress 448.96 593 | 454.89

*The Capital Expenditure of Rs. 351.01 Crore during FY 2017-18, as mentioned in the
Audited Accounts includes the Capital Expenditure of Rs. 22.77 Crore on account of
Contributory Works carried out in FY 2017-18 and does not include the Capital
Expenditure of Rs. 25.86 Crore for Procurement of ERS (as mentioned in earlier
paragraphs). However, for the purpose of this True-up for FY 2017-18, PSTCL has
not considered the Capital Expenditure for Contributory Works carried out in FY
2017-18. Further, PSTCL has considered Capital Expenditure for Procurement of
Emergency Restoration System (ERS), which was incurred in FY 2017-18 for the

purpose of this True-up.
2.8 Funding of Capital Expenditure

The Petitioner submits that during FY 2017-18, it has incurred the Capital
Expenditure of Rs. 354.10 Crore, excluding Capital Expenditure of Rs. 22.77 Crore
for Contributory Works.As per the methodology adopted by Hon'ble Commission
in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 and Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018,
PSTCL undertook funding of 30% of this Capital Expenditure, i.e., Rs. 106.23 Crore,
through equity for FY 2017-18. The remaining Capital Expenditure of Rs. 247.87
Crore in FY 2017-18 was funded by availing loans from Banks/Financial Institutions.

2.9 Depreciation

Regulation 21 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, as amended on February 3, 2016
and August 8, 2018, specifies as under:

“21. DEPRECIATION
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For the purpose of tariff, depreciation shall be computed in the following manner:

21.1. The value base for the purpose of depreciation shall be the capital cost of the assets
admitted by the Commission:

Provided further that Govt. grants and consusner contribution shall also ke recognized as
defined under Indian Accounting Standard 20 (IND AS 20) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs

Provided that land other than the land held under lease and the land for reservoir in case of
hydro generating station shall not be a depreciable asset and its cost shall be excluded from
the capital cost while conputing depreciable value of the asset;

Provided further that depreciation shall be calculated after deduction of consumer
contributions, capital subsidies/ Government grants.

Provided further that Goot. grants and consumer contribution shall also be recognized as
defined under Indian Accounting Standard 20 (IND AS 20) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

21.2. The cost of the asset shall include additional capitalization.

21.3. The cost shall include foreign currency funding converted to equivalent rupees at the
exchange rate prevalent on the date when foreign currency shall actually be availed but not
later than the date of commercial operation.

21.4. Deprecintion for generation and transmission assets shall be calculated annually as per
straight line method over the useful life of the asset at the rate of depreciation specified by the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission from time to time.

21.5. Depreciation for distribution assets and other assets not specified by CERC shall be at
the rates notified by the Commission:

Provided that the total depreciation during the Iife of the asset shall not exceed 90% of the
original cost;

Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 31st March of the year closing after a
period of 12 years from date of commercial operation/ put in use of the asset shall be spread
owver the balance useful life of the assets;

Provided further that in case of hydro generating stations, the salvage value shall be as
provided in the agreement signed by the developers with the State Government for creation of
the site.

21.6. Depreciation shall be chargeable from the first year of commercial operationfasset is put
in use. In case of commercial operation of the asset/put in use of asset for part of the year,

depreciation shall be charged on pro rata basis.”
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Hon'ble Commission in MYT Order for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 approved the
Depreciation of Rs. 279.94 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.17 Crore for SLDC for
FY 2017-18. Further, the Petitioner, in APR of FY 2017-18, revised the projected
depreciation charges as Rs. 324.45 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.29 Crore for
SLDC. As against this, Hon’ble Commission approved the depreciation charges of
Rs. 279.94 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.17 Crore for SLDC in APR forFY 2017-
18.

Further, PSTCL has not considered any Depreciation on account of assets funded
through Contributory Works in FY 2017-18.

Accordingly, for the purpose of True-up of FY 2017-18, the Petitioner submits the
details of depreciation as per the annual audited accounts for FY 2017-18 as shown

in the Table below:

Table 13:

1 Depreciation 267.89 0.94 268.84

The Petitioner requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Depreciation as per
the Table above,based on the audited accounts for FY 2017-18.

2.10 Interest Charges

Regulation 24 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, specifies as under:

“24. INTEREST ON LOAN CAPITAL

24.1. For existing loan capital, interest and finance charges on loan capital shall be
computed on the outstanding loans, duly taking into account the actual rate of
interest and the schedule of repayment as per the terms and conditions of relevant
agreements. The rate of interest shall be the actual rate of interest paid/payable (other
than working capital loans) on loans by the licensee or the State Bank of India
Advance Rate as on April 1 of the relevant year, whichever is less.

24.2. Interest and finance charges on the actual loan capital for new investments shall

be computed on the loans, duly taking info account the actual rate of interest and the
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schedule of repaynent as per the terms and conditions of relevant ngreements. The
rate of inferest shall be the actual rate of interest paid/payable (other than working
capital loans) on loans by the licensee or the State Bank of India Advance Rate as on
April 1 of the relevant year, whichever is less.

24.3. The repayment for each year of the tariff period shall be deemed to be equal to the
depreciation allowed for the corresponding year. In case of de-capitalisation of assets,
the repayment shall be adjusted by taking info account cumulative depreciation made
to the extent of de-capitalisation.

24.4. The Commission shall allow obligntory faxes on interest, finance charges
(including guarantee fee payable to the Government) and any exchange rate
difference arising from foreign currency borrowings, as finance cost.

24.5. The interest on excess equity treated as loan shall be serviced at the weighted

average interest rate of actual loan taken from the lenders.”

Hon’ble Commission in MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 has approved the
Interest Charges of Rs. 358.80 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.13 Crore for SLDC
for FY 2017-18. Further, the Petitioner, in APR of FY 2017-18, revised the projected
Interest Charges as Rs. 384.75 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.10 Crore for SLDC.
As against this, the Hon’ble Commission in APR for FY 2017-18 has approved the
Interest Charges of Rs. 358.80 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 1.13 Crore for SLDC

for FY 2017-18. '

PSTCL submits that it had inadvertently claimed funding of Assets funded through
contributory works of Rs.22.78 Crore through loans, which have already been
disallowed by the Hon'ble Commission in previous Orders. Hon'ble Commission
had disallowed such claims of PSTCL to the extent of Rs. 249.20 Crore. However,
since PSTCL had claimed funding of Assets funded through Contributory Works of
Rs.22.78 Crore through such loans, PSTCL has revised the total disallowances on
account of funding of capital expenditure through such loans as Rs. 226.42 Crore
(Rs. 249.20 Crore - Rs. 22.78 Crore). These disallowances have been detailed in

subsequent paragraphs.
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In the Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, the Hon’ble Commission has disallowed the
interest charges on loans to the extent of Rs. 50 Crore for Transmission Business and
Rs. 0.75 Crore for SLDCin True up of FY 2016-17, stating that the loans were not of
the nature of long-term loans.Likewise, in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017,
Hon'ble Commission had disallowed such loans of Rs. 67.74 Crore from Bank of
India and Rs. 60.00 Crore from State Bank of Patiala during True up of FY 2014-15
and Rs. 70.71 Crore from Bank of India in True Up of FY 2015-16. This has led to
total disallowance of Loans of Rs. 249.20 Crore for PSTCL. However, as mentioned
in above paragraph, PSTCL had inadvertently claimed funding of Assets funded
through contributory works of Rs. 22.78 Crore through such loans. Therefore,
revised disallowances work out as Rs. 226.42 Crore (Rs. 249.20 Crore - Rs. 22.78
Crore).

On one hand, Hon’ble Commission has disallowed such loans, while on the other
hand, Hon'ble Commission has also not considered any equity infusionfor funding
of such capital expenditure. Therefore, this approach adopted by Hon'ble
Commission is not prudent as funding of Capital Expenditure has to be allowed
either by loan or equity. For the purpose of the true-up for FY 2017-18, PSTCL has
considered such loans (adjusted for the impact of addition of assets funded through
Contributory works as explained above), which were disallowed by Hon'ble

Commission, in opening balance of loan for FY 2017-18.

For the purpose of True up for FY 2017-18, the Petitioner has considered the Interest
Charges based on Audited Accounts and actual loan taken against the investment
done during FY 2017-18. The source wise long-term loan outstanding for PSTCL for
FY 2017-18 is shown in the following table:

Table 14: Source wise Loan outstanding for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 LIC 33.97 - 11.13

2 REC 2,927.53 198.82 234.94 2,891.41
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3 5BOP 44.00 - 20.78 23.22
4 | NABARD 197.58 17.03 3.22 211.39
5 | PSPCL 503.16 - 495.57 7.59
6 PFC -2 - 49557 - 493 57
7 GPF 131.74 - 21.96 109.78
8 Bank of India 165.68* - - 165.68
9 PFC-1 61.06 30.78 91.84
10 Loan for SLDC 6.70 1.24 0.32 7.62
11| porpd joan for 4,071.42 74344 | 799.63 4,015.23

“The Opening Balance of Bank of India Loan (which was previously disallowed by the
Hon'ble Commission) has been adjust by subtracting Rs. 22.78 Crore on account of assets
Junded through Contributory Works, which was inadvertently claimed through this Loan by
PSTCL. Revised Opening Balance of Bank of India Loan works out to Rs. 165.68 Crore (Rs.
188.46 Crore-Rs. 22.78 Crore)

The Petitioner submits that it has incurred the Interest Charges as given in the table

below:

Table 15: Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2017-18 (Audited) (Rs. Crore)

| Interest on Loans:

1 | Life Insurance Corporation 1.95 - 1.95
2 Rural Electrification Corporation 310.11 0.87 310.93
3 | SBOP 3.65 - 3.65
4 | NABARD 21.09 - 21.09
5 | Loan from PSPCL 52.62 - 52.62
6 | Power Finance Corporation -2 0.53 - 0.53
7 | General Provident Fund 9.46 - 9.46
8 | Bank of India 18.20 - 18.20
9 | Power Finance Corporation-1 8.87 - 8.87
Sub-total 426.48 | 082 | 427.30

10 | Less: Interest capitalized 39.76 - 39.76
11 | Add: Miscellaneous interest/finance charges 0.38 - 0.38
12 | Add: Guarantee Charges 5.00 - 5.00
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13 | Net Total 392.11| 0.82| 392,93

As regards Loan from PSPCL and PFC-2, PSTCL vide Memo No. 817 dated March
20, 2018, sought the Hon'ble Commission’s approval for swapping of loan from
PSPCL to PFC. Hon’'ble Commission, vide its letter dated March 27, 2018, stated that
it is the responsibility of Utility to select the most viable sources of seeking debt
which are in the interest of Utility and also of the Consumers. Accordingly, Hon’'ble
Commission allowed PSTCL to take necessary action at its end accordingly. In view
of afore-mentioned, PSTCL submits that it has carried out the refinancing of PSPCL
Loan of Rs. 495.57 Croreby availing loan from PFC in FY 2017-18. This refinancing
was done to avail loan at cheaper interest rate from PFC as compared to PSPCL. The

benefit of this refinancing is explained in the ensuing paragraph.

The Loan from PSPCL had the moratorium period upto FY 2020-21 and repayment
period of five (5) years afterwards (FY 2021-22 to FY 2025-26). The rate of interest
applicable per annum on PSPCL Loan was PNB Base Rate plus 1.50% which works
out to 10.75% per annum as on date (current PNB Base rate is 9.25%). Considering
the remaining moratorium period of three (3) years (from FY 2018-19 to FY 2020-21)
and repayment period of five years afterwards, total cash out flow for complete
repayment of loan and associated interest at the end of FY 2025-26 would have been
Rs. 788.58 Crore in case the PSPCL loan was continued. .
On the other hand, PFC also has moratorium period upto FY 2020-21 and repayment
period of five (5) years afterwards (FY 2021-22 to FY 2025-26). However, the rate on
interest per annum in case of PFC loan is 9.70% (as compared to 10.75% per annum
in case of PSPCL loan). Therefore, considering the moratorium period of three years
(FY 2018-19 to FY 2020-21) and repayment period of five (5) years afterwards, total
cash outflow for repayment of PFC Loan including associated interest at the end of
FY 2025-26 works out to be Rs. 759.96 Crore. Therefore, PSTCL. projects the savings
of Rs. 28.62 Crore (Rs. 788.58 Crore - Rs. 759.56 Crore) as a result of refinancing of
Loan from PSPCL to PFC.
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The Petitioner prays the Hon'ble Commission to approve the Interest Charges Rs.
392.11Crore for Transmission and Rs. 0.82 Crore for SLDC for FY 2017-18 after True-

up.

2.11 Return on Equity

Regulation 20 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, specifies as under:
“20. RETURN ON EQUITY
Return on Equity shall be computed at the rate of 15.5% on the paid up equity capital
determined in accordance with regulation 19:
Provided that nassets funded by consumer contributions, capital subsidies/Govt.
grants shall not form part of the capital base for the purpose of calculation of Return

on Equity.”

Hon'ble Commission in MYT Order for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, had approved the
Return on Equity of Rs. 101.78 Crore for Transmission for FY 2017-18. Further, the
Petitioner, in APR of FY 2017-18, revised the Return on Equity as Rs. 101.19 Crore for
Transmission. Against this, Hon'ble Commission in APR for FY 2017-18 has
approved the Return on Equity of Rs. 101.78 Crore for Transmission.

PSTCL submits that it has partly funded the Capital Expenditure (30% for Capital
Expenditure)through equity infusion in FY 2017-18, by reinvesting the RoE for FY
2017-18.For the purpose of calculating Return on Equity for FY 2017-18 on
Normative basis, PSTCL has considered the RoE at the rate of 15.50% in accordance
with the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014. The Petitioner computed thenormativeRoE
for FY 2017-18 with details as provided below:

Table 16: NormativeRetumn on Equity for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

Equity at the opening of FY 2017-18 605.88
2 Addition of equity during the year 106.23
Equity at the closing of FY 2017-18 712,11
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Rate of Return (%) 15.50%
Return on Equity 102.14

As seen from the Table above, Normative RoE for FY 2017-18 is less than the Equity
addition of Rs. 106.23 Crore for FY 2017-18. However, since funding of Capital
Expenditure for FY 2017-18 has to be done through reinvesting the RoE for FY 2017-
18, approval of Normative RoE will lead to a shortfall in funding of Capital
Expenditure for FY 2017-18 by Rs. Rs. 4.09 Crore.

Therefore, PSTCL prays to the Hon’ble Commission to approve the RoEof Rs.
106.23 Crore for FY 2017-18 at the same level as addition of Equity during the year
FY 2017-18.

2.12 Interest on Working Capital

Regulation 54 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, specifies as under:
“54. INTEREST ON WORKING CAPITAL
54.1 Components of Working Capital
The Working Capital shall cover the following:
i. O&M Expenses for 1 month;
ii. Maintenance spares @ 15% of the O&M expenses;
iii. Receivables equivalent to two (2) months of fixed cost calculated on normative
target availability.
54.2 Rate of Interest

The rate of interest on working capital shall be as per regulation 25.1.

In its MYT Order October 23, 2017, theHon'ble Commission approved the Interest
on Working Capital as Rs. 37.84 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 0.59 Crore for SLDC
for FY 2017-18. Further, the Petitioner, in APR of FY 2017-18, revised the projected
Interest on Working Capital as Rs. 40.46 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 0.56 Crore
for SLDC. As against this, the Hon'ble Commission, in APR of FY 2017-18, has
approved the Interest on Working Capital of Rs. 37.84 Crore for Transmission and
Rs. 0.55 Crore for SLDC.
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For the purpose of True-up, the Petitioner has computed the Interest on Working
Capital as per the provisions of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014. The Petitioner has
considered the actual weighted average rate of interest for Working Capital loans for

Transmission and SLDC Business. The computation of Interest on Working Capital

is submitted in the following table:

: Interest on Worki

Capital for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Re.ceiva‘t.n'le; eqmvalentto tt./.\.F'O months ‘o‘fl szed cost 220.92 3.25
2 Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M expenses 77.10 1.18
3 Operation and Maintenance expenses for one month 42.83 0.65
4 Total Working Capital (Normative) 340.85 5.08
5 Rate of Interest applied 11.22% | 11.22%
6 Interest on Working Capital 38.23 0.57

The Petitioner prays the Hon'ble Commission to approve the Interest on Working
Capital as shown in the Table above for Transmission Business and SLDC for FY
2017-18 after True-up.

2.13 ULDC Charges

Hon’ble Commission, in MYT Order for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, had approved the
ULDC charges of Rs. 11.76 Crore for FY 2017-18 for SLDC. Further, the Petitioner, in
APR of FY 2017-18, revised the projected ULDC Charges as Rs. 9.93 Crore, and the
same were approved by the Hon'ble Commission in APR for FY 2017-18. For the
purpose of True-up for FY 2017-18, the Petitioner submits the actual ULDC Charges

based on Audited Accounts as shown in the following Table:

for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 ULDC Charges - SLDC own share - 5.70 5.70
2 ULDC Charges - BBMB share - 2.58 2.58
3 ULDC Charges - Central Sector share - - -
4 NRLDC Charges - 246 2.46
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Total - 10.73 10.73

The Petitioner prays the Hon’ble Commission to approve the ULDC charges of Rs.
10.73 Crore for FY 2017-18 after True-up.

2.14 Non-tariff Income

Regulation 28 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, specifies as under:

”28. NON TARIFF INCOME

28.1. Following components of income shall be treated as non tariff income for the
generation, transmission and distribution business, as applicable:

a. Meter/metering equipment/service line rentals;

b. Service charges;

c. Customer charges;

d. Net revenue from lnle payment surcharge (late payment surcharge less financing
cost of late payment surcharge);

e. Miscellaneous charges (except PLEC charges);

f- Incentives from CGSs;

g. Miscellaneous receipts;

h. Interest on advances to suppliers/contractors;

1. Interest on staff loans and advances;

j. Income from trading;

k. Income from staff welfare activities;

I. Excess found on physical verification;

m. Interest on investments, fixed and call deposits and bank balances;

n. Net recovery from penalty on conl linison agents;

o. Prior period income;

p. Income from open access charges i.e. application fee, cross subsidy surcharge,
additional surcharge, transmission and/or wheeling charges, scheduling charges etc.;
g. Any other income not included above. Provided that only 50% of the ,rebate for
timely payment of power purchaseO received by the licensee shall be considered as

non ~tariff income.
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28.2. The Applicant shall submit full details of its forecast of non-tariff income to the
Commission as a part of ARR filing

28.3. The amount received by the Applicant on account of non-tariff Income shall be
deducted from the aggregale revenue requirement in calculating the net aggregate

revenue requirenient of Applicant’s business.”

In MYT Order for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, Hon'ble Commission has approved the
Non-tariff Income of Rs. 49.25 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 5.41 Crore for SLDC
for FY 2017-18. Further, the Petitioner, in APR of FY 2017-18, revised the projected
Non-tariff Income as Rs. 20.77 Crore for Transmission Business and Rs. 5.41 Crore
for SLDC. As against this, the Hon'ble Commission, in APR for FY 2017-18, has
approved the Non-tariff Income of Rs. 49.25 Crore for Transmission and Rs. 5.41
Crore for SLDC.

For the purpose of True-up for FY 2017-18, the Petitioner has considered the Non-
tariff income as indicated in Note 25 of audited accounts. The Petitioner has not
considered the income towards thecertain heads wherein expenses were not allowed
by Hon'ble Commission in previous Tariff Orders.:
(a) Income of Rs. 1.92 Crore towards interest received on refund of income tax
for FY 2015-16 has not been considered because Hon'ble Commission did not
allow expenses under the head of Income Tax in True-up for FY 2015-16.
(b) Income of Rs. 6.58 Crore towards provision withdrawn
onunserviceable/obsolete items and losses under investigation.
Further Petitioner has also not considered Non-tariff Income arising out of book
adjustment, wherein expenses were not considered in previous Tariff Orders, in
respect of the following;:
(a) Income of Rs. 0.11 Crore towards Sundry Credit balances written back.
(b) Income of Rs. 99.84 Crore towards Amount against Deposit/ Contributory
work written back.
(c) Income of Rs. 5.86 Crore towards Security deposits/ EMD forfeited.
The Petitioner has also not claimed other expenses/debits comprising interalia

provision for value of obsolete store and miscellanecus losses and write off.
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In view of the above, the Petitioner submitsNon-tariff Income for FY 2017-18 as

shown in the following table:

Table 19: Non-tariff Income for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Non-tariff Income 18.94 1.41 20.36

Accordingly, the Petitioner prays to the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Non-
tariff Income of Rs. 18.94 Crore for Transmissionn and Rs. 1.41 Crore for SLDC for FY
2017-18 for True-up.

2.15 Income Tax

The Petitioner submits that no income tax has been claimed for FY 2017-18 based on
Note 32 of audited accounts for FY 2017-18.

2.16 Incentive on account of Transmission System Availability

In accordance with PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, the Petitioner is eligible for
incentive for over achieving the availability targets for transmission system
availability which has been verified and certified by SLDC. As per PSERC MYT
Regulations, 2014, the Normative Annual Transmission System Availability Factor
(NATAF) for incentive computation has been considered as 99%. The net
transmission charges inclusive of incentive on the basis of fixed charges for

Transmission and computation of incentive are given as per the table below.

Table 20: Incentive on account of Transmission System Availability for FY 2017-18(Rs.
Crore)

1 Apr-17 99.97% 107.86 1.05

May-17 99.94% 11142 1.05

3 Tun-17 99.97% 107.86 1.05
\
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4 |Jul17 99.99% 11037 11147 1.10
5 Aug-17 99.98% 110.37 111.47 1.10
6 Sep-17 99.99% 106.81 107.88 1.07
7 Oct-17 99.99% 110.37 111.47 1.10
g Nov-17 99.96% 106.81 107.84 1.03
9 Dec-17 99.99% 110.37 111.47 1.10
10 | Jan-18 99.94% 110.37 111.41 1.04
11 | Feb-18 99.98% 99.69 100.67 0.98
12 | Mar-18 99.99% 110.37 111.47 1.10

Total 1299.52 1312.30 12.78

The Petitioner submits to the Hon'ble Comumission to approve the incentive for

transmission system availability as determined in the Table above for FY 2017-18.

2.17 Interest Due to Late Payment by PSPCL

As per Regulation 31 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, PSPCL had to make
payments to PSTCL against the bills raised by PSTCL within 30 days from the date
of billing in FY 2017-18. However, during FY 2017-18, PSPCL has made late
payments (payment after more than 30 days from date of billing) to PSTCL at

several occasions.

Further, PSTCL submits that due tosuch occurrences of late payment by PSPCL and
non-providing of security mechanism by PSPCL to PSTCL, PSTCL had to arrange
for the funds from alternate sources, which led cost implication for PSTCL in form of
Interest Costs for such funds. PSTCL has calculated the interest cost borne by it due
to late payments made by PSPCL as Rs. 13.21 Crore in FY 2017-18.

PSTCL requests the Hon'ble Commission to allow the above-mentioned interest
incurred by PSTCL due to late payments made by PSPCL in FY 2017-18 in the True-

up of FY 2017-18.
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2.18 Aggregate Revenue Requirement

After considering the expenses claimed for various components of Aggregate
Revenue Requirement, Net ARR for Transmission and SLDC is summarised in the

following table:
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2.19 Revenue from Tariff

PSTCL. submits that Hon'ble Commission vide MYT Order for FY 2017-18 to FY
2019-20, has approved recoverable amount of Rs. 1234.87 Crore for FY 2017-18,
which includes Rs. 17.88 Crore for SLDC for FY 2017-18, after adjustment of

carrying cost.

Further, during APR of FY 2017-18, the Hon'ble Commission has revised the net
recoverable amount to Rs. 1233 Crore, which includes Rs. 16.01 Crore towards
SLDC. PSTCL after issue of the APR Order for FY 2017-18 has billed the amount
approved by Hon'ble Commission in APR of FY 2017-18 and the same has been
account in audited account for FY 2017-18. Accordingly, for the purpose of true-
up, PSTCL has considered the net revenue of Rs. 1233 Crore, which includes
revenue of Rs. 1216.99 Crore towards Transmission Business and Rs. 16.01 Crore

towards SLDC, as shown in the following Table:

iff f

1 Transmission Charges from PSPCL 1216.99 0.00 | 1216.99
2 SLDC Charges from PSTCL 0.00 16.01 16.01
3 Grand Total 1216.99 16.01 | 1233.00

2.20 Revenue Gap/(Surplus) for FY 2017-18

The Petitioner has computed the Revenue Gap/(Surplus) after True-up for FY
2017-18 as shown in the following Table:

Table 23: Revenue Gap/(Surplus) for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement 1,325.51 | 19.51 1,345.02
Revenue from Tariff 1,216.99 | 16.01 1,233.00
Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 108.52 | 3.50 112.02

Thus, the Petitioner prays the Hon'ble Commission to allow the revenue gap of
for PSTCL for FY 2017-18 as shown in the Table above.

\
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2.21 Recovery of Revenue Gap for Truing up for FY 2017-18

Hon'ble Commission in past Tariff Orders has considered the Revenue Gaps and
its carrying cost for past years at time of determination of Tariff for the year.
Hence, the Tariff includes the Standalone ARR, past Revenue Gaps and its
carrying cost. MHowever, at time of True-up for respective years, such past
Revenue Gaps and its carrying cost had not been considered in expenses. So,
effectively, such Revenue Gaps and its carrying cost were not recovered through
tariff in past years. Further, it is noted that Hon'ble Commission vide Order
dated April 19, 2018 undertook APR of FY 2017-18 and approved revenue
surplus of Rs. 1.87 Crore. Hence, the net recovery of revenue gap for FY 2017-18
has been considered after considering the revenue surplus already passed on to

PSPCL and carrying cost.

The PSTCL has computed the carrying cost on revenue gap for FY 2017-18 as

shown in the following Table:

Table 24: Computation of carrying cost for Truing up for FY 2017-18 (Rs. Crore)

1 Stand-alone Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) after True 112.02
u

5 LEssi Revenue Qap/ (sur;.Jlus) already (1.87)
considered at time of review of FY 2017-18

3 i:f;rR;E;E; Gap/(Surplus) for FY 2017-18 113.89

4 Carrying cost for FY 2017-18 (Half year) 11.22% 6.39

5 Carrying cost for FY 2018-19 11.22% 12.77

6 Carrying cost for FY 2019-20 (Half year) 11.22% 6.39

7 Total Carrying cost 25.55

For the purpose True-up for FY 2017-18, the PSTCL has computed the cumulative
Revenue Gap for FY 2017-18 as under:

G

Table 25: Total R

1 Net Revenue Gap/ (surplus) for FY 2017-18 (a) 112.02
2 Carrying cost for True-up for FY 2017-18 (b) 25.55
3 Cumulative Revenue Gap/(Surplus) for FY 2017-18 (a+b) 137.56
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The PSTCL requests the Honble Commission to approve the cumulative revenue
gap of as claimed by PSTCL in the Table above for True-up for FY 2017-18 in the
ARR of FY 2019-20.
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3 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW FOR FY
2018-19 AND REVISED ARR FOR FY 2019-20

3.1 Background

In this Chapter, the Petitioner submits the Annual Performance Review for FY

2018-19 and revised ARR for FY 2019-20.

The Hon’ble Commission in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 approved the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) of Rs. 1283.86 Crore for PSTCL for FY
2018-19. Out of this, the Net ARR of Rs. 20.23 Crore was approved for SLDC for
FY 2018-19. Further, in Order dated April 19, 2018, the Hon'ble Commission
approved the revised ARR of Rs..1281.99 Crore for PSTCL. Out of this, the Net
ARR of Rs. 18.36 Crore was approved for SLDC

Also, the Hon'ble Commission approved Net ARR of Rs. 1337.15 Crore for
PSTCL for FY 2019-20. Out of this, the Net ARR of Rs. 22.26 Crore was approved
for SLDC for FY 2019-20.

The Petitioner has computed the revised estimates of ARR for FY 2018-19 based
on the actual values of first half (H1 of FY 2018-19) and projection for H2 of FY
2018-19. Also, the revised ARR for FY 2019-20 has been projected based on
Annual Performance Review for FY 2018-19. The Petitioner has also considered
the basis of past trends, regulatory norms and activities planned for projecting
the expenses for H2 of FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

The deviation sought from the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 and its
Amendments has been specifically mentioned with the rationale and relaxation
has been sought in in accordance with the provisions of PSERC MYT

Regulations, 2014 and its Amendments.

3.2 Description of the Transmission System

PSTCL has submitted the addition in transmission system based on the Capital

Investment Plan submitted to the Hon’ble Commission and subsequent
.
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submission made thereafter. The details of the actual addition during H1 of FY

2018-19, estimated addition during H2 of the FY 2018-19 and projected addition

during FY 2019-20 to the transmission system of PSTCL are tabulated below:
Table 26: Transmission System for PSTCL for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20

R Opening |Addition |Retirement |Addition Retirement. Addition |Retirement Closing
SNr. i _'_I"’articulars (As on 1st fiul‘i11g During FY | during | during FY uring FY | during FY (As on 31
o. | April |FY2018- | 2018-19 |FY2018- | 201819 [, 08 %\ 0B T\ March,

e 2018) | 19 (H1) (H1) 19 (H2) (H2) - |2 | 2020

Transmission Lines (Circuit kms)

1 {400kV 1599.75 - - - - - - | 1599.75
220 kV 6781.61 | 35223 - - - - - | 7133.84
132kv | 3135.64 - 224.54 - - - -| 2911.10

4 |Total [11516.99| 35223 224.54 - - - - | 11644.69

Substations (Nos.)

1 |400kV 5 - - - - - 6

2 | 220kV 96 2 - 3 - 2 - 103

3 | 132kV 69 . 2 - - - 64

4 | Total 170 2 2 3 3 - 173

Transmission Substation Bays (Incoming and Outgoing) (Nos.)

1 |400kV 60 1 - - - - - 61

2 | 220kV 650 14 - 15 - 6 - 685

3 |132kV 509 14 12 - 3 - - 508

4 1 e66kV 1154 21 18 - - - - 1157

5 | 33kV 12 - - - - - - 12

6 | Total 2385 50 30 15 3 J - 2423

Substation Capacity (MVA)
1 giiitzt;;n 34954.17 | 736.00 108.50 | 1212.50 90.00 | 2530.00 77.50 | 39156.67

3.3 Transmission System Capacity

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, Hon'ble Commission approved
Transmission capacity (net) of PSTCL system as 12500.78 MW and 12608.38 MW
for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 respectively as against 14660.21 MW and 15010.87
MW for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 respectively.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 18, 2018, Hon'ble Commission revised the
Transmission Capacity (Net) of PSTCL system as 11579.39 MW for FY 2018-19 as
against 13879.15 MW FY 2018-19 claimed by PSTCL.
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The Petitioner submits the projected transmission capacities of the State System,
as provided by PSPCL, considering the State and private generating capacities
and Central sector allocations for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as shown in the

following Table.

Table 27: Projected Net Installed Capac1ty in MW for FY 2018~ 19 and FY 2019-20
Name of Project .. ol FY2018- 19 - FY 2019-20
Thermal - PSPCL 1610.40 1610.40
Total Hydro- PSPCL 1014.47 1014.47
Central Sector (Firm Share) 4281.04 4701.05
PSPCL Share of BBMB 1155.47 1155.47
IPPs within State of Punjab 3652.86 3652.86
PEDA and NRSE Projects 1284.27 1427.42
Grand Total 12998.52 13561.67

3.4 Transmission Losses

Hon'ble Commission, in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, approved the
Transmission Loss of 2.40% and 2.30% for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as against
2.60% and 2.50% by PSTCL for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 respectively.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, approved the Transmission Loss
as 2.40% for FY 2018-19 as against Transmission Loss of 2.80% for FY 2018-19
claimed by PSTCL.

Further, PSTCL submits that it has completed Intra-State Boundary Metering
cum Transmission Level Energy Scheme. The actual transmission loss for the

period from April, 2018 to August, 2018 is shown in the following Table:

Table 28 Actual Transmlssmn Loss for FY 2018-19 (Hl)

g; Month . . | Tmnsmmsmn Loss__
T Apl a8 Tao03851 | 3054345 L7
2 | May-18 4484416 4314916 3.78%
3 | Jun-18 5273076 5006183 3.36%
4 |julis 6417829 6252085 2.57%
5 | Augls 7622336 7419277 2.66%
6 Total 27001908 26137706 3.20%

|
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From the above data, the average transmission loss has been computed as 3.20%
for the period from April 2018 to August 2018.

Further, PSTCL submits that the transmission losses in transmission network
depends upon various factors such as shift of load centres, energy injection and
drawal into the network and the extent of inherent technical loss pertaining to the
transmission equipment in use. PSTCL continuously strives to reduce the
technical losses in the system. PSTCL is regularly monitoring the loading of
transmission lines and power transformers/ICTs and makes all possible efforts to
optimize the loading of this equipment to reduce the technical losses in the

system:.

The trajectory approved by the Hon'ble Commission is very low compared to the
actual transmission loss. Further reduction in transmission losses from such low
level of transmission loss would be much more difficult and require significant

additional capital investment.

In view of the above, based on the actual stabilised data oftransmission losses
available till now, PSTCL has requested the Hon'ble Commission to approve the
Transmission Loss for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, as shown in the following
Table:

Table 29: Transmlssmn Losses for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019 20

Particulars - R FY2018 19 gl FY2019-20

Transmission Loss (%) | 2.80% 2.70%

3.5 Transmission Availability

Regulation 55 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies the normative Annual
Transmission Availability Factor of 98% for recovery of Annual Fixed Charges
and 99% for incentive on account of higher Transmission Availability. The
average transmission system availability from April to September 2018 (HI)
based on month wise system availability up to September 2018 is as shown in the
Table below:

\
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Table 30: Transmlssmn Sys’cem Availability for FY 2018-19 (I{1)

Sr. No. | Month S ~Transmission System Availability (%)
1 April-2018 99.98%
2 May-2018 99.96%
3 June-2018 99.96%
4 July-2018 99.97%
5 August-2018 99.98%
6 September-2018 99.98%
7 Average 99.97%

The Petitioner submits that it has maintained the Transmission System
Availability well above the normative annual transmission availability factor up

to September 2018, as mandated by PSERC Tariff Regulations, 2014.

3.6 Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation

PSTCL submits that, in accordance with Regulation 9 and 10 of PSERC MYT
Regulations, 2014, it has filed Petition for approval of Capital Investment Plan
(Petition No. 44 of 2016) and Business Plan (Petition No. 45 of 2016) for the
Control Period from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 on May 30, 2016. The Hon'ble
Commission approved the Capital Expenditure in its Order dated December 13,
2017 in Petition No. 44 of 2016 at the same level as provisionally approved in its
MYT Order dated QOctober 23, 2017.

Further, for FY 2018-19, PSTCL had claimed Capital Expenditure of Rs. 250.61
Crore for Transmission Business and Rs. 10.00 Crore for SLDC. As against this,
Hon'ble Comumission, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, approved the
Capital Expenditure for FY 2018-19 at the same level as approved in its MYT
Order dated October 23, 2019.

As regards Capital Expenditure for FY 2018-19, PSTCL has provided Work-wise
details of Capital Works and it associated Capital Expenditure for FY 2018-19 and
FY 2019-20 in Annexure II. The Capital Works undertaken in FY 2018-19 and FY
2019-20 include the works approved in the Capital Investment Plan for the

Control Period and Urgent/Unforeseen/feasibility related works chargeable to

1
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the Head Addition of Bays/System Strengthening”, Augmentation/
Strengthening of Bus Bars "and "Unforeseen emergency works" that do not

require specific approval of the Hon’ble Commission.

Additionally, PSTCL also seeks the approval of the Hon'ble Commission for
Routine Works, Capital Works for P&M Organization, and various other works
carried out by PSTCL in FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20. The work-wise details of the

same have also been provided by PSTCL in Annexure II.

Further, for Transmission System, PSTCL provisionally claims the Capitalization
for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 at the same level as approved in the MYT Order.
PSTCL will claim the actual Capitalization for the FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 at

the time of True-up for the respective years.

Accordingly, the Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation proposed for FY 2018-19
and FY 2019-20 is shown in the following Table:

Table 31: Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs.

Crore)
Cerilime | EY201819 | FY201920
No. | - s gg:r APR {ﬁ PrOJected
Transmission
Capital Expenditure 248.01 303.93 202.64 509.31
2 Capitalisation 57291 | 572.91*% 163.92 163.92*
SLDC
Capital Expenditure 10.00 6.79 10.00 12.21
Capitalisation 10.01 5.59 10.00 19.34

3.7 Funding of Capital Expenditure

Regulation 19 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:
“19. DEBT EQUITY RATIO
19.2. New Projects — For capital expenditure projects declared under commercial

operation on or after the effective date:

\
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a. A Normative debt-cquity ratio of 70:30 shall be considered for the purpose of
determination of Tariff;

b. In case the actunl equity employed is in excess of 30%, the amount of equity for te
putrpose of tariff determination shall be limited to 30%, and the balance amount shall

be considered as normative lonn;
¢. In case, the actual equity employed is less than 30%, the actual debt-equity ratio

shall be considered;

”

PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies the normative debt : equity ratio of 70:30.
PSTCL is entitled to earn minimum profit equivalent to ROE every year, PSTCL
submits that it will utilise the said profit, being internal accruals, as equity
infusion for the capital expenditure during the FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20. For
the purpose of this Petition, PSTCL has considered the equity amount at 30% of
the capital expenditure, in accordance to the methodology followed by Hon'ble
Commission in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 and Tariff Order dated

April 19, 2018.

The remaining funding of capital works shall be carried out by taking loans from
banks and/or financial institutions. The funding of capital expenditure as

proposed for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 is shown in the following Table:

Table 32: Funding of Capltal Expendﬁuxe for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs C1 ore)

: FY 2018~19

Transmission

Equity 74.40 91.18 60.79 152.79
Debt 173.61 212,75 141.85 356.51
Total 248.01 303.93 202.64 509.31
S5LDC

Equity 3.00 2.04 3.00 3.66
Debt 7.00 4.75 7.00 8.55
Total 10.00 6.79 10.00 12.21
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3.8 O&M Expenses

Regulation 26 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 and its subsequent
amendments, specify the normative computation of O&M Expenses for the

Control Period as under:

“26. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) EXPENSES)

26.1. The O&M expenses for the nth year of the Control Period shall be approved
based on the formula shotwn belotw:

O&Mn = (R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gnr) x (1-Xn)

Where,

(iti) Xn is an efficiency factor for nth year
The value of Xn shall be determined by the Commission in its first MYT order for
the Control Period.”

Further, Regulation 26.1 {Note 3) of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as
‘under:
“O&M expenses shall be allowed on normative basis and shall not be trued up:
Provided, if actual O&M expenses are less than 90% of the normative expenses,
the Commission shall lrue up the O&M expenses during the Annual Performance

Review for that year on actual basis.”

Also, Regulation 8.3 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:
U However, if the actual expenditure is less than the normative, then the
allowable expenditure shall be limited fo actual expenditure incurred by the

applicant.”

From the above said regulations, it is noted that O&M expenses are limited to
Normative expenses. In view of the above, PSTCL re-iterates its submission made
in MYT Petition that as per above any gain on account of efficiency improvement
in O&M expenses vis-a-vis normative O&M expenses shall be passed on to the
consumers, however, the loss shall be borne by the PSTCL. There is no
mechanism wherein the gain on account of efficiency improvement shall be
shared with the PSTCL.

\
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Hence, the PSTCL has not considered any Efficiency factor for O&M expenses
for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

In view of the above said Regulation, PSTCL makes its submission for Employee

Costs, R&M and A&G Expenses as under:

3.8.1 Employee Costs

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, the Hon'ble Commission approved the
Employee Cost of Rs. 452.67 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 472.82 Crore for FY
2019-20 as against Rs. 564.17 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 595.92 Crore for FY
2019-20 submitted by PSTCL.

Further, in its Order dated April 19, 2018, the Hon’ble Commission approved the
revised Employee cost of Rs. 452.67 Crore as against Rs. 541.69 Crore submitted

by PSTCL.

First Amendment of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 dated February 3, 2016
specifies as under:
" Clause 26.1 of regulation 26 shall be substituted as under:
26.1. The O&M expenses for the ntlt year of the Control Period shall be
approved based on the formula shown below:
O&EMn = (R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn) x (1-Xn)
Where,

(it) EMPn = (EMPn-1)*(INDEX n/INDEX n-1)

e INDEXn - Inflation Factor to be used for indexing the Employee Cost.

o This will be a combination of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and the
Wholesale Price Index (WPI) of nth year and shall be calculated as under:-

INDEXn = 0.50*CPIn + 0.509WPIn

‘WPIn" means the average rate (on monthly basis) of Wholesale Price Index (all

commodities) over the year for the nth year.

‘CPIn’ means the average rate (on monthly basis) of Consumer Price Index

(Industrial workers) over the year for the nth year.

Note 4: Terminal Liabilities such as death-cum-retirement gratuity, pension,

conmitted pension, leave encashment, LTC, medical reimbursement including

l
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fixed medical allowance in respect of pensioners will be approved as per the
actuals paid by the Applicant.
Note 5: O&M expenses made on account of extraordinary situations (if any)
shall be submitted to Conumission for its approval. Such expenses shall be filed
separately and will not be subjected to provisions of Regulation 30. The
approved amount by the Commission shall be trued wup in the Annual
Performance Review.
Note 6: Exceptional incrense in employee cost on account of pay revision efc,
will be considered separately by the Commission.
Note 7: Any expenditure on account of license fee, initial or renewal, fee for
determination of tariff and audit fee shall be allowed on actual basis, over and
abouve the A&G expenses approved by the Commission.

Accordingly, the Employee Expenses for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 are

computed subsequently.

Terminal benefits

Regulation 26 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time
specifies that Terminal benefits such as death-cum-retirement gratuity,
commuted pension, leave encashment, LTC, medical reimbursement including
fixed medical allowance in respect of pensioners shall be allowed as per actual
paid by the PSTCL. In this regard, PSTCL submits that the actual pay-out on
account of terminal liabilities in respect of pensioners has been considered as per
Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer Scheme approved by the Government of

Punjab.

The employees recruited by PSTCL are covered under New Pension Scheme
(NPS) and are entitled to gratuity under the provisions of the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972 and the leave salary under the Leave Rules of the Corporation.
Further, the liability has been created for meeting the current terminal liabilities
of gratuity and leave encashment in respect of employees recruited by PSTCL in
compliance of Ind AS 19 issued by the ICAIL The amount related to NI’S is being
actually paid.

For the purpose of the present Petition, the PSTCL has considered the Terminal
benefits for employees of erstwhile PSEB as approved by the Hon'ble

\
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Commission in Order dated October 23, 2017. The terminal liabilities of gratuity
and leave encashment for employees recruited by PSTCL is considered based on
actuarial valuation. The terminal Habilities towards NPS is considered based on
actual payout being made. The terminal benefits considered by PSTCL is as

shown in the following Table:

Table 33: Terminal Benefits for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

‘No |Particulars =~ - 000 e
SRl e T N  Order 1 AR o[ Order | 22T
1 Terminal .benefits for employees 29165  291.65 291.65| 307.10 307.10
of erstwhile PSEB
Terminal benefit towards NPS for
2 | new employees recruited by . 1 435 . 4.57
PSTCL
Terminal benefits towards
3 Gratuity and Leave encashment i ] L L
for new employees recruited by
PSTCL
4 | Total 291.65  291.65 296.00] 307.10 311.68

*Further, as mentioned in the previous Section, PSTCL has not considered the
Terminal Benefits of on account of the provision for gratuity and leave
encashment for employees recruited by PSTCL for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 in
the present Petition. However, PSTCL will claim such expenses on Pay as you go

basis, as and when such expenses will occur, as directed by the Hon'ble

Commission.

Inflation factor
Since, WPI and CPI index are available tll September, 2018, the escalation index

has been computed as per provisions of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 as shown

in the following Table:

Table 34: Computation of Escalation Index

1 CPI Index (Apr - Sep) 284 205 3.78%

WP Index (Apr - Sep) 115 119 3.76%

3 CPL: WPI Index {50:50) 200 207 3.78%
\
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Accordingly, the inflation factor for FY 2018-19 works out to as shown in the

Table above.

Further, as per first amendment of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, the other
Employee Cost in FY 2016-17 has to be taken as the base for computing
normative Employee Cost for FY 2017-18. PSERC MYT Regulations 2014, as
amended from time to time, do not specify whether the base expenses to be
considered should be gross or net. The Hon'ble Commission may appreciate that
the normative Employee expenses to be permitted should be at gross level only,
as the expense capitalisation depends on capital projects undertaken and staff or

employees of PSTCL dedicated to such project execution.

Further, PSTCL has projected the recruitment of 124 employees in H2 of FY 2018-
19 and 800 employees in H1 of FY 2019-20. The impact on Employee Cost on
account of recruitment of new employees has been projected as Rs. (.89 Crore for
FY 2018-19 and Rs. 12.30 Crore for FY 2019-20. Accordingly, PSTCL prays to the
Hon'ble Commission to approve the recruitment employees along with its
impact for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as projected by PSTCL.

Accordingly, PSTCL has calculated Net Other Employee costs for FY 2018-19 and
FY 2019-20, as under:

Table 35: Other Employee Costs for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019»20 (Rs Crore)

Sr: - Paﬂmulars T  FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 "

No. : e AR Tx_ﬁ_;;ns_mlss_lon . SLD_C_. _T]_:an_smis__s;on SLDC
1 Base Yeal G1oss Othel Employee Cost 22245 6.61 230.85 6.86
2 |Escalation Factor (CPLWPI :: 50:50) 3.78% | 3.78% 3.78% | 3.78%
3 |Gross Other Employee Cost 230.85 6.86 239.56 712
4  |Less Employee Cost Capitalised 39.08 0.00 39.08 0.00
5 [Net Other Employee Costs 191.77 6.86 200.48 712

Accordingly, PSTCL has computed the revised normative Employee Costs for
Transmission Business and SLDC for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as per PSERC
MYT Regulations, 2014 as shown in the Table below:
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Table 36 N ormatlve Employee Costs for FY 2018-19 and FY 9819~20 {Rs. Crore)

5 i A FY.2018-19 o0 CFY 20019-20
Nlo ' Pa:tmulars f SR :_:‘f MYT APR - MYT_ Revised
] oo covew s b Opder oo | Order | Projection
Transmission
1 Terminal Benefits 20165 | 296.00 307.10 311.68
2 Other Employee Costs 154.06 | 191.77 158.57 200.48
3 Impact of new Recruitments 0.89 12.30
4 Total 44571 | 488.66 465,67 524.46
SLDC
5 Terminal Benefits - - -
6 | Other Employee Cost 6.95 6.86 7.15 7.12
7 Impact of New Recruitments 0.00 0.00
8 Total 6.95 6.86 7.15 7.12
9 Grand Total 452.66 | 495.53 472.82 531.58

PSTCL submits that it is entitled for Normative Employee costs as per PSERC
MYT Regulations, 2014. Therefore, PSTCL prays the Hon’ble Commission to
approve the Normative Employee Costs as projected by PSTCL in the Table
above for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

3.8.2 R&M and A&G Expenses

The Hon'ble Commission, in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, approved
R&M and A&G Expenses of Rs. 63.59 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 67.71 Crore
for FY 2019-20 against Rs. 64.27 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 66.86 Crore for FY
2019-20 submitted by PSTCL.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, the Hon’ble Commission revised
R&M and A&G Expenses as Rs. 63.59 Crore for FY 2018-19 against Rs. 66.14
Crore claimed by PSTCI..

Hon'ble Commission has approved the R&M and A&G Expenses in accordance
with Regulation 26 of PSERC MYT regulations, 2014, as amended from time to
time. On the basis of the revised submission of capital expenditure and
capitalisation for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, the revised R&M and A&G
Expenses has been computed for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

\
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WPT index for FY 2018-19 are available till September, 2018. The K-factor has
been computed for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as shown in the following Table:

Table 37: Computation of K for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

Particulars FY 2017-18 | FY 2018-19 | FY 2019-20
Transmission

K-factor 0.61% 0.63% 0.65%
WPI Index 2.92% 3.76% 3.76%
Escalated K-factor 0.63% 0.65% 0.68%
SLDC

K-factor 7.31% 7.52% 7.81%
WP Index 2.92% 3.76% 3.76%
Escalated K-factor 7.52% 7.81% 8.10%

Accordingly, PSTCL has submitted combined R&M

Transmission and SLDC Business as under:

Table 38: R&M and A&G Expenses for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

and A&G expenses for

o | famcuigrg S o FY201819 | m,? 2019-20
ZINO'_' | S APR .O'rder._ Pro;ected
Transmission Business
1 Opening GFA 9116.65 0444.25 0689.56 10017.16
2 | Closing GFA 968956 | 10017.16 9853.48 10181.08
3 Average GFA 0403.11 9730.70 9771.52 10099.12
4 | Escalated K-factor 0.63% 0.65% 0.64% 0.68%
5 R&M and A&G Expenses 5924 63.39 62.54 68.27
6 | Add: Audit Fee 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
7 Add: Licence Fee and ARR Fee 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
8 Grand Total 60.74 64.89 64.04 69.77
SLDC
1 Opening GFA 3268 18.57 42.69 24.16
2 | Closing GFA 42.69 24.16 52.69 43.50
3 | Average GFA 37.69 21.36 47.69 33.83
4 | Escalated K-factor 7.57% 7.81% 7.70% 8.10%
5 | R&M and A&G Expenses 2.85 1.67 3.67 2.74

£
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3.9 Depreciation

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, Hon'ble Commission approved the
Depreciation of Rs. 300.29 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 317.74 Crore for FY 2019-
20 as against Rs. 355.10 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 371.36 Crore for FY 2019-20

claimed by PSTCL.

Further in its Order dated April 19, 2018, Hon'ble Commission approved the
Depreciation of Rs. 300.29 Core for FY 2018-19 (at the same level as approved in
MYT Order) as against Rs. 351.20 Crore claimed by PSTCL.

Regulation 21 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to

time, specifies as under:
“21. DEPRECIATION
For the purpose of tariff, depreciation shall be computed in the following manner:
21.1. The value base for the purpose of depreciation shall be the capital cost of the assets
admitted by the Commiission:
Provided further that Govt. grants and consumer contribution shall also be recognized as
defmed under Indian Accounting Standard 20 (IND AS 20) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs
Provided that land other than the land held under lease and the land for reservoir in case
of Iydro generating station shall not be a depreciable asset and its cost shall be excluded
from the capital cost while computing depreciable value of the asset;
Provided further that depreciation shall be calculated after deduction of consumer
contributions, capital subsidies/ Goverinmeitt grants.
Provided further that Gout. grants and consumer contribution shall also be recognized as
defined under Indian Accounting Standard 20 (IND AS 20) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.
21.2. The cost of the asset shall include additional capitalization.
21.3. The cost shall include foreign currency funding converted to equivalent rupees at
the exchange rate prevalent on the date when foreign currency shall actually be availed
but not later than the date of commercial operation.
21.4. Deprecintion for generation and transmission assets shall be calculnted annually as
per straight line method over the useful life of the asset at the rate of depreciation specified
by the Central Electricity Regulntory Conmission from time to time.
21.5. Depreciation for distribution assets and other assets not specified by CERC shall be
at the rates notified by the Commiission:
Provided that the total depreciation during the life of the asset shall not exceed 90% of the
original cost;

|
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Provided that the vemmining depreciable value as on 31st March of the yenr closing after a
period of 12 years from dnate of commercial operation/ put in use of the asset shall be
spread over the balance useful life of the assets;

Provided further that in case of hydro generating stations, the salvage value shall be as
provided in the agreement signed by the developers with the State Governsent for
creation of the site.

21.6. Depreciation shall be chargeable froni the first year of commercial operation/asset is
put in use. In case of connnercial operation of the asset/put in use of asset for part of the

year, depreciation shall be charged on pro rata basis. ”

For computation of Opening GFA as on April 1, 2018, PSTCL has considered the
closing GFA (Net of land and land rights) as on March 31, 2018 as per audited
accounts for FY 2017-18, net of capitalization for assets funded through
Contributory Works of Rs. 45.55 Crore in FY 2017-18. PSTCL has considered
addition of GFA equivalent to capitalisation amount submitted in the present

Petition.

PSTCL has computed the weighted average depreciation rate as 4.31% for
Transmission Business and 7.32% for SLDC after taking into account scheduled
depreciation rates as specified in PSERC MYT Regulations and Gross Fixed
Assets as per the audited accounts for FY 2017-18.

Further, PSTCL reiterates that it has not considered the Depreciation on the assets
funded through Contributory Works, as explained in the previous Section.
Accordingly, PSTCL submits the depreciation for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as

under:

Table 39 Deprecmtlon for FY 2018~19 and FY 2019 20 (Rs Crore)

o | S o _FY2018-19 FY 2019-20
Parti'culars? SRR MYT - MYT : :
INo.- b L Ao R w 3
INO COsder | APR_ S Order | _P;‘olected
Transmission
1| Opening GFA (Netof Land and | = 100 7 | ¢ 460 | 676068 | 7,050.53
Land Rights)
2 i}ssets additions during the 572 91 572.01 163.92 163.92
ear
Closing GFA 6,762.68 | 705053 | 6,926.60 7,214.45
4 Depreciation rate (Wt. Avg.) 4.61% 4.31% 4.61% 4.31%
5 Depreciation 298.55 291.37 315.54 307.24

3
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o oo FY 2018-19 _ FY20190
o Particulars o MYT MYT |
N : ST Order APR Order Froj eg’.’tec}
SLDC
6 Opening GFA (Net of Land and 32 68 12.96 49 60 18.55
Land Rights)
7 észfts additions during the 10,01 550 10.00 19.34
8 | Closing GFA 42.69 18.55 52.69 37.89
9 | Depreciation rate (Wt. Avg.) 4.61% 7.32% 4.61% 7.32%
10 | Depreciation 1.74 1.15 2.20 2.07

3.10 Interest and Finance Charges on Loan Capital

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, Hon’ble Commission approved the
Interest and Finance Charges of Rs. 354.63 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 353.51
Crore for FY 2019-20 as against Rs. 408.24 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 405.35
Crore for FY 2019-20 claimed by PSTCL.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, Hon'ble Commission approved
the Interest and Finance Charges of Rs. 354.62 Crore for FY 2018-19 as against Rs.
386.99 Crore claimed by PSTCL.

As explained in previous Chapter, the Hon’ble Commission, in its earlier Tariff
Orders for PSTCL has disallowed the funding of Capital Expenditure through
loans which are not long term in nature., even though such loans were used for
funding of Capital Expenditure. Further, Hon'ble Commission has also not
considered any equity infusion for funding such Capital Expenditure. Therefore,
this approach adopted by Hon'ble Commission is not prudent as funding of

Capital Expenditure has to be allowed either by loan or equity.

Hence, for the purpose of the present Petition, PSTCL has considered the
Opening loan as on April 1, 2018 same as the Closing Loans of FY 2017-18 as

submitted in previous Section.

The outstanding existing loans include loans from REC, LIC, Commercial banks,
Loan from PSPCL and GPF Liability. The repayment of these existing loans and

interest expenses has been considered as per their repayment schedule. The
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addition of loan has been considered equivalent to debt amount as submitted in
the present Petition. PSTCL has proposed new loans for the proposed
investments from Banks/Financial Institution at actual weighted average rate of
interest. Three years moratorium period has been considered for the new loan
taken for funding of capital expenditure for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.

Accordingly, interest on loan capital for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 for PSTCL

has been submitted as under:

Table 40 Interest on Loan capital for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

e | Myri 2018-19 . | FY 2019-20
NO Order | APR- e Orde1 ' PJ:o]ected
Transmission
1 Opening Balance 3665.90 | 4007.61 | 352042 3902.91
2 Loan addition during year 173.61 | 21275| 141.85 356.51
3 Loan Repayment during year 319.09 317.45 308.95 299.95
4 Closing Balance 352042 | 390291 | 3353.32 3959.48
5 Average Loan 3593.16 | 3955.26 | 3436.87 3931.19
6 Rate of Interest 11.24% | 10.16% | 11.36% 10.08%
7 Net Interest 403.87 | 401.74 390.43 396.24
8 Less: Interest Capitalised 5214 31.94 40.30 35.55
Miscellaneous Interest and
7 Finance Charges 121 0.38 122 0.38
10 | Guarantee Charges - 5.00 5.00
11 Interest & Finance Charges 352.94 375.18 351.35 366.07
SLDC
12 | Opening Balance 11.85 7.62 16.14 12.02
13 | Loan addition during year 7.00 4.75 7.00 8.55
14 | Loan Repayment during year 2.71 0.35 3.31 2.71
15 | Closing Balance 16.14 12.02 19.83 17.86
16 | Average Loan 14.00 9.82 17.99 14.94
17 | Rate of Interest 12.04% 831% | 12.03% 10.25%
18 Interest & Finance Charges 1.68 0.82 216 1.53

3.11 Return on Equity

The Hon'ble Commission, in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, approved
the Return on Equity of Rs. 115.64 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 126.58 Crore for
FY 2019-20 against the Return on Equity of Rs. 114.34 Crore for FY 2018-19 and
Rs. 123.83 Crore for FY 2019-20 submitted by PSTCL.
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Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, the Hon'ble Commission revised
the Return of Equity as Rs. 115.64 Crore for FY 2018-19 (at the same level as
approved in MYT Order), as against Rs. 114.53 Crore submitted by PSTCL.

Regulation 20 of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:

“20. RETURN ON EQUITY

Return on Equity shall be computed at the rate of 15.5% on the paid up equity capital
determined in accordance with regulation 19:

Provided that assets funded by consumer contributions, capital subsidies/Govt.
grants shall not form part of the capital base for the purpose of calculation of Return
on Equity.”

For computation of Return on Equity, the PSTCL has considered the closing
equity for FY 2017-18 computed by PSTCL in previous Sectionas opening equity
for FY 2018-19. PSTCL has considered the addition of equity equivalent to 30% of
capital expenditure, in accordance with the methodology followed by Hon'ble
Commission in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017 and Tariff Order dated
April 19, 2018. PSTCL has computed Return on Equity for FY 2018-19 and FY
2019-20 in accordance with the above said Regulations as given in the following

Table;

Table 41: Return on Equity for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

.. Opening Ba.l.anc.e—Equity Capifaf | 712.11

1

2 | Equity addition during the year | 7740 | 93.22 63.79 156.45
3 | Closing balance-Equity Capital | 784.77 | 80533 | 848.56 961.79
4 | ROE rate (%) 15.50% | 15.50% | 15.50% 15.50%
5 | Return on Equity 115.64 | 117.60 | 126.58 136.95

For the purpose of this Petition, PSTCL is claiming Normative RoE for FY 2018-19
and FY 2019-20 as shown in the Table above. However, at time of True up of FY
2018-19 and FY 2019-20, PSTCL will claim the RoE for respective years in
accordance with the methodology adopted by PSTCL in previous Chapter of this

Petition.
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Therefore, in view of above, PSTCL prays Hon'ble Commission to allow the
RoE for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as shown in the Table above.

3.12 Interest on Working Capital

The Hon’ble Commission, in its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, approved
the Interest on Working Capital IoWC) of Rs. 39.95 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs.
41.69 Crore for FY 2019-20 for PSTCL as against [oWC of Rs. 49.00 Crore for FY
2018-19 and Rs. 51.18 Crore for FY 2019-20 claimed by PSTCL.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, Hon’ble Commission revised the
IoWC for FY 2018-19 as Rs. 39.91 Crore for PSTCL as against IoWC of Rs. 43.69
Crore for FY 2018-19 claimed by PSTCL.

Regulation 54 of the PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies as under:
“54. INTEREST ON WORKING CAPITAL
54.1 Components of Working Capital
The Working Capital shall cover the following:
i. O&M Expenses for 1 month;
ii. Maintenance spares @ 15% of the O&M expenses;
iii. Receivables equivalent to two (2) months of fixed cost calculated on normative
target availability.
54.2 Rate of Interest
The rate of interest on working capital shall be as per regulation 25.1.

PSTCL has computed the working capital requirement in accordance with the
above Regulations for its Transmission Business and SLDC. The Regulation 25.1
of PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014 specifies that the rate of interest shall be equal
to the weighted average rate of interest paid/ payable on loans by the
licensee/SLDC or the State Bank of India Advance Rate as on April 1 of the
relevant year, whichever is less. PSTCL has considered the actual weighted

average rate of Interest based on actual working capital loans.

The computation of Interest on Working Capital for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 is

shown in the following Table:
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Table 42: Interest on Working Capital Expenses for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs.

Crore)

S - FY 2018419 FY 2019-20

Particulars MYT || Approved | ...t MYT .
° Order |.in Review. APR Order Projected

Transmission

| Receivablesequivalentto | )\ 0\ 91061 | 20570] 21915|  237.07
two months of fixed cost.

o | Maintenancespares @ | g5 g7 7597 | 83.03| 7946| 8913
15% of O&M expenses
Operation and

3 Maintenance expenses 42.20 42.20 46.13 4414 4952
for one month.

g | Fotal Working Capital | 39375 | 32878 | 354.87 | 34275 | 37572
Requirement

5 Rate of Interest 11.95% 11.95% 9.99% | 11.95% 9.82%

¢ | Intereston Working 39.29 39.29 | 35.46| 40.96 36.88
Capital
SLDC

1 Receivables equ'ivalent to 3.37 3.06 3.39 3.71 3.89
two months of fixed cost.

2 Maintenance spares @ 1.47 1.47 1.28 1.62 1.48
15% of O&M expenses
Operation and

3 Maintenance expenses 0.82 0821 071 0.90 0.82
for one month.

g | Total Working Capital | 564 533| 5.38| 6.24 6.19
Requirement

5 Rate of Interest 11.72% 11.72% 9.99% | 11.72% 9.82%

¢ | Interest on Working 0.66 0.62| 054 073 0.61

Capital

3.13 ULDC Charges

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, Hon'ble Commission approved the
ULDC charges of Rs. 11.76 Crore for both FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as against
ULDC charges of Rs. 12.67 Crore for FY 2018-19 and Rs. 12.99 Crore for FY 2019-
20 claimed by PSTCL.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018, Hon’ble Commission revised the
ULDC Charges for FY 2018-19 as Rs. 9.93 Crore at the same level as claimed by
PSTCL.

}
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LURPONATION LIPAITED

For the purpose of the present Petition, PSTCL has claimed the ULDC Charges
same as actual ULDC charges for FY 2017-18 based on the audited accounts. The
ULDC Charges submitted by PSTCL for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 are shown in

the following Table:

Table 43: ULDC Charges for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 (Rs. Crore)

5t i o FY 201819 - - FY 2019-20
" |Particulars . |MYT [Approved | , __ |MYT .

No. S s Order | in Review APR Order Projected

1 ULDC Charges-SLDC own 9.03 568 570 | 9.03 5.70
share

o [JLDC Charges-BBMB 1.82 158 | 258| 1.82 258
share

3 ULDC Charges-Central ~ 0.33 _ ) }
Sector share
INRLDC fees and charges 0.91 2.33 246 091 246
Grand Total 11.76 9.93 | 10.73| 11.76 10.73

3.14 Non-Tariff Income

In its MYT Order dated October 23, 2017, Hon'ble Commission approved Non-
Tariff Income of Rs. 49.25 Crore each for Transmission Business and Rs. 5.41
Crore each for SLDC Business for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 as against Non-
tariff Income of Rs. 10 crore each for Transmission Business and Rs. 1 crore each
for SLDC Business for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 claimed by PSTCL.

Further, in its Tariff Order dated April 19. 2018, Hon’ble Commission revised the
Non-Tariff Income for FY 2018-19 as Rs. 54.66 Crore as against Non-Tariff Income
of Rs. 26.18 Crore for FY 2018-19 claimed by PSTCL.

For the purpose of the present Petition, PSTCL has claimed the Non-tariff Income
at the same level as actual Non-tariff Income for FY 2017-18 based on the audited

accounts, as claimed in previous Section.

Accordingly, PSTCL submitted the Non-tariff Income of Rs. 18.94 Crore for
Transmission Business and Rs. 1.41 Crore for SLDC for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-
20.

\
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3.15 Income Tax

PSTCL in its MYT Petition submitted that the taxes on income should not be
limited to tax on RoE allowed and should be allowed as actuals, as PSTCL is not
recovering any amount that has not been approved for recovery by the Hon'ble

Commission,

As regards the Income Tax, Hon'ble Commission in MYT Order dated October

23, 2017 stated that
“The Commission consider it appropriate to allow the tax on the basis of
Audited Annual Accounts of the utility as and when the same are
submitted by PSTCL. As such, no amount on this account is allowed at
this stage for MYT Control Period FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 as it is to be
allowed on actual payment basis at the time of True up for the respective

years.”

Accordingly, PSTCL submits that the income tax for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20

shall be submitted at time of True-up for respective years.

3.16 Summary of ARR

The summary of ARR for Transmission Business and SLDC for FY 2018-19 and
FY 2019-20 shown in Tables below:
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4 PROPOSED TARIFF FOR FY 2019-20

4.1 Revenue Gap for FY 2018-19

Hon'ble Commission in Tariff Order dated April 19, 2018 has approved the
revenue of Rs. 1263.63 Crore towards Transmission Charges and Rs. 18.36 Crore
towards SLDC Charges. Accordingly, the revenue gap for FY 2018-19 on account
of Annual Performance Review has been computed as shown in the following
Table:

Table 46 Revenue Gap for FY 2018-19 (Rs. Crore)

: Is\fro i_ParhcuIa_rs S Transmission SLDC - - PSTCL
1 Net ARR 1,354.22 20.36 1 3'74 58
Revenue from Tariff 1,263.64 18.36 1,282.00
Revenue Gap/(surplus) 90.59 2.00 92.58

The carrying cost for Revenue Gap/(surplus) for FY 2018-19 has been computed

as shown in the following Table:

Table 47: Computatlon of Carrymg cost for FY 2018-19 (Rs. Crore)

Sr:No. | Patticulars™ 7 - ; sl Rate of Interest | PSTCL
1 Revenue gap fo1 FY 2018 19 92.58
2 Carrying cost for FY 2018-19 (half year) 11.22% 5.19
3 Carrying cost for FY 2019-20 (half year) 11.22% 5.19
4 Total Carrying cost for recovery 10.38

The total Revenue Gap along with carrying cost for FY 2018-19 works out to
Rs. 102.97Crore. The Petitioner prays to the Hon'ble Commission to approve this

Revenue Gap, arising out of Annual Performance Review of FY 2018-19.

PSTCL proposes to recover Revenue Gaps along with their Carrying Costs for FY
2017-18 and FY 2018-19 in FY 2019-20 from the Transmission Charges.
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4.2 Proposed Tariff for FY 2019-20

PSTCL submits that at present there is only one distribution licensee (PSPCL) in

the State. Hence, the total Annual Fixed Charges for Transmission and SLDC

shall be borne by PSPCL for FY 2019-20.

Accordingly, PSTCL has proposed the Transmission Charges for the

Transmission Business as shown in the following Table:

Table 48: Proposed Transmission Charges for FY 2019-20

fcul . _
1| NetARR for FY 201920 142242
2 Revenue Gap for FY 2018-19 along with carrying cost 137.56
3 Revenue Gap for FY 2017-18 along with carrying cost 102.97
4 Annual Fixed Charges for Transmission Business 1,662.95
5 Transmission System Capacity (Net) (MW) 13,561.67
6 Transmission Charges per month (Rs. Crore per month) 138.58
7 | Transmission Charges (Rs./ MW /month) 102,184
8 Energy at Transmission Boundary for sale in State (MU) 60,667.92
9 Transmission Charges (paise/kWh) 27

Accordingly, PSTCL has proposed the SLDC Charges for FY 2019-20 as shown in

the following Table:

Table 49: Proposed SLDC Charges for FY 2019-20

1 SLDC Chéfges {Rs. Crore)

23.39
2 SLDC Charges per month (Rs. Crore) for PSPCL 1.95
3 SLDC Charges (Rs./ MW/month) for Long Term/Medium term 143721

Open Access Customers

PSTCL humbly prays to the Hon'ble Commission to approve the Transmission

Charges and SLDC Charges along with past revenue gaps as submitted above.

Page 75



Q_S -.::wg

FUNIAD STATE FRANSHAISSION
LONPORATION LIMITID

5 PRAYERS

The Petitioner respectfully prays to the Hon'ble Commission:

a) To admit the Petition seeking approval of True-up for FY 2017-18, Annual
Performance Review for FY 2018-19, revised ARR for FY 2019-20 and
determination of Tariff for FY 2019-20 in accordance with PSERC MYT
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time;

b) To approve Revenue Gap arising on account of True-up of FY 2017-18 and
Annual Performance Review for FY 2018-19 along their carrying cost and
their recovery through Tariff in FY 2019-20, as worked out in this Petition;

c) To approve the revised capital expenditure for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20
submitted in the Petition;

d) To approve the ARR forecast and Tariff for FY 2019-20 for Transmission
Business and SLDC:;

e) To invoke its power under Regulation 66 and 67 in order to allow the
deviations from PSERC MYT Regulations, 2014, wherever sought in this
Petition;

f) To allow additions/alterations/modifications/changes to the Petition at a
future date;

g) To allow any other relief, order or direction, which the Hon'ble
Commission deems fit to be issued;

h) To condone any error/ omission and to give opportunity to rectify the

same;

BY THE APPLICANT THROUGH

Chief Accounts Officer/ Fi ;'u:e and Audit,

Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited, Patiala.
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Annexure I: Confirmation of Transmission
| Availability for FY 2017-18

ANNEXURE I-1

Ve






PUNJAR STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LTD

St e ey BELICE OF THE CHIEE ENGINEER/ISLDC
2LDE Buitding 220107 oif Sub-Station, Ablo

by i

: wal, {Patiala) - 147001,
! Grporate ldentity Number: U40109PB2010SGCO33814
-l e Fax No 0176.2385340 Telo 017523560067
Emal ce-sideBingict org Mob 454511800
TO o~ . i - o e e e . e . -

Finacial Advisor,
PSTCL, Patiala.

Memo No: @%"f} Dated: O 6’/@7/2*’51’(?

Subject: Confirmation of Transmission Availability for the FY 2017-18,

In the above context, the Transm

ission System Availability for the year 2017-
18 is as follows:

1 Sr. T Menth T  Fransmission 7
No. | Availability%]
! 1. April, 2017 99.9745
! 2. May, 2017 99.9399
f 3. } June, 2017 99.9714
f’ 4 July, 2017 99.9563
[ 5, ’ August, 2017 99.9835
! 8. I September, 2017 99.9907
7 ; October, 2017 99.9909 o
f 8. [ November, 2017 99.9576
f g } Decamber, 2017 99.9905
! 10 ] January, 2018 99.9357
{ 11. February, 2018 99.9752
| 12 March, 2018 99.9888
13. Transmission Availability for the 99.6978
whole Year 2017-18

Itis for your kind information and necessary action please,

v
i

Chief Eﬁg{meeﬂSLDC,
PSTCL,Patiala
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Annexure II: Work-wise details of Capital Works
carried out from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20

5 ANNEXURE I1-1
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RajivGoel
% ASSOC]&IBS 179, Barek Road, Ambala Cantl. | Emalf : rgacall@gmail.com

CHARTEREQ ACCOUNTANTS Tel : 0174 £D03807 Web : www.rgaca.in

INDEPENDENT AURITOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members,
Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited
Patiala.

Sub: Statutory Audit Report for the year ending 31.3.2018,

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED, PATIALA {“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of Cash Flow and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and.changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in !nldia, including the
Accounting Standards (“ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting

aolicies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

Chandigarh Office : Delhi Office :
\ 2117, Sector 35-C, T1, 3rd Floor, 4772-73
SR STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT REPORT FJR/BHIBEIZ018 Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya Ganj,
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wnting records, relevant to the

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the aco
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Ind AS financial
siatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriaie
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropniatensss of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the

Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide &

basis for our qualified audit opinion on ind AS financial statements.

Qualified Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the items 1 to 5 described in Annexure-1 attached herewith,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner

so required and give a true and fair-view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION UMITED AUBIT REPORT FOR 31.03.20
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accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2018, its financial
perfermance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. In terms of sub section 5 of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the
“Annexure B” a statement on the directions issued under the aforesaid section by the

comptroller and auditor general of India.
3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} In eur opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income)}, the statement of Cash Flow and the statement of changes in equity dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the items 1 to 5 described in
Annexure-1 attached herewith, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) In view of exemption given vide notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated June 5, 2015
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act

regarding disqualification of Directors, are not applicable to the company.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure C”.

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUBIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018




g) With respect to other matters to be in’c'%ﬁéed in eporf ‘in -accordance

with Rule 11 of the Compames (Audlt and Ats{hte%s) ides, 2014, in 'our opinion and to

Ind AS financial Position. :
i, The Company did not have any‘: ]
contracts; as such the quesmon of i ommentmg on any matenai foreseeabie :

_ losses thereon does not anse By
il There were no amounts Wthh were requtred to he transferred to. the -

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company

For M/S RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants_

' PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIVITED AUDIT REPORT FOR31.03.2018 -+ .




“ANNEXURE-A"TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in our Report of even date:

a. The company is maintaining proper records showing fuil particulars including

Quantitative details and situation of fixed assets except for the fixed assets
transferred on 16/04/2010 pursuant to the transfer scheme notified by the State
Government which is in process. However no distinctive mark [/ specification
number has been marked on Fixed Assets.

Further, submitted that the capital loans have been availed by PSTCL from
banks/financial institutions secutred against hypothecation of future assets. Hence
capital assets created out of capital loans being availed from banks/financial

institutions are not free from encumbrances.

b. As per information and explanation given fixed assets have been physically verified
by the management during the year but no records of such verification has been _
produced before us. In the absence of detail we are unable to verify the %
reasonableness and frequency of physical verification commensurate to size and .
nature of its fixed assets. According to the information and explanations given to

us, no materiat discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. As informed to us, the title deeds of immovable properties procured before

16.04.2010 are not mutated in the name of the company but the ownership of

which accrues to company by operation of law through Transfer scheme notified by
Punjab Government on 24.12.2012. The said title deeds are available with PSPCL
{as the Estate office of erstwhile PSEB which is now functioning under PSPCL after
unbundling and is the custodian of such title deeds).

Further, title deeds of immovable properties acquired by the company after
16.04.2010 are either in the name of the company or on operating lease from

different Panchayats, agreements of which are available with the company.

2. The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable

intervals. The discrepancies noticed have been properly dealt with in the books of

%

accounts.

5%




3.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or wsecured to any companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained 1 ¢ section 189 of the Companies Act,

2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 2 (it} (@) to (c) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no toans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not

commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there

under.

As informed to us, the company has maintained Cost records prescribed by the Central
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act. However, the cost records
are audited by cost auditor; therefore we have not made detailed examination of the

records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and complete.

a. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues inctuding Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, GST, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable except for the TDS defaults of Rs. 8,51,114/- reflecting under
Form 26AS as on 07.09.2018 and Bonus default of Rs, 5,32,349/-.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, GST, duty of customs, duty of excise, value

added tax outstanding on account of any dispute. ilf

1S9




10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LEMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018 &

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture
holders.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer. According to the information and explanation given to us, the money raised by way
of debt instruments and term Loans have been applied for the purpose of which they

were obtained.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

As per natification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5" June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, and Section 197 is not applicable to the Government
Companies. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been discltosed in the Financial

Statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards,

Based upon our examination of the records of the company and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the management, the company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based upon our examination of the records of the company and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the management, the company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with girectors or persons connected with him.
)y .

;
E
5
E
4




16. In our opinion, the company is not reqmred be regisiers .Uﬁétier;fééction 45 1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accord 1

visions of clause 3 (xvi) of the

Order are not applicable to the compah_y.; i

_For M!s RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
" Chartered Accountants

CA. Rohit Goel
Partner

FRN 011106N
M. No, 091756

: Ptace _Péﬁala_
‘Date: 14.09.2018

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018




Annexure-B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

sr.

No.

Directions

Reply

Whether

title/lease deeds for freehold and

the company has clear

'| leasehold respectively? if not please

state the area of freehold and
leasehold Eapd for which title lease
deeds are not available?

As informed to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties procured before 16.04.2010 are not in the
name of the company but the ownership of which
accrues to company by operation of law through
Transfer scheme notified by Punjab Government on
24.12.2012. The said title deeds are available with
PSPCL (as the Estate office of erstwhile PSEB which is
now functioning under PSPCL after unbundling and is
the custodian of such title deeds). Further, title
deeds of immovable properties acquired by the
company after 16.04.2010 are either in the name of
the company or are on operating lease from different
Panchayats, agreements of which are available with

the company,

: Whether there are any cases of

off of
debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the

waiver/write

reasons thereof and the amount

involved.

There is no «case of waiver/write off of

debts/loans/interest etc.

Whether records

maintained for inventories lying with

proper are
third parties & assets received as

gift/grant{s) from Govt. or other

autharities,

No inventories are lying with the third parties & no
assets have been received as gift/grant(s) from Govt.

or other authorities.

Is the system of evacuation of power
commensurate with power available
for transmission with the generating
company? If not, loss,if any, claimed
by the generating company may be

provided/commented.

As informed to us, PSTCL has commissioned adequate
transmission capacity to evacuate the power from
generating stations including those which are drawn
from outside of the state/northern grid. There has
been no claim of loss against PSTCL from any

generating company.

How much transmission loss in excess
of prescribed norms has been incurred
during the year and whether the same

been properly accounted for in the

The transmission loss from April 2017 to March
2018 is 3.118% However, PSERC has allowed a

transmission loss of 2.5% in the Tanff Order of FY

{

SAg
i \a‘on

7 I A
‘@(G& E.)
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books of accounts?

2017-18. (The company has claimed that even
otherwise, the difference between actual loss and the
loss approved by the commission is not required to
be accounted for in the books of accounts as the
corporation has recovered its transmission charges in
full as approved by PSERC on transmission capacity

basis.)

6 | Whether the assets constructed and
completed on behalf of other agencies
and handed over to them has been
properly accounted for in the financial

Yes, However, the amount outstanding as on
31.03.2018 under the head "Receipts for Deposit
Work" Rs. 22,65342/- and under "Receipts for
Contribution Work" Rs. 27,12,06,319/- are against

statements?
the assets constructed/being constructed on behalf of
other agencies.
For M/S RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
;%”7
Plaoe: Patiala CA. Rohit Goel

Date: 14.09.2018

Partner

FRN 011106N
M. No. 091756

PUNJAR STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION UMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018




“Annexure C” to the Independent Awditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PUNJAB STATE
TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED, PATIALA (“the Company”) as on March 31, 2018 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the interpal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

" required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controts over financial reporting was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
fmancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
i o

procedures may deteriorate.

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT RERPORT FOR 21.03.2018
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T ..Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeqqh_'i:e._;nternal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

Statéd _in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/S RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES

CA. Rohit Goel
Partner. .
FRN 011106N. -
M. No. 091756

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31.03.2018 -




ANNEXURE-1 FORMING PART OF MAIN AUDIT REPORT OF PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED AS OM 31°" MARCH 2018

That Company is providing Operation and Maintenance services to 220 KV Ganguwal-Mohali
Transmission Line which is co-owned by UT Chandigarh and PSTCL. During the year under
audit, no bill for such service has been raised and issued to the UT Chandigarh as UT
Chandigarh has intimated that with the introduction of POC {Point of Connection) Regime
from FY 2011-12, they are already making payments to PGCIL for the POC charges on their
total drawl of power as per the account prepared by NLDC Delhi {National Load Dispatch
Centre) resulting into lower revenue. However expenses to maintain such transmission line
have been accounted for in the books of accounts in totality and no separate accounts
have been prepared by the management for such transmission line.

Further, as per accounting policy 2.12 “Revenue Recognition” Income from naturat
mierstate lines to be accounted for in the books of accounts as and when received. For
the recovery of such O&M charges of the above mentioned transmission line, PSTCL has
t=ken up the matter with UT Chandigarh at all levels for settling O&M charges of above

ed transmission line.

g &s per Amended Transfer Scheme 2012, PSTCL has to pay 11.36% share of terminal
payable to employees as per Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer {1

-Amendment) Scheme 2012, As per information available PSPCL provides only 88.64% share
9? the total terminal benefit Liability in respect of pension, gratuity and leave

ashment. As such Ind AS 19 is not applicable to PSTCL in respect of employees working
in PSTCE on deputation/secondment from PSPCL and covered under the Pension Scheme,

no provision has been made in the books of accounts of PSTCL to the extent of PSTCL's
share of progressive funding being 11.36% of actuanial liability on account of terminal
liability. PSTCL has accounted for terminal liability on the principle of 'Pay as you go'
basis amounting to Rs.279,44,82,442/-being 11.36% of total amount as intimated by PSPCL
for FY 17-18.

Services to/from PSPCL like rent of Offices, rent of colonies ete s not accounted for in
the books of accounts up to date. In the absence of information we are unable to
ascertain the effect on statement of profit & loss {including Other Comprehensive Income)

and balance Sheet.

The balances of Creditors are not confirmed. In the absence of information we are unable

to ascertain its effect on statement of profit & loss and balance sheet.

PURIAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED AUDIT REPORT FOR 31,03.2018




Other Non Current Assets include Inter Unit Transfer debit balance of Rs.1.72 Crore (Rs.
1.72 Cr as on 31.03.2017) and Blank U Cheque debltbalanceof Rs 5467 Crore relating to
the period prior to 16/04/2010 are not reconciled and._éffett thereof on Statement of
Profit and Loss and Batance Sheet could not be ascertained. '.

For M/S RAJIY GOEL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

CA. Rohit Goel
Partner

FRN 011106N
M. No. 091756

_Piai:e: Patiala
D_ate: 14.09.2018
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RajivGoel
-~ "Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

: G&ﬁa, Email : rgacadi@gmail.com
A E Web : wwawrgacain

Compliance Certﬁf‘icate =

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Punjab S_tga?té'Transmission Corporation
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018"§h'aéc6rd:ance with the directions/sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143
(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have complied with all the

directions/sub-directions issued to us.

For M/S RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Place: Patiata CA. Rohit Goel
Partner

Date: 14.09.2018
FRN 011106N
M. No. 091756

Chandiparh Oifice : Dainl Ofilee :

2117, Sector 35-C, T-1, 3rd Floor, 4772-73
Chandigarh Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya Gan),

Phone : 0171-2620117 Naw Delhi. Phone : 011-23280071
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Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2018

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

{Amount in Rupees)

1\S}[‘)r. Particulars Note| Figures As at March 31, | Figines As at March 31,
o. No, 2m8 myz
I | ASSETS
1. Non current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 70,67,60,14,939 67,61,01,44,545
(b) Capital work in progress 4&5 5,5048,13,5997 7,91,07,13,027
(¢} Financial Assets
(i} Others 6 2,34,62,515 3,93,%0,719
{d) Other non current assets 7 57,13,01,281 56,60,96,769
Tatal (3+4 & 5+6+7) A 76,77,55,92,732 76,12,63,45,050
2. Cumrent assets
(a) Inventories 8 17,39,32,316 17,99,12,862
(b) Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables 9 3,23,15,82.737 5,84,41,18,393
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 10 9,42,16,531 15,28,092
{iii) Others 1 6,10,54,774 7.13238,767
() Cument tax assets (Net) 12 49,01,97,781 38,84,95,536
{d) Other current assets 13 51,62,566 4,50,77,901
Total (3+0+10+11+12+13) B 4,05,61,46,705 6,53,04,71,551
Grand Total (A+B) 80,83,17,33.437 82,65,68,16,611
X | BQUILY AND LYABILITTES
BQUITY
{a) Equity Share capital 14 6,05,88,34,650 6,05,88,34,650
{t) Other Equity 15 22,58,92.63,461 22,54.89,51,016
Total (14+15) A 28,64,80,98,111 28,60,77,85,666
LIABILITIES
1. Non coxrent liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 16 44,89,20,81,094 43,77,24,06,016
(b} Provisions 17 11,20,12,646 9,38,21,360
{c) Gther non current liabilities 18 31,93,52,874 1,32,90,11,276
Total {16+17+18) B 45,32,34,46,614 45,19,52,38,672
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilittes
(i) Borrowings 19 1,00,64,66.226 2,08,80,94,543
if) Other financial liabilities (other than
(i) o ot i tem (C»( 20 5,36,69,02,951 6.71,50,11,127
(b) Other current liabilities 21 5,16,68,391 4,98,82,269
{c) Provisions 22 32,54,805 B8,03,9M
Total (19+20+21+22) C 6,42.82,92,373 8,85,37,92,273
3. Deferred Revenue 23 43,19,02,339 -
Total D 43,19,02,339 -
Grand Total {A+B+C+D) 80,83,17,39437 82,65,68,16,611
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanied Notes 1 to 60 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behaif of the Board
For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants .
FRIN 0111061 W
(Er. Ajay Kumar Kapur} {A- Venu Prasad)
g Director/ Technical Chairman-cum-Managing
Director
hit Goel
lgRa(;mer ) @ﬁ/ _ﬁ—,’/
l\.i.aNo 091756 ' (Vinod Ba al) goasvir Singsie\zx oy
ce: Patiala Chief Financial Officer my
rISzma: /Lf -4~ W & Py
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CO

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ex

{Amotint in Rupees)
S e | Fotieysmonted | Forheyer e
I fIncome
(a} Revenue from operations 24 11,82,46,31,275 12,43,15,78,564
(b} Other income 25 1,32,42,63,278 32,00,51,852
Total Income A 13,14,88,94,553 12,75,16,30,416
I |Expenzes
(a) Employee benefits expense 26 4,72,17,15,462 4,41,96,13,860
(b} Finance costs 27 5,04,30,31,803 5,07,39,96,19%
{¢} Depreciation, amortization & impairment expenses 28 2,68,83,95,390 2,61,37,43,003
{d) Other expenses
() Repairs & maintenance 29 22,80,86,245 26,05,78,274
(i) Administration & General expenses 30 27.96,80,610 17,97,80,283
(i) ULDC charges 31 10,73,29,588 9,93,22,430
(iv)} Others excpenses/debits 32 3,06,53,250 4,32,56,278
B 13,09,58,92,348 12,69,03,00,416
C 5,00,02,205 6,13,30,000
33 - 1,02,63,800
{6} Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year - 16,76,401
Tetsl Tax Expense D - 1,19,40.201
i T 20} for the period (C-D) E 5,00,02,205 4,93,89,799
| ¥ [Other Comprehensive Income
{2} Itzens that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
~Actuarial Gain/(L.oss) on Gratuity 34 (96,89,760) (15,50,832)
{iier Comprehensive Income F (66,89,760) {15,50,832)
VI [Tofal Comprehensive Income for the period (E + F) 4,03,12,445 4,77,98,957
Eamnings per equily share
Basic & Diluted 48 0.08 0.08

As per our report of even date attached
For Rajiv Goel & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRIN 011106N

ﬁn/\"’//.

{Rohit Goel)
Parmmer

M.Ne 091756
Place: Patiala

Date:)b;‘q‘ Wg

For and on behalf of the Board

/

et
(Er. Alsy Kumar Kapur)

Director/ Technical

O+

(Vinod Bansal)

Chief Financial Officer

(A. Venu Prasad)
Chairman-cum-Managing
Director

&

(Jasvir Singh)
Company Secretary




‘:S:tCN‘I PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

Q‘m‘“ s Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2015
(Amaount in Rupees)
Sr. PARTICULARS Far the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(A) |Cash Flow from Operating Activities
MNet Profit/(Loss) before tax 5,00,02,205 6,13,30,000
Adjustment for:
i|Income from sale of fixed assets (99.35,983) {50,26,874)
{i{Provision withdrawn on unserviceable/ obsolete items - capital (6,17,12,774) (68,49,529)
iif[Provision withdrawn on unserviceable/cbsolete ftems - O4M (41,15,662) {16,79,069)
iv[Provision for Josses under investigation 3.04,71,102 .
v|Provision utilized on difference in value of stock & store (3,66,55,828) -
vi|Provision for ungerviceable & obsolete items - capital - 2,65,70,432
wii|Finance cost 5,04,30,31,803 5,07,39,96,198
viil| Depreclation, Amortization & Impairment Expenses 2,68,83,95,3%0 7,66,4,78,048 2,61,37 43,093 7,70,07,54,251
Operating Profit/{Loss) before working capital changes 7,71,94,80,253 7,76,20,84,251
Adjustment for working capital changes:
{Increase)/Decrease in:
i{Trade receivables 2,61,2535,656 (203,33,51,356)
ii|Inventocies 2,67,52,036 3,60,16,385
tii|Other noa current finandal assets {(excluding provision) (1,45,42.898) {2.35,765)
iv]Other non current assets (52,04,512) 2,01,42,910
¥ |Other carrenit Bnancial assets 1,02,63,993 (1,18,28,952)
iiOther carrent assets 3,99,15335 {4,23,14,036)
JImcorasey{Decreane) in
ﬁ%htﬂdm (including OCT) 85,01,506 4,53,94,228
Prowisicess 24,50,871 274,774
& n cunrent Eabilities {1,00,%6,58,402) 13,41,13,705
=3 camtvend fimancial Kabilities (excluding interest acerued & (61,14,64,186) (14,76,13,398)
s ingey)
cwrent Eabilitien 17,86,122 {2.,58,03,089)
Nt warking capital change 1,06,13,55,521 (2,02,43,14,554)
Cash pemcrabed from operations 8,78,08,35,774 5,73,77,69,657
Tmcowme tax (paid)/ TDS/Refund (Net) (10,17,02,245) (3,35,02,302)
Net Cash from operating activities 8,67,91,33,529 570426735
{® |Cash Flow from investing activities
i |{Increase)/Decrease in:
a|PPE and intangible assets (Net carrying amount + Depreciation) (5,77,79,08,074) (4,94,40,14,782)
b|Capital work in progress including capital stores{(excluding prosivions) 2,46,76,11,804 79,27.48,508
ii |Income on sale of fixed assets 99,35,983 50,726,874
Net Cash used int investing activities {3,/30,03,60,287) {4.14.62,39400)
(C) |Cash Flow from financing activities
i|Finance cost paid after adjustment of interest acaued {5,01,19,09,918) (5,01,84,34,424)
ii|Proceeds from long term borrowings {including current maturities) 10,12,94,50,056 9,39,13,75,798
iii[Repayments from long term borrowings {including current maturities) (9,77,75,40,853) (5,48,63,03,063)
iv]|Proceeds from short term borrowings 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
v|Repayments from short term borrowings {2,08,16,28,717) (1,45,01,71,168)
vijConsumer contribution for creating fixed assets 45,55,44,629 -
Net Cash from financing activities {5,28,60,84,803) 11,56,35,32,857)
(D) |{Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 9,26,88,439 [55.04,902)
{E} iCash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,28,092 70,32,934
(F} [Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No.10) 9,42,15,531 15,28,092
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRIN 011106 /
(Er. Ajay Kumar Kapur) {A. VenuFrisad}
Director/ Technical Chairman-cum-Managing
rd Birector
{Rohit Goel) .
Partner
M.No 091756 {Vinod Bansal} {Jasvir Singh)
Place: Patala Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1 General Information

Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (PSTCL) was incorporated
on April 16, 2010 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Certificate of
commencement of Business was received on the same date from Registrar of
Companies, Chandigarh.

The Government of Punjab restructured the Punjab State Electricity Board
under the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003. In exercise of Powers
conferred by Section 131, 132 and 133 of the Act, the Government of Punjab
made a Scheme called the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer Scheme,
2010 (Transfer Scheme) vide Notification dated April 16, 2010 which interalia
provided for transfer of functions, undertakings assets, properties, rights,
liabilities, obligations, proceedings and personnel of Punjab State Electricity
Board. The Scheme was subsequently amended by State Government by
making a Scheme called the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First
Amendment) Scheme, 2012 which was notified on December 24, 2012.

In exercise of the powers conferred by sub clause 4 of clause 5 of the Transfer
Scheme read with Section 131, 132 & 133 of the Act, the Government of
Punjab transferred and vested the transmission undertaking with Punjab
State Transmission Corporation Limited by way of Notifications No. 1/4/04-
EB/PR/620 & 632 dated December 24, 2012 by vesting the {ransmission
undertaking aggregate value of assets & liabilities of Rs. 4,114.28 crores as on
April 16, 2010 and from the said date, Company is carrying on the business
of transmission of electricity in the State of Punjab and discharging the
functions of State Load Dispatch Centre.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

21  Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

i} Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) (to the extent notified),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the provisions of the
Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable, The Ind AS are prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried
out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards. For all the periods up to and including 31 March 2016, the

RN




NOTES FORMING PART OF

Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generaily
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {to the extent
notified and applicable) read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and
the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable. The
Company followed the provisions of Ind AS 101 in preparing its opening Ind
AS Balance Sheet as of the date of transition, viz. 1 April 2015.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

ii) Basis of Meagsurement

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
under historical cost convention except for certain financial nstruments
(referred in Note 2.23 of Accounting policy) which are measured at fair
values.

iif) Use of estimates and judgment

-4

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS which
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Habilities
and the accompanying disclosure/s, at the end of the reporting period. The
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities in future periods.

iv) Functional and presentation currency

@

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, the national
currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a

The Company has adopted the cost model of recognition under Ind AS 16 to
measure the Property, Plant and Equipment. Consequently, all Property,
Plant and Equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable expenditure to bring




PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

the Property, Plant and Equipment to the location and making it ready for its
intended use.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing
assets/ component are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets/
component removed,/ retired from active use are derecognized.

Spares parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently
which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item. The carrying
amount of spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal. Other
machinery spares are treated as “stores & spares” forming part of the
inventory.

Stand-by equipment are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 16 when they
meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment. Otherwise, such items
are classified as inventory.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

In case of Property, Plant and Equipment 100% funded by consumer
contribution, amount equal to the annual depreciation on such Property,
Plant and Equipment has been transferred from deferred income to
depreciation.

In case of Property, Plant and Equipment part funded by consumer
contribution, proportionate amount of the annual depreciation has been
transferred from deferred income to depreciation and balance depreciation is
transferred to Profit & Loss Account.

In respect of supply-cum-erection contracts, the value of supplies received at
site and accepted is treated as Capital Work-in-progress.

Claims for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are
accounted for on acceptance of claims,

23 Capital work in progress

Projects under which the Property, Plant and Equipment are not yet ready
for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct costs, related
incidental expenses and attributable interest.




Q@%&g PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e All expenditure relating to Capital works of Transmission System
Organization are allocated to the capital projects on pro rata basis.

24  Capital Stores

¢ Materials purchased for capital projects are classified as Capital stores and
these are valued at cost.

25  Depreciation and Amortization

¢ In line with Part B of Schedule II to Companies Act 2013, with effect from
April 01, 2017, depreciation is provided as per PSERC (Terms & Conditions
for determination of Generation, Transmission, Wheeling and Retail supply
Tariff) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time. In accordance with
FSERC Regulations depreciation has been provided on the straight line
method over the useful life of the asset at the rates of depreciation specified
in Appendix H of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms &
Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time.

e The tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated up to 90% of

the original cost after taking 10% as residual value of Property, Plant and
Equipment.
Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 31 March of the year
closing after a period of 12 years from date of commercial operation/put in
use of the asset shall be spread over the balance useful life of the assets as
per PSERC Regulations 2014 as amended from time to time,

¢ Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of
acquisitions/ capitalization by taking the written down value as INR 1/- for
conirol purpose.

e Intangible assets viz computer software and other tangible assets for which
useful life is not determined by CERC/PSERC, are amortised/depreciated
on straight line method at rates specified in Appendix I of Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms & Conditions of Tariff)
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time till PSERC notifies the same.

¢ Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and
Equipment during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from the month of
such addition or as the case may be up to the month in which such Property,
Plant and Equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

° Properiy, Plant and Equipment costing up to Rs. 5,000/~ each are fully
depreciated in the year of acquisition except where specific classification has
been prescribed for the purpose of depreciation unde%.he classification
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment.

Leasehold assets are amortized over the period of lease, including the
optional pericd of lease, as per the terms of the lease agreements.

26 Government Grant/ Assistance

The Company may receive government pgrants/subsidy that require
compliance with certain conditions related to the Company’s operating
activities or are provided to the Company by way of financial assistance on
the basis of certain qualifying criteria.

Government grants/subsidy are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will be able to
comply with the conditions attached to them. These grants/subsidy are
classified as grants relating to assets or revenue based on the nature of the
grant.

Government grants/subsidy with a condition to purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire long term assets are initially recognised as deferred
income. Once recognised as deferred income, such grants are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset. Changes in estimates are recognised prospectively over the
remaining life of the assets.

Grant in the form of revenue grant/subsidy are deferred and recognised in
the statement of profit and loss over the period that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

2.7 Impairment

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalue amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

.Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value

in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.




Qéig PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

o At the end of each reporting pericd, the company reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible, intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indicaton exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order o

determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any).

2.8 Leages

° Lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantally all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership, A lease is classified as an operating
Iease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership.

As a lessee

¢ Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception date af the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periedic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

e Operating lease payments are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Ag a lessor

e Lease income from operating leases is recognized in income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term of relevant lease.

29 Borrowing costs

e Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred
in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

= General and specific borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective asset.

e A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time fo get ready for its intenided use or sale.




PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

» Investment income earmed on the temporary investment of specific

borrowings pending theijr expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that an entity borrows funds generally and uses them for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the entity shall determine the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The borrowing cost is
capitalized on the basis of weighted average formula as under:-

a) Average of total opening and closing balance of CWIP

b} Average of opening and closing outstanding loans for capital works
c) Interest paid and provided for the year on loans for capital works
d) Capitalization of borrowing cost=cxa / b.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

210 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost determined on weighted average
basis or net realizable value.

The cost of inventories comprise of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

The costs of purchase consist of the purchase price including duties and
taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the
taxing authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure directly
attributable to the acquisition.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores
and spares is ascertained on review and provided for.

211 <Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

212 Revenue recognition

Transmission income is accounted for as and when accrued on the basis of
tariff orders notified by Punjab State Electricity Regulatory Commission.
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%’-@ PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORFORATION LIMITED
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e Income from open access comsumers is accounted for on the basis of
Regulations read with the Tariff Orders notified by Punjab State Eleciricity

Regulatory Commission.
o Income from natural interstate lines is accounted for on actual receipt basis.

o Other income is recognized on accrual basis except when ultimate realisation
of such income is uncertain,

e Late payment surcharges, liquidated damages/warranty claims and Interest
on advances to suppliers are accounted for on actual receipt basis.

e Value of waste and scrap is accounted for as and when sold,

e Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
recefvable.

Intterest Income

e Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and the rate applicable, using the effective interest rate

method (EIR}.,

e Interest income accrued on staff loans and advances are provided on accrual
basis. Interest is recovered after recovery of principal amount.

213 Expense

e All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis except leave iravel
concessions, medical reimbursements, TA/DA claims, dearness allowance
and arrears of salary which are accounted for on payment basis in the year
these are paid.

'

2,14 Employee Benefits

¢ Employees working in PSTCL on deputation / secondment from PSPCL
either are covered under the Pension Scheme or NPS Scheme.

e Pursuant to the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendment)
Scheme 2012, there shall be common Employee Benefit Trusts for Pension,
Gratuity and Leave Encashment for both PSTCL and PSPCL which shall be
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progressively funded by PSPCI. & PSTCL respectively, as decided by Punjab
State Electricity Regulatory Commission, in the ratio of 88.64 : 11.36 over a
period of 15 Financial Years commencing from 1st April, 2014. The terminal
benefits Lability accruing during the period of progressive funding, and
thereafter, shall be shared in the same ratio by the both corporations. The
actual amount of pension, gratuity and leave encashment paid/to be paid on
and with effect from 16th April, 2010 to 31st March, 2014 shall be shared by
the PSPCL and PSTCL, in the ratio of 88.64 : 11.36 on yearly basis.

» Provisions towards Gratuity and Leave Encashment in respect of employees
recruited by the company are made based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

o ¢ Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in

. the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.

’ Remeasurement gains and losses are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

i e Short term employee benefits obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expenses as the related services provided. A Hability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term employee
benefits if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amournt as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

215 Income taxes

+ Income tax expense for the year represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

« Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/
loss for the year calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

e Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purpose.

o Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences.

s Deferred tax assets are generally recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets
can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
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probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

¢ Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent
tax expenses is chargeable from the beneficiaries in future years on actual

payment basis,

e Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they
relate fo items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,
216 Farnings per Share

* The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises of the
net profit / loss after tax. Basic earnings per equity share is computed by
dividing net profit / loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

¢ Diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding
during the year. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares,
as appropriate.

217 Provisions

e A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (Legal
or Constructive) as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made.

218 Contingent liabilities

o Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in Notes when the
company has possible obligation due to past events and existence of the
obligation depends upon occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not
wholly within the control of the company.

e Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to determine whether
outflow of economic resources have become probable. ¥ the outflow
becomes probable then relative provision is recognized in the financial
statements.
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2.19 Contingent Assets

» Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in Notes which usually
arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits.

» Contingent assets are assessed continuously to determine whether inflow of
economic benefits becomes virtually certain, then such assets and the relative
income will be recognised in the financial statements

2.20 Segment Reporting

s Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decdision maker. The Chairman
cum Managing Director ({CMD) of the Company has been identified as the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS-108,

“Operating Segments.”

e The Company is primarily engaged in single segment business of
transmission of Power and State load distribution center functions. There is
no reportable primary segment identification in accordance with the Ind AS-

e Material Prior peried(s) exrors are corrected retrospectively by restating the
comparative amounts for the prior periods to the extent practicable along
with change in basic and diluted earnings per share. However, if the error
relates to a period prior to the comparative period, opening balances of the
assets, liabilities and equity of the comparative period presented are
restated.

222 Insurance claims
s Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted /

expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be
measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

{:

223 Financial instruments

Financial assets:
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially recognised at fair
value and directly atiributable transaction costs towards acquisition or issue
of the financial asset are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial
recognition except for financial assets which are recognised at fair value
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through profit and loss.
Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

« amortised cost, where the financial assets are heid solely for collection of
cash flows arising from payments of principal and/or interest

o fair value through other comprehensive income (FVITOCI), where the
financial assets are held not only for collection of cash flows arising from
payments of principal and/or interest but also from the sale of such assets.
Such assets are subsequently measured at FVOCI,

o fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the financial assets are not
dlassified either at amortised cost or FVTOCL

Financial assets include trade receivables, advances, security deposits, cash and
cash equivalents ete and are classified for measurement at amortised cost.

Management determines the classification of an asset at inifial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired.

s Impairment:
The Company at each reporting date tests a financial asset or a group of
financial assets (other than financial assets held at fair value through profit
or loss) for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort, Expected credit losses are assessed and
impairment loss recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset is

significantly increased.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

e Derecognition:
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash
flows from the financial assets expires, or {ransfers the contractual rights to

receive the cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities:
Borrowings, trade payables or other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at the value of the respective coniractual obligations. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method.
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¢ Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or

- the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the
Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPOSATION LIMITED

Note 33

i

Land and land rights include the land for which title deeds are not In the name of Comp

y, but thae

leipp of wivich accrues 30 PSTCL by operation of law through

Transfer scheme notified by Purjab Government on 24122012 Further, all these lnnuls are in pesceful possession of PSTCL and imvestment hos already been made on
such lands for crestion of assets which are owned by PSTCL. Bat the title deeds of land vested willh PSTCL se wvniialde with PSPCL {Title deeds are with the Eatate

office of erstwhile PSEB I functioning under PSPCL). The compary has details/deedn in respect of land pancassed sifier 16042010,

il The accounting units of the Company are maintaining Fleed Assot Registers, The Fixed Aseet Register categorywine, Jocatiorwise and valuewise has alio been prepared
at Carporate Level However, the preparation of quantitative detail of each assets with value i ander progeems.
; 1ii FPhysical verification of the Fixed Assets have been carried out at the accounting unit Jevel a5 on FLI 2018 mod no discripencies have been reported.
b tr  Detalls of sascts sold/diaposed off during FY 2017-18 Is as under:
!‘5‘,:‘ Particolam Gross Value Acc. Depre. Net Cuerylog Valwe
Asaets sold during the year 61,90,183 35,36,522 26,53,661
Total 61,90,163 3536522 26,53 661
= v Details of Net Addition of PPE - Add/ilon/transterred/scid during ¥y 201718 is as under:
Sz, Particulars Gross carrying value Accumulated Deprecialion + Impatrment Net Carrylng Value
Ma
‘::. Pixed Amsetn - In use
1 |Opening balance as on 01.04.2017 89,00,30,79,399 21,47, 794402 67.52,51,34,967
2 jAddition made during the year 5 78,30,53,024 2,67,86,82.869 310,43,70,155
3 |Transfer from Assets et in use 9,93,25,732 523,656,332 4,6%,60A00
4 [Trensler to Assets not In use {25,37,58,908) {12.6516517) (12.72,82,391)
5 |[Met Addition in fieed aysets in use 5.62.85,79.843 2,604531,684 3,02,40,48,164
& | Asscts nold,/ divposed off during the BE.02.459) {3,17,570) {25,84.859)
yc:ﬂ-sh-m-mmm 94,62,81,56,788 24.08.13.58.546 70,54,67,98 242
B | Fbwed Asecte - Not In wae (Tdle + Damaged)
1 {Opessay balance as on DLOL2027 31,09,70,247 22,59,60,669 850,09,578
2 iTovoxier from foaed st - inos 25,37,58,908 12,65,16,517 12,72.82.351
3 [ Tawwpbeomnd b Foerl atmcts - in e §.53.35,733) (5.23,65,332) {£,63,60,400)
& Nat Addibios s foend amets not n ose 1544,73,176 7A151,185 805,271,991
5 it yubl/ diwpowent off during the (25,87,72%) (24,18,952) 8771
Sp—
| & Eimumaiommont bacleexd ducciont the rear - 3.58,46,100 (3,58 45,100)
ey bralesuct o vt X100 2018 46,2755,69% 3,359,000 123218987
Thetall an am SLES. 2008 95,00,09,12, 487 24,41,A8,97 548 70,67.50,14.939
wi Mt Conh ficrw (i 3d fn PPH and Intangible Assets: 5.77,79,08,074 (5,.78,30,53,024 {Addition) - 26,53,661 (W.D.V. of assets sold) - 24,91,269 (Dep. Capitalized)
i Dickalle of Jag ¢ Lose locladed In the A lated Depreclation as on 31,00.2{18:
Sc Particulare Amourt
Mo
1 {Opening balance of impai 1 loas s on OLOL 2007 501,10,213
2 |Add: Impeirment kess booked during the year 3/58,46,100
3 |Less: Revernal of Impairment losa during the year -
4 [Tetal Impairment loss booked as on 31,03.2018
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[ i ey
Note & : Capital Work in Propress (Amount in Rupees)
Sr. . As at 31st March, | As at 31st Mareh,
Particul Accomnt Code
No. cuase 2018 2017
1 [Capital works in progress 14 4,50,91,24,535 5,42,47,03,458
Contracts in progress ;
11400 KV Rajpura Project 15.102 80,49,768 1,01,29,75,358
1i{460 KV Talwandi Sabo Project 15.103 - 21,14,42,742
3 iMaterials issued to SuppHers/Contractors 25 8,32,961 28,65,836
Total 4,51,80,07,264 6,65,19,87,924
Note 41 : Details of capital work in progress {Amount in Rupees)
Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2018 2017
Opening Capital work in progress 6,65,19,87,924 7,61,64,92,987
Add|Addition during the year including capitalization of interest, employee cost &
other expenses 3,51,01,40,995 4,00,19,80,034
Less| Transferred to Fixed Assets during the year 5,64,41,21,655 4,96,64,85,097
Closing capital work in progress® 4,51,80,07,264 6,65,19,87,924
* The Capital work in progress and Contract in progress includes capitalisation of interest of Rs. 39,75,59,007/- {on money

borrowed and utilised for construction of the transmission projects), establishment cost of Rs. 39,08,16,885/-, R&M expenses
of Rs. 39,16,422/-, A&G expenses of Rs.4,85,04,846/- and Depreciation of Rs.24,91,289/- during FY 2017-18.

HNote= 5 : Capital Stores (Amount in Rupess)
g; Particulars Account code Asat 3;;;:& arch, | Asat %W
1 |Stores & Spares
ijMaterials at stores 22601 to 22.619 97,69,25,059 1,30,54 5721
tiiMaterials at site 22,640 1,11,89,959 1,70,06,791
iii{ Materials at estimated relisable value of stock lost in fire 2,770 7,17,750 -
Total Stores (A) 93,88,32,048 1,32,24,63,592
2 |Less: Provisions for
ifObsolete items 22.505 (1,65,075) (5.78,65,864)
H|Unservicable items 22.906 (18,61,040) (58,73,025)
Total Provisions (B) (20,26,115} (6,37,38,889)
Wet Stores  {A-B) 98,68,06,733 1,25,87,25,103

Note5.1:

i Physical verification of the Stores have been carried out at the unit level on 31.03.2018 and no discripency has been reported,

ii Provision for obsolete items of Rs.5,78,65,864/-made during previous year reduced to Rs.1,65,075/ - during current year.

iii Provision for unservicable items of Rs.58,73,025/- made during previous year reduced to Rs.18,61,040/ - during current year.

MNote 52:
Provision in respect of obsolete & unservicable items have been made after considering the estimated relisable value as on

31.03.2018 as per the directions issued by CAG vide Mangement letter no. Audit/ AA/PSTCL/16-17 {18-19)/103 dated
25.04 2018.

I Gross Amount of Capital work in progress & capital stores (Mote 4+5) i 5,50,&8,13,997! 7,91,07,13,027}
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Note 6 : Other Non Current Financial Assets

(Amount in Rupees)

Sr. . Ag at 31st March, | As at 31st March
Parti ’ ’
No. cularg Account code 2018 2017
Amount recoverable from staff 28360 2,32,825 1,93,283
Other Receivables 28.868 2,32,29,690 3,91,97,436
Amount under investigation 28.870 3,08,59,459 3,88,397
Total A 543,22014 3,97,79,116
Less : Provision for losses under investigation B 28.951 (3,08,59,499) (3.88,397)
Net (A-B) 2,34,62,515 3,93,93,719
7 : Other Non Current Assets {Amount in Rupees)
. As at 31st March, | As at 31st Maxch,
Particulars Account code 2018 2017
Unsecured considered Good
Deposits/Securities 28.914 & 28.919 73,20,297 21,15,785
Inter Unit Transfer prior to 16.04.2010
i|Inter Unit Transfer {prior to 16.04.2010) 30-37 1,72,41,808 1,72,41,808
ii|Blank U Cheque (prior to 16.04.2010) 35000 54,67,39,176 54,67,39,176
Grand Total 57,13,01,281 56,60,96,769
8 : Inverdories {Amount in Rupees)
. As at 31st Marxch, | As at 31st March,
Particulars Account code 2018 2017
Stores & Spares (O&M)
Materials at stores 22.621 to 22.639 16,33,25,831 19,74,01,863
Materials at site 22.650 1,34,78,306 6154310
Total Stock & Spares (A) 17,68,04,137 20,35,56,173
Less: Provisions for
i| Difference in value of stock & spares 22,901 - (1.66,55,828)
ii|Obsolete items 22,902 {50,494) (31,24,944)
ii| Unservicable items 22.903 (28,21,327) {38,62,539)
Total Provisions (B) (28,71,821) {2,36,43,311)
Net Stores & Spares (A-B) 17,39,32,316 17,99.12,862

Note 8.1:
i Physical verification of the Stores have been carried out at the unit level on 31.03.2018 and no discripency has

been reported.

ii Rs.1,66,55,828/- on account of difference in value of stock & spares has been written off and provision already
created in the FY 2013-14, for the same has been withdrawn in FY 2017-18.

iii Provision for obsolete items of Rs.31,24,944/-made during previous year reduced to Rs.50,494/- during current

Yyear.

iv  Provision for unservicable items of Rs.38,62,539/ - made during previous year reduced to Rs.28,21,327/- during

current year.

Note 8.2:
Provision in respect of obsolete & unservicable items have been made after considering the estimated relisable
value as on 31.03.2018 as per the directions issued by CAG vide Mangement letter no. Audit/AA/ PSTCL/16-17

(18-19)/103 dated 25.04,2018.
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ote 92 Trade Recefvables {Ammmen? i Fenpes)
f‘.‘; Pastleslars Account Codef  An ot ot March, 205 £in 20 Xoxt By, TNLT
1 |Sundry debtora 238
Upeegured and consldered Goed
§iExceeding Six months 24,53,32745 24,53,32246
ii|Others 2,98,62,50,451 5,59,87,86,147
Tetal 3231582737 55441,18,393

Nole 9.1t In the opinion of Company, tnade receivables as staied in the accounts will be realized in the ordinary course of Businesa.
Note 9.2: The detafled breakup of trade receivables 82 at Mareh 31, 2018 sre 5 under:

(Atmcunt in Rupees)

gsz_ Particulsrs Account Code]  Exceeding 6 Months Others Total
#{PSPCY - Transmission chargen 2,891 - | 296,95,02.000 | 2.96,95,02,000
HIPSPCL - SLDC charges 23.832 -] LEADOO0 | 1,64,00,000
ii|Open Accens Customers 23801 432246 348491 780,737
iv{Government of Punjab (GOP)* 23.833 24,49,00,000 -] 24,49,00,000
Total} 23,53,32.246 | 2,98,6250.491 | 3231582737

Note 10: Cash & Cagh equivalents

* The amount recoverable from GOP is on account of carrying

cost as decided by PSERC in different tariff orders.

{Amount in Rupeesk

:; Particalzr Accountcode]  An at Fiat March, 205 A3 at F1af Marchy, 207

1 e Bk 2;111231& Py p—

2 [Pogtege gtemys bn bard 24120 47,498 30,482
Tatal 94216531 35,75,092

PEte 3 : Dl b repect of smendment of Ind AS - 7 regarding changing In tiabilities arloing in finznclng sctivities:
Fip g promck 44 A to 45 E inserted vide notification no. G.5.R.238(E) dated 17th March, 2017 - Changes in finaneinl lisbiliies arising from cesh end non-cash changes

e 2 i
(Amountin Rumees]
= Recrdved Repayroent
g Psimin Afon 3LEAINT Azeadimaams
3 Caah Non Cash Tolal Cashy Noa Cash Total
e G st (Roarlo2 1 msssagsam| 1012650008 WAL0E | 10120450056 ] omrse0ess -1 emrmamen| smrzrasm
| Pmmm- O kot i (ReferNote Mo, | o0 nonnin [ 1aneac00 -l sooosoemn|  zmsemar -] aemsmrrr] voasseazs
: oot ity - PEPCL Lown (Fefer ot PP B i - -| 4108 941,00 oo
it mrzzeasz| 112650090 1080 | 1325850088 | 1Lesmesm | marses | mssnansss ] osasemem
Rpe 1 2 Othar Current Flaancial Assets {Amaunt in Rupees)
: Pasticularn Accountcode]  Asat 31k March, 2016 As at 318t March, 2017
1 jAdvances to Suppliers/ Contractors (O&M) | 261 t026.8 3,56,837 5773
2 [Recetvables fom PGCIL 251 5,02,62,805 5,083,707
3 jAmount recoverable from Employees 284 89,23,235 89,65,732
4 jAmount recoverable from Suppliers 224810 14,91,8% 24,79555
Tota] 6,10.54,774 7,13,38,767
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T Nele122:
: i hncome tax assessments upto the FY 2014-15 (AY 2015-16} has been completed.

yslel

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

e T
Note 12 : Current Tax Assets (Net) {Amount in Rupees)
. Accommt | As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Sr. No. Particulars Code 2018 2017
1 Advance Income tax/Tax deducted at source 24 50,04,61,581 39,87,69,336
2 Less: Provision for Income Tax 46,800 (1,02,63,800) (1,02,63,800)
Total 49,01,97,781 38,84,95,536
Note 12.1 : Detail of current tax & liabilities
Financial . As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Year Particulars 2018 2017
201516 |TDS/TCS 1,33,978 19,17,77,371
Total Tax paid 1,33,978 19,17,77,371
less:[Provision for income tax - -
Current Tax Assets A 1,33,978 19,17,77,371
20617 |TDS/TCS (AY 2017-18) 20,69,81,965 20,69,81,965
less:{Provision for income tax 1,02,63,800 1,02,63,800
Current Tax Assets B 19.67,18,165 19,67,18,165
2017-18 [TDS/TCS (AY 2018-19) 29,33,45,638
less:{ Provision for income tax -
Carrent Tax Assets C 29,33,45,638
Total Current Tax Assets (Net} (A+B+C) 49,01,97,781 348,84,95,536

ii During FY 2017-18, a refund of Rs, 19,16,43,393/- on account of TDS/TCS pertaining to the FY 2015-16 (AY 2016
17} out of Rs. 19,17,77,371/- has been received alongwith interest of Rs. 1,91,64,327/- on the basis of e-processing
of return on dated 23.11.2017. An amount of Rs, 1,33,978/- on account of TCS is still pending as receivable, the
matier of which will be taken up during assessment proceeding of FY 2015-16.

Note 13 : Other Current Assets (Amount it Rtipees)
Sr. No. Particulars A::?::“ As at 321;;81\r!arch, As at Szlgi;ﬂarch,
1 Prepaid expenses 28.820 33,35,566 4,30,70,600
TA/Medical Advances 27202 & 18,27,000 20,07,301
27.207
Total 51,62,566 4,50,77,501




Mete 14 : Equity share capital

PUNJARB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

{Amount in Rupees)

fff)" Particulars Accosnit]  Asat 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
{z) jAuthoriged
3,00,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs, 10/- each
30.00,00.,00,000 30,60.00,00,000
Total 30,00,00,00,000 30,00,00,00,0001
{b) {Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
60,58,83,465 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully 545
paid up ’ 6,05,88,34,650 6,05,88,34,650
Total 6,05,88,34,650 6,05,88,34,650

Neote 14.1: The company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each per share. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. )

Note 14.2 : Reconciliation of Shares outstanding

S:;.. Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2018 Asg at 31st March, 2017
Number Amount Number Amount
1 [Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 60,56,83,465| 6,05,88,34,650f 60,58,83,465] 6,05,58,34,650
2 |Shares issued during the year . - - -
3 i5hares bought back during the year - - - -
4 }5hares cuistanding at the end of the vear 60,58,83,465] 6,05,88,34,650] 60,58,83,465{ 6,05,88,34,650
Tgte 14.3 : Share holders holding more than 5% equity shares of the company
: As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
C3 B N ¢ Sharehold Class of
Bl b vame of vharehslder Share No. of P Ne. of
; 3 Shares ercentage Shares Perventage
1 {Governer of Punjab Equity | 60,58,33,465 g9.99 £0,58,32,465 $8.99
Total 6058,33,465 99,99 60,58,33,465 99.99
MNote 144 : Details of other Share holdings
Sr, Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
No. No. of Shares No. of Shares
1 {Sh. Karan Avtar Singh, IAS 5,000 5,000
2 |Sh. Anirudh Tewari, IAS 5,000 0
3 [Sh. A. Venu Prasad, IAS, Principal Secy/Power 5,000 5,000
4 [Sh. Ravinder Kumar Kaushik 5,000 0
5 {Sh. Krishan Kumar, JAS 5,000 5,000
6 Sh.Vivek Pratap Singh, JAS 2,500 5,000
7 |Sh. A, Venu Prasad, IAS, CMD, PSTCL 5,000 5,000
8 |5h. A. Venu Prasad, IAS, CMD, PSPCL 5,000 o
9  {Sh, Kumar Amit, IAS 2,500 o
10 {Sh. Gurpreet Singh Khaira, Municipal Commissioner 2,500 0
11 [Sh. A.S.Miglani, IAS, Divisional Commissioner 2500 o
12 |Sh. Subash Chand Arora, Director/Fin., PSPCL 2,500 5,000
13 1Sh. Jatinder Kumar Goyal, Director/F&C, PSTCL 2,500 0
14 {Sh. Daljit Singh Mangat, IAS 0 5,000
15 [Sh. Satish Chandra, IAS 0 5,000
16 |Er. Karan Deep Chaudhri, CMD, PSPCL 0 5,000
17 {Sh. Umakanta Panda, Director/F&C, PSTCL 0 5,000
‘Total 50,000

All the above share holders are nominees of Punjab Government.
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Note 15 : Other Equity

-._Sw‘tsc.,l PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED
St ol

(Antount in Rupees)

Sr. Particulars Account{ As at 31st March, { As at 31st March,
No. Code 2018 2017
1 {General Reserve
Opening Balance 56.1 2,00,05,121 2,00,05,121
Add : Addition during the year - -
Less : Utilized/ transferred during the year - -
Closing balance A 2,00,05,121 2,00,05,121
2 |Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 56.2 18,62,10,78,408 18,62,10,78,408
Add : Addition during the year - -
Less : Utilized/ transferred during the year - -
Closing balance B 18,62,10,78,408 18,62,10,78,408
3 |Profit & Loss Account (Surplus Account)
Opening Balance as per Profit & Loss Account 3,90,76,67 A7 3,86,00,68,520
Add :Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax for the current year 5,00,02,205 4,93,89,799
Add: Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised (96,89,760) {15,90,832)
in surplus balance- Remeasurement of Actuarial
Closing balance of Profit & Loss Account C 3,94,81,79,932 3,90,78,67 487
Total (A+B+C) 22,58,92,63,461 22,54,89,51,016
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION COR

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Date of Dateof | Acgount| Non Current Mon Coxrent
Availment | Matmity of | Code | Liabilidesasat | Liabilities as at
of Loan Loan 31st March, 2018 | 31et March, 2017
A Secmred
1 Term Loans from Life Insurance Corp. of India
1j11% (Fixed) payable annually secured against 16.04.2010 | 15.07.2018 | 52501 - 11,13,33,000
Hypothecation of assets & Default Escrow
Total . 11,15.33,000
2 ;Term Loans from Rural Elecirifieation Corporation
#1825% 0 12.25% p.a. secured against Punjab State 16042010 | 31.08.2019 | 53.31 - 2,39,19,0646
Government Guarantee & Default Escrow
H[1025% to 1225% p.a. secured against Punjab State 16.04,2010 [15.02.2020t0| 53.301 44,94,01,409 72,66,32,693
Government Guarantee, Hypothecation of assets & 15,02.2021
Default Escrow
ii1{10.25% 0 12.25% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 16042010 |15.06.2022t0} 53.301 31,1B,80,268 38,98,50,334}
assets & Default Escrow 15.08.2022
iv{10.25% t0 12.25% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of [ 07.09.2010 t0 [ 15.09.2028 tv| 53.301 25,60,95,23,285 25,71,45,74,811
assets & Default Escrow 31.03.2018 | 15.03.2036
v[11 10 12 25% secured against Punjab Govl Guarantee & 18.06.2015 0:£.04.2018 5330 - 24,99,99,998
Defenlt Escronw
i 10.255% 10 10.50% secured against Punjab Govt Guarantes| 09.09.2016 09/2026 53.301 2,00,60,00,000 2,00,66,60,000
& Delznlt Escrow
v2: H1I5% 10 1225% p.a secured against Hypothecation of | 20.02.2013 to | 15.02.2081 to] 53.201 7.28,88,471 6,34,74.249
szmmeis & Diefamlt Escrow (SLDC 31.03.2016 | 15.03.2086
: ‘Total 28,44,37,93,433 29368451151
3 | Term Loom froes NABARD
PARDE 0 10.25% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of | 11.02.2015 to | 01.04.2018 to | 53.400 1860256277, 1,97,58,55 000}
zmmnty & Defanlt Escyow 31,03.2018 | 31.03.2032
‘4 {Tesen Loan from PFC
iﬁ.% to 10.00% secured against Punjab Govt. Guarantee | 10.10.2016 2027-28 53.801 5,00,00,00,000 3,00,00,00,000
& Defanlt Escrow
il{9.70% secured against Morigage of Assets & Default 28.03.2018 04/2026 53.801 4,85,57,00,608 -
Escrow
Tatal 9.95.57,00,000 3,00,00,00,008
5 Term Loan from State Bank of India
MCLR + 2.70% Medium Term secured against Punjab 05.01.2015 | 31102019 | 53.501 7,71,73,268 27,85,34,969
Govt. Guarantee, stock & Default Bgcrow
6 {Term Loan from Bank of India
i|MCLR + 1.90% secured against Punjab Govt. Guarantee 30129014 | 31122024 | 53.510 68,74,54,230 | B1,24,95,261
& Default Bscrow
i|[MCLR + 1.90% secured against Punjab Govt, Guarantee 30.,12.2015 | 31.122025 | 53.510 2,03,11,36,982 2,34,37,40,855
& Default Escrow
Total 2.71,85,91,212| 3,15,62,57,120
7 |Term Loan from UCO Bank
MCLR + 0.10 secured against Punjab Govt, Guarantee & | 20112017 | 11/2020 | 53.509 83,33,24,795 -
Blefanlt Ferrow
Total Secured borrowings {A) 43,96,38,35,986]  37,69,16,11,260)
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Note 16 : Borrowings - Contd...

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

(Amount in Rupees)

St. ) Date of D:mz of Account N on Current Non Current
No. Particulars Availment of | Maturity of Code Liabilities as at | Liabilities as at
Loan Loan 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
B |Unsecured
1 |Term Loan from PSPCL
{{PNB Base Rate + 1.50% p.a. 23.03.2011 | 28.03.2018 | 53.811 - 4,95,57,45,100
ii} Interest free (11KV VCB) 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2027 | 53.811 3,00,47,685 2,71,06,617
Total 3,00,47,685 4,95,28,51,717
2 |Term Loan from GPF Trust 16.04.2010 | 31.03.2023 | 57.120 87,81,94.423 1.09,77,43,039
Total Unsecured borrowings (B} 90,52.42.108 6.08.05,94.756
Grand Total (A + B) 44,89,20,81,004]  43,77.24,06,016
Note 16.1:
i Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 100.20 crore at Sr. No. 1 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 100.20 crore.
ii Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 5543.63 crore at Sr, No. 2 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 4113.44 crore.
ifi Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs, 317.36 crore at Sr, No. 3 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 214.61 crore.
iv. Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 995,57 crore at 51, No. 4 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 995.57 crore,
v Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 60.00 crore at St. No. 5 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 60.00 crore,
vi Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs.350.00 crore at Sr. No. 6 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 350.00 crore.
vii Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 100.00 crore at Sr. No. 7 loan availed upto 31.03.2018 is Rs. 100.00 crore.
Neabe 162 -

Regrtration of charge, against term loan from PFC - Rs. 4,95,57,00,000 availed against immovable assets, is yet to be created

(oo be created within six months),

© .. Nete 363 : Loan from PSPCL (11KV VCB)
Tnderest free loan received from PSPCL (11KV VCB) amounting to Rs.7,59,28,898/-. This loan is shown at its fair value of Rs.
3,0047,685/- and remaining amount of Rs. 4,58,81,213/- shown as Deferred Income/liability under non current liabilities

{Note no. 18).

Note 16.4 : Term Loan from GPF Trust

Loan of Rs. 173.25 crore and infterest thereon upto 31.03.2013 of Rs. 46.30 crore, total amounting to Rs, 219.55 crore was
parked as per the Transfer Scheme, 2012 (first amendment) and is being paid in 10 yearly instalments starting from

01.04.2013. .

Note 17 : Provisions (Amount in Rupees)
122_ Particulars Aéc:;:t Asat S;E;sisi\r‘larch, Agat 321;;;\rlarch,
1 |Provision for Gratuity 44.161 4,38,39,773 2,41,07,272

2 [Provision for Leave encashment 44162 6,81,72,873 6,97,14,108
Total 11,20,12,646 9,38,21,380

company has been made during the year as per the valuation report of Actuary.

Note 17.1 : As per Ind AS-19 provision towards gratuity and leave encashment in respect of the employees directly recruited by the

Note 18 : Other non current liabilities {Amount int Rupees)
. . Account | As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
132 Parficulars Code 2018 2017

1 {Deposits for :-

ij Deposit works 47,305 22 65,342 50,92,18,198

ii}Contribution works 47.309 27,12,056,319 77,09,70,797

2 |[Deferred income/liability - PSFCL loan. 53.861 4,58,81,213 4,88,22,281

Total 31,93,52,874 1,32,90,11,276 |




PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION C

ATION LIMITED

(Amount in Rupees)

Note 19: Borowings
Date of Dzte of
Sr. Particulars Availment of S Ascoum? | As at 3%st March, | Asg at 31t March,
No. 5 code 20618 2017
Loan Loan
Secured
1 Cash credits from SBI
Cash credits limit Rs. 200 crores, 0972017 Renewable{ 501 64,66,226 1,08,80,94,943
MCLR + 250% secured againsi Annuaily
Stock/Debtors & Default Escrow
2 {Loan from FFC
10.25% to 10.50% net of rebate, 09/2017 09/2018 | 53.801 1,00,00,00,600 1,00,00,00,000
secured against default Escrow
(Sanctoned & availed limit Rs,
100.00 crore)
Total 1,@,64.65.225 2'08:893%7%3
Nete Ne. 1901

Rs. 100 crore is availed from PFC and outstanding as on 31.03.2017 was repaid and new loan of Rs. 100 crores has been

availed in FY 2017-18.
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

Note 20 : Other Cuirent Financial Liabilities (Amaunt in Rupees)
Sr. Date of Date of
No. Particulars Availment {Maturity of] Code | A8 At 31st March, 2018 § As at 31at March, 2017
nE T aan T naw
gterm borrowings
A [Secured
1 |Term Loans from Life Inaurance Corp. of India
ij11% (Fixed) payable annually secured against
Purtab Government Guarantee, Hypothecation of | 16.04.2010 | 15.072017 | 52.501 - 11,70,00,000
assels & Default Escrow
ii{11% (Fixed) payable annually secured against
Hypothecation of assets & Default Escrow 16.042010 { 15.07.2018 { 52.501 11,13,33,000 11,13,33,000
Total T1,13,33,000 2283,33,000
2 Term Loans from Rural Electrification
Corporation
i[10.25% to 1225% p.a. secured against Punjab State | 16.04.2010 | 31.03.2019 | 53.301 2,39,19,672 3,51,26,350
Government Guarantee & Default Escrow
1i110.25% to 12.25% p.a. secured against Punjab State | 16.04.2010 | 15022020 | 53.301 27,72.31,285 27,7231,285
Government Guarantee, Hypothecation of assets & to
Default Escrow 15.02.2021
it [10.25% to 12.25% p.a. secured against 16.04.2010 § 15.06.2022 | 53.301 7,79,70,066 7,79,70,066
Hypothecation of assets & Default Escrow to
15.08.2022
iv|10.25% to 1225% p.a. secured against 07.09.2010 | 15.09.2028 | 53.301 2,16,41,35,745 2,03,00,00,000
Hypothecation of assets & Default Escrow to to
31.03.2018 | 15.03.2036
v{12.25% secured against Punjab Govt. Guarantee & | 24.09.2014 | 30.092017 | 53.301 - 49,99,99,995
Defaalt Escrow
w111 b0 1225% secured against Punjab Govt, 18.06.2015 | 04.04,2018 | 53.301 24,99,99,998 1,00,00,00,000
& Defanlt Fscrow
FHL25% w0 1225% p.a secured againgt 20.02.2013 | 15.022031 | 53.301 32,24,039 35,00,000
Hypolhecation of assets & Default Escrow (SLDC) to to
31.03.2018 | 15.03.2036
Total 2.79.64,80, 3.92,38,27. 696
3}  [Teom Y.oan from State Bank of India
MCLR + 270% Medium Term secured against 05.,01,2015 | 31.10.2019 | 53.501 16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
Purjab Govt. Guarantee, stock & Default Escrow
4 [Term Loan from NABARD
10.00% to 1025% p.a. secured against 11022015 § 01.04.2018 | 53400 15,36,64,952 -
Hypothecation of assets & Default Escrow o to
31.03.2018 1 31.03.2032
5 [|Term Loan from Bank of India
ijMCLR + 1.90% secured against Punjab Govt.
Guarantee & Default Escrow 30.12.2014 | 31.12.2024 { 53.510 12,50,00,000 12,56,00,000
ii|MCLR + 1.90% secured against Punjab Govt.
Guarantee & Default Escrow 30.12.2015 | 31.12.2025 | 53.510 31,25,00,000 15,62,50,000
Total] 43,75,00,000 28,12.50,000¢
6 [Term Loan from UCO Bank
MCLR + 0.10 secured against Punjab Govt. .
Guarantee & Default Escrow 20.11.2017 | 11/2020 | 53.509 16,66,66,664
Total Secured Loans {(A) 3.82.5644.871 4.59.34,10,696
8 |Unaecured
1 |Term Loan from GPF Trust 16.04.2010 | 31.03.2023 | 57.3120 21,95,48,616 21,95,48,616
. Total Unsecured Loans (B) 21,95,48,616 21,95,48,616
Total current n-nturil-_v;f long term borrowings (A + B} 4,04,51,93 437 4,81,29,59,312

Refer Note No, 16.1
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(Amount in Rupees)

;r. Particalara A Cod As at 3ist March, | As at 31st March,
0. 2018 2017
C |Others
1 |Creditors for Capital supplies /works 42 16,17,76,886 23,90,85,888
2 |Creditors for O&M supplies/ works 43 2,18,99,611 4,09,38,080
3 |Staff related liabilities - other than statutory dues 442 & 3 and
balance heads of 11,96,96,152 15,82,14,827
444
Deposit & retention money from suppliers & contractors® 461 25,11,38,292 30,23,15,772
5 [Creditors for expenses 464 32,46,47,565 38,67,17,560
6 |Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - LIC, REC,
Comm. banks & PFC 46.7 19,23,16,780 16,11,94,895
7 |KCT- Payables to PSPCL 46.946 t0 46,952 13,80,18,344 47,70,24,581
8§ [Miscellaneous Liabilities 46910, 46,926 & 11,22,15,584 11,65,60,212
46,957
Total Others (C) 1,32,17,69,514 1,90,20,51,815
Grand Total (A + B+ (} 5,36,69,02,951 6,71,50,11,127
* This includes permanent earnest money deposits of Rs. 6,83,00,000 as at March 31, 2018 & Rs. 6,78,00,000 as at March 31,
2017 which is payable on demand.
Nate 21 : Other Corvent Liabilities {(Amount in Rupees)
& . Aan at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Na Pasticulars Account Code 2018 2017
3 for statutory dues - TDS, Service tax, VAT, GST | 46.923, 934, 935,
el 938,941,953 & 1,97,37,575 1,81,78,310
46,990 to 46,995
2 Lihities twwerds payment of NPS:
i for employees on deputation/secondment from PSPCL. 57.160, 161, 165 & 1,40,620 1,40,620
166
iijfer employees recruited by PSTCL 57.170,171,175 & 8,36,808 8,53414
176
3 |Liabilities towards GPF Trust 57.126 2,40,41,021 231,156,235
4 |Amount payable against Statutory dues recovered from 44,401, 403, 405, 69,12,367 75,93,660
employees. 406, 407, 427 & 428
Total 5,16,68,391 £,98,82,269
Note 22 : Provisions {(Amount in Rupees)
Sr. . As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
No. Particulars Account Code 2018 2017
1  [Provision for Gratuity 44.161 11,63,991 53,818
2 |Provision for Leave encashment 44,162 20,860,814 750,116
Total 32,54,805 8,03,034

Nate 221 : As per Ind AS-19 provision towards gratuity and leave encashment in respect of the employees directly recruited

by the company has been made during the year as per the valuation report of Actuary.

MNote 23 : Deferred Revenue

I?IZ. Particulars : Account Code Asat 3215;;4 arch, | Asat 321;;%1‘ <h,
1  |Consumer Contribution for creating fixed assets 55.1
Added during the year 45,55,44,629 -
Less : Depreciation on such assets during the year 2,36,42,290 -
Closing balance 43,15,02,339 -
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Tt,] PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

During FY 2017-18, total revenue of Rs. 1180.22 crores has been recognised based on the review of FY 2017-18
and true-up of FY 2016-17 as per taniff order issued by PSERC for FY 2018-19. This comprises of Rs. 1162.34
crores for transmission charges and Rs. 17.88 crores of SLDC charges from PSPCL.

I-‘ Note 24 : Revenue from Operations {Amount iri Rupees)
s Sr. . Account| For the year ended | For the year ended
! No. Particulars code | 3letMarch,2018 | 31stMarch, 2017

- 1 |Transmission Charges from PSPCL 61.831 11,62,34,00,000 12,14,53,00,000

it 2 |Transmission Charges from Open Access Customers 61.830 1,60,42,931 19,94,18,992
L 3 [Transmission Charges from others 61.833 - {14,56,00,000)
4 {SLDC Charges from PSPCL 61.832 17,88,00,000 19,91,00,000
B 5 |Operating charges from open access customers 62.810 -63,88,344 3,33,59,572
.w Total 11,82,46,31,275 12,43,15,78,564
l\l3 Note 24.1:

Note 25 : Other income {Amount in Rupees)
Sr. . Account| For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Particulars code 31st March, 2018 31st Marxch, 2017
_ 1 |Income from sale of scrap 62.3 1,00,94,245 75,04,777
- 2 lGammon:
i - sale of land 62.4 95,29412 -
- 3 -sale of other fixed assets 62.4 4,06,571 50,26,874
- 3 {bnoome from staff welfare activities 62.6 78,936 82,065
4 Rental for staff quarters 62.901 35,69,323 41,97,737
5 :Sale of tender forms 62,903 13,21,342 8,62,853
6 NOC charges from Open access customers 62,922 25,40,000 1,28,25,000
7 Credit balances written back :
- Sundry creditors 62.912 11,44,925 16,70,16,382
- Amount against Deposit/Contributory work 62.930 99,84,19,087 -
- Security deposits/EMD 62.930 5,85,68,239 -
Rebate on early payment to NRLDC 62.973 21,23,912 20,07,567
Income from Q&M of bays of PGCIL 62.974 5,51,97.000 5,75,81,000
10 |Miscellaneous Income Bal 62 9,62,77,523 4,06,72,662
Total {A) 1,23,92,70,515 29,77,76,917
11 |Interest received on refund of Income tax 62.211 1,91,64,327 1,37,46,337
12  |Provision withdrawn on unserviceable/ obsolete items 65.8 6,58,28,436 85,28,598
& losses under investigation ]
Total (B} 8,49,92,763 2,22,74,935
Total {A + B) 1,32,42,63,278 32,00,51,852

Note 25.1 : Sundry Credit balances written back

Amount of Rs. 99,84,19,087/- is on account of non-refundable and unclaimed credits lying under

deposit/contributory work (GH-47.305 & 47.309) written
on account of unclaimed security deposits/EMD (excluding

during the year.

Note 25.2 : Miscellaneous Income . )
Rs. 2,53,26,371/- on account of delayed delivery penalty etc. imposed on supplier/ contractor is included in the

total amount of Rs, 9,62,77,523/ -

back during the year. Amount of Rs. 5,85,68,239/- is
permanent earnest money deposif) written back

Qo°




PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORFORATION LIMITED

{Amount in Riirees)

I\S{: Particulars Account code For the year e;;;i;d 314t March,! For th;{ };i;,e;(g;d st
1 [felaries 75 et 79,99,68,676 80,49,56,757
2 |Expenses for engagement of manpower through 75.150 23,96,26,199 22,16,26,502
outsourcing agencies
3  |Overtime 752 4,65,95,354 4,21,56463
4 (Dearness Allowance 75.3 97,88,18,802 95,26,88,271
5 [Other Allowances 754 16,63,40,231 16,51,50,476
6 |Bonus 755 575,214 14,73,138
Total {A) 2,23,18,24,476 2,18,80,51,607
7  |Medical expenses reimbursement 75.641-655 1,02,51,851 1,67,84,345
8  [Leave Travel Assistance/Concession 75.612, 613 & 616 16,60324 12,94,443
9 Employee expenses towards:
i|NPS, CPF, PF, LWF i 4,14,73,690 3,65,53,878
i hN;los;eell;r;e;t:'s - P.F inspaction fees, solatium, 73,332,1 ?\;;,2 870, s 3838351
Total (B} 5,75,64,276 5,84,71,017
10 [Staff Welfare Expenses
| Blectricity Concession to Employees 75.761 1,68,07,931 1,68,92,219
ii[Staff Welfare Expenses Bal. 75.7 8,00,845 17,279,075
Tatal (C) 1,76,08,776 1,86,19,294
11  iTersuinal Benefils
ihere of Pension, Gratuity & Medical Bal. 75.8 2,58,71,40,562 2,32,30,08,962
& Share of Leave Encashment 75.617 & 618 20,73,41,880 22,01,03,875
: | Totalshare §11.96% as per transfer scheme (D) 2,79,44,82,442 2,54,51,12,837
12 Provision for gratuity and Jeave encashment for 75.881 1,09,52,377 4,56,69,002
emniovess recraited by PRTCL
Total {E} 1,09,52,377 4,56,69,002
Grand TotaA+B+C+D+E) 5,11,25,32,347 4,85,39,23, 757
13  |Less: Employee costs capitalized Bal. 75.9 39,08,16,885 43,43,05,897
Total 759 39,08,16,885 43,43,09,897
Net Total 4,72,17,15,462 4,41,86,13,860
Note 26,1 : Details of provision for Gratuity and leave encashment .
S¢. |Particulars 2018 2017
Na.
1 [Amount debited (as per Trial Balance} 2,0642,137 4,65,79,271
2 iInd AS adjustment - Acturial Valuation - 6,80,563
3 |Transferred to OCI as income (Note No. 34) {96,59,760) {15,90,832)
£ |Balance at the end of the year 1,09.52.377 456,609,002

Note 26.2 : Employee benefits expenses - Eleciricity Concession to PSTCL Employees working on deputation from PSPCL

The employees on deputation from PSPCL are entitled to electricity concession under the provisions of the Transfer Scheme, 2010.
As agreed with PSPCL, the total concession availed by the employeas of both PSPCL and PSTCL have been apportionzd between
the two companies in the ratio of average number of employees during the period under report.

Note 26,3 : Employee benefits expenses - Terminal benefits
Some of the employees working in PSTCL covered under the Pension Scheme are on deputation/ secondment from PSPCL.
Pursuant to the Punjab Power Ssctor Reforms Transfer (First Amendrnent) Scheme 2012, the Terminal Benafit Trust in respect of
pension, gratuity and leave encashment shall be progressively funded by Powercom and Transco respectively, in the ratio of 88.64
: 11,36, aver a period of 15 financial years commencing from 1st April, 2014, PSERC is not allowing progressive funding to PSTCL
on the ground that the tarif regulations of PSERC provides for payment of terminal liabilities on the principle of "Fay as you go*
basis. Therefore, the amount of £5.2,79,44,82,442/- being 11.36% of tokl amount as intimated by PSPCL has been taken into
account being the amount paid during the year and no provision has been made for progressive funding as per Punjab Power-

Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendrment) Scheme 2012,
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Note 27 : Finance Costs {Amowunt i Rupees)
Sr. . Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Particulars code 318t Mﬁxch, 2018 | 31st szch, 2017

Interest on Loans from :

1 |Life Insurance Corporation 78.501 1,94,72,816 4,46,59,011
2 |Rural Electrification Corporation 78.531 3,42,05,03,086 3,84,09,13,134
3 |NABARD 78.541 21,08,93,013 18,08,59,347
4 [Commercial Banks 78.551 42,95,53,392 47.54,38,106
5 [PFC 78.582 46,95,69,347 12,11,23,289
6 [PSPCL 78.596 52,61,57,568 53,07,81,551
7 {Short Term borrowings 78.700 20,70,35,680 27,92,12,475
8 |[GPFTrust 78.852 9.45,76,247 11,55,92,922
Total {A) 5,38,67,61,149 5,58,85,79,835

Other interest & finance charges:
9 |Guarantee charges 78.884 5,00,00,001 10,00,00,000
10 |Miscellaneous interest/finance charges Bal. 78 38,29,660 36,00.658
Total {B) 5,38,29,661 10,36,03,658
Total (A+B) 5,44,05,50,810 5,69,21,63,493
11  |Less : Inberest capitalized 78.9 39,75,59,007 61,81,87,295
Net Total 5,04,30,31,803 5,07.39,96,198

Note 27.1: The Company is regular in making the payment of Principal and Interest thereon to the Banks, Financial
Institutions & other lenders and has not defaulted debt servicing during the year.

Note 28 : Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment Expenses {Amount in Rupees)
Se. Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
Mo, Particulars Code 3ist M)ar.rch, 2018 | 31st Mz:ch, 2017
Depreciation on :
1 {Buaildings 77.120 4,92,48,019 4,22,30,295
2 [Civil Works 77.140 14,03,691 12,53,488
3 |Plant & Machinery 77.150 1,32,6543,107 1,30,97,64,037
4 |Lines & Cables 77.160 1,28,93,05,858 1,25,03,92,228
. 77.170 to
5 [Vehicles 77173 19,12,145 12,91,376
6 [Fumiture & Fixtures 77.180 22,79,140 20,91,686
7 |Office Equipment 77.190 79,90,909 95,75,266
8 |lmpairment loss 77.755 3,58,46,100 -
Total 2,71,45,28,969 2,61,66,18,376
9 |Less:{i) Depreciation capitalized 77.900 24,91,289 28,75,283
(ii} Depreciation on fixed assets created through 77.910 2,36,42,290 -
contribution work.
Net Total 2.68,83.,95,390 2,61,37,43,093
Note 29 : Repairs & Maintenance (Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
code 31st March, 2018 | 3ist March, 2017

Plant and Machinery
- On bays maintained by PGCIL 74.141 3,11,93,191 2,95,93,951
- Others Bal. 74.1 17,15,60,068 20,58,53,713
Buildings 742 1,37,97 489 1,26,57,037
Civil Works 74.3 52,36,404 66,15,305
Lines and cable net works 74.5 62,61,646 55,50,794
Vehicles 746 32,98,041 49,81,206
Furniture and Fixtures 747 3,33,858 63,126
Office Equipment ’ 74.8 321,970 2,63,852
Total 23,20,02,667 26,55,78,584
Less: R&M expenses capitalized Bal. 74.9 39,16,422 50,00,710
. Net Total 22,80,86,245 26,05,78,274




IRATION LIMITED

Note 30 : Administration & General Expenses (Amount in Rupees)
. For the year ended | For the year ended
) Farticulars Accomntcode |7 Mirch._. 2018 | 31st MZrch, 2017
1 Rent, Rates & Taxes including lease rental 76.101 & 102 1.53,10,616 1,34,96,664
2  |Insurance 76.104 & 106 4,99,157 2,86,029
3 [Telephone & Postage 76112 -116 54,57,600 59,51,870
4 {Legal Charges 76.121 32,49,854 42,46,630
5 1Audit Fees 76.122 26,06,360 27,68,214
6 |Consultancy/Technical Charges 76123 & 76,124 16,52,885 20,085,341
7 |Conveyance & Travel Charges 76.131-143 6,46,86,837 6,89,74,291
8 [Fees & Subscription 76.129 & 76.151 52,11,466 53,08,731
9 |Books & Periodicals 76.152 19,171 48,960
10 {Printing & Stationery 76.153 28,01,753 24,17,836
11 [Advertisement/Publicity expenses 76.155 & 76.183 7,29,292 26,80,815
12  |Electricity/ Water Charges 76.158 & 76.160 18,33,91,005 8,03,45917
13 |Expenses on Training 76.167 26,85,075 9,45,519
14 |Hospitality 76.180-181 & 76.189 4,04,663 5,28,470
15 |[Contingency Expenses 76.190 1,37,09,481 1,82,81,728
16 {Other expenses Bal. 76.1 19,20,814 17.23,881
- 17 |Material related expenses 76.2 2,16,19,602 2,10,62,137
13 Contribution made to PSTCL CSR Trust 76.3 22,20,825 -
Total 32,51,85456 23,10,73,033
19 /Less: A&G expenses capitalized 76.9 4,85,04,846 5,12,82,750
Net Total 27,96,80,610 17,97,95.283

Motz 301 : Administration & General Expenses - Details of remuneration to Statutory Auditors {excluding 5.Tax)

(Amount in Rupecs)

Sr. . For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Farticulars 31st Maxch, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
As an Auditor
i |Tax Audit Fee 90,000 90,000
fi |Statutory Audit Fees 3,50,000 3,00,000
iif |QOut of Pecket Expenses 71,130 67,804
Note 31 : ULDC Charges {Amount in Rupees)
Sr. . For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Particulars AccountCade | a0t \farch, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
1 JULDC Charges - SLDC own share 70.501 5,69,86,743 5,68,16,535
2 |ULDC Charges - BBMB share 70.502 2,57 88,640 1,58,46,004
3 |ULDC Charges - Central Sector share 70.503 - 33,14,822
4 |NRLDC fees and charges 70.504 2,45,54,205 2,33,45,069
Total 10,75,29 588 9,83,22,430
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Note 32 : Other Expenses/Debits (Amount in Rupees)

Sr. Particulars Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Code 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

1 |Provision for value of obsolete stores 79471 - 2,65,70,432

2 |Provision for losses under investigation 79.483 3,04,71,102 -

3  |Miscellaneous losses & write off Bal 79 1,82,148 1,66,85,846

Total 3,06,53,250 4,32,56,278

Note 32.1 : Miscellaneous losses & write off pertains to -

ii Rs. 57,680/ - written off on account of theft of material.

Note 33 : Tax Expense- Current tax

i Rs. 1,24,468/- on account of compensation paid to staff under The Employee's Compensation Act, 1923..

(Amount in Rupees})

St. Particulars Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
No. code 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
1 |Provision for income tax 81.110 - 1,02,63,800
2 |Short provision of income tax for the FY 2013-14 on 83.850 - 16,76,401
the basis of final assessment order
Total - 1,19,40,201
Note 34 : Other Comprehensive Income {Amount in Rupees)
i S Particulars Account | For the year ended | For the year ended
- No. code | 31stMarch, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
1 [tems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
-Remeasurement of Acturial 75.881 {96,89,760) {15,90,832)
Total {96,89,760) (15,90,832)

{
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PUNJAR STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

35 Dinclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS)-37 "Provisions, Coatingent Lizbilities and Contingent Asgeta”

{a) Provisions {Amount in Rupees)
1\51:. Particulars ba?aiii?&g at Tﬂm dugig:f;‘;f d‘;‘;’:g&’fi’;‘; ba.!?:::n g at
Apiil 1, 2017 the year March 31, 2018
i |Provigion for Leave Encaglunent 7,04,64,224 - - 2,060,537 7.02,63,687
ii |Provision for Gratuity 2/41,61,080 2,0842,674 - - 450,008,764
iii [Provision for obsolete items (O&M) 31,24,944 - - 30,74,450 50,494
T [Provision for obsolete items (Capital) 5,78,65,564 . - 5,77,00,789 165075
v [Provision for ungervicable jtems (O&M) 38,62,539 - - 1041,212 28,21,327
vi |Provisicn for unservicable items {Capital) 58,73,025 - - 40,11,985 18,61,040
vii {Provision for losses under investigation 3,88,397 3,04,71,102 - - 3,08,59,499
viii {Provision: for difference in value of stock/spares 1,66,55,828 - 1,66,55,828 - “
'(l{:?)glw 18,23,95,911 5,13,13776 1,66,554828 6,60,28,973 15,1024,886

f5) Conti Liabifities:

(Amount in Rupees)

Partienlars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

20,94,386 27,96,4A74

Smpeive Mnttey cases 223,022 2,59,551
Fntey Tex & eales Tax 38,16,93,333|  38,16,93333
Fotal 384610741 384749358

{c} Contingent Assets: No contingent assets reported as on balance sheet date.

36 Capital Commibments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on eapital account i Rs, 58.46 Crores on March 31, 2018 and Rs. 166.62 Crores on

March 31, 2017,
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Fair vafue of financial aysets and financial Mabilities measured at amartized cost

{Amaunt in Rupecs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, A7
Partionlars Carylng Amomt Fair value Carrylng Amount Falr value
Financial Assets:
Non-tumrent
Amount recoverable from 2,285 232825 1,93,283 1,93,283
gtaff *
Other recofvables * 232,219,690 2.32,29,690 3,91,97A4%6 3,91,97 436
Current :
Sundry debtors 381582737 3,23,15,82.737 5,84,41,18,393 5.84,41,18,393
Caoh and cash equivalents GA2,16,531 9,42,16,531 15,286,092 15,28,092
Advences to Suppliers/ 3,56837 356,837 59,773 59,773
Comtractors {(O&M)
Amount recoverable from 89,23,236 89,293,236 89,65,732 B9,65,732
emplovees
Receivablea from PGCIL 5,02.82,805 5,02, 82805 5,96,33,707 5,98,33,707
Amount recoverable from 14,91 896 14,791,896 24,79,555 24,79,555
Suppliers
Total Pinancial Asscts 3,41,03,16,557 3A41,03,16,557 5,95,63,75,971 5,95,63,75,971
Financial Tiabilities:
Non-current:
Long term borrowings i 44.96,79.62.3071 um.m,sl,ma] 43.&2.12.25,29?| 43,77,24,06,016
Cmywead:
‘Boarowings 1,00,64,66, 226 1,00),64,66,226 2,08,80,94,943 2,08,80,94,943
Crocom  for  Capial 16,17,76,886 16,17,76,886 23,%).85,888 23,90,85, 588,
S
CwnBBove for swpoly  off 2,18,99,611 2,18,95,611 4,09,38,080 4,019,38,080;
detemind - O8I
Hlopoodt & FeiTraion 25,11,38,292 511,368,292 32,23,15,772, 32,23,15,772]
sy Eoen pupplecs &
e o)
¥ kipditines, et exprnoy 32ACATBES 32.46,47,865 38,67,17,560; 38,67,17,560)
{501~ Puyellies o PSPCL 13,80,18,344 13,80,18,344 47,70,24,581 47,70,24.581
[ Cwswnt mataxRy of koty 4,04,51,93,437 4,04.51,93437 4,91,29,59,512 4,81,29,59,312
o I
mircrst accroed but not 19,23,16,780 19,23,16,780 16,11,94,895 16,11,94,895
due on bomowings LIC
b,
Miscelleneons liabilities 11,22,15.584 11,22,15,584 11,65,60,212 11,65,60,212
Stalf related linbilitics 11,96,5%,152 11,96,96,152 15,82,14,827 15,82,14,827
Total 51,31,13,31,484 51,26,54,50,271 52,62,43,34,367 52,57,55,12,086

*“As no recovery period/ schedule is defined for these recoveries, So no discounting has been done in respect of amount
recoverable from staff and other receivables reflected under non current financial asstes.
(i) The carrying amount of current financial instruments such as trade receivables, other assets, cash and cash equivalents and
other liabilitfes are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
(i) The carrying amount of non-current financial Habilities i.e. long term borrowings except loan from PSPCL {11KV-VCB)
which is interest free, are financed at competetive interest rate. Hence carrying value are considered to be the same as their

fair values.

(iii) Please refer Note 16.3 for discounting of PSPCL (11KV - VCB) loan,
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% Disclosures In reapect of Ind AS 107 - Flnanciaf Instruments
Financial frstrumenta by Categost
{a) The carrying value end fair vahie of finencis] instruments by categories far the year ended JLEIZNS,

(Amount in Rupees }

Particulars Pinanclal azsals/ Pinpazzdn} aocomtaf Amortized eost Total Falr valuee
‘Total carrylng velug as | Uabllitlen at FVTPL |  UnbiRiien ot fadr | a9 at March 31, 2018 |as at March 31, 2096
st March 31,2018 | as 2f March 31, 2016 | valos throogh OC1
28 ut Mareh 31, 2018
flnancls] Assgts:
Nen-currents
Amount recoverable from 2,32,825 - - 23283 232825
ataff
Other receivables 2,32,79,650 - - 23229650 23219690
Carrent :
Sundry debtor 3,29,15,82,737 - - 3,23,1582.737 3,23,1582,737
Ceah and cash equivaients 9,42,16,531 - - 9,42,16,531 9,42,16,531
Advances to  Suppliers/ 3,56,837 . - 356837 356,837
Contractors (OEM)
Amount recoverable from 89,23,236 - - §9,23,236 £9,23,235
emplovesn
Roceivables from PGCIL 502,892,805 - - 5,02,82.805 5,02,82.805
Adngant recoverable from 14,91,896 - - 14,91,5% 14,971,885
Suprpliera
Total 3,£1,03,16,557 - - 3/41,03,16 557 3410316557
Plmancla] Lialiiities:
Nzz-corrests
[lang erm bocrowings | 44,53,79,62.307 - - [ 44,93,79,62307 | 44892081094
I
Sovecuriigs 1,00,64,66,225 - - 1,00,64,66,226 100,666,226
ComBwen for Copita) 16,17,76,685 - - 16,17,76 885 16,17,76,885
eimoend vonrin

Ldinms B ®pply  of 218,599,611 - . 218,99511 21899611
B R Ot |
Plepeelt &  Teiention| 25,11,38292 - - 25,11,38,.292 251138292
ey fress sopplien &
e toery
CemdBian for expemises 324547865 - - 324647 865 3246478565
FCT- Fayebies to PSECL 13,50,18,344 - - 13,80,18,344 13,80,18,344
Cooend matazity of long 4,04,51,93,457 - - 4,04,51,93,407 4,04,51,93437
torm lnena
Interest eccrued tnib not 19,23,16,780 - - 19,23,16,760 19,23,16,780
dne on borrowings LI(]
[
Miscellansous Habilitizg 11,22,15,584 - - 11,22,15,584 11,22,15,584
Staff related abilitles 11,95,96,152 - - 11,96,96,152 11,96,95,152
Total 51,3113, 51,484 - - 51,3113 31484 51,265450,271
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Qm&w
h () The carrying valire and fair value of financial instruments by categaries for the year ended 31.03.2017. (Amcunt in Rupees )
Particulars Total carrying value Financial adsetn/ Einpncial Amortized cost Total falr value
- as at March 31, 2017 labilitles at FVTPL | asseta/liabiidties at | as af March 31, 2017 {as at March 1, 2017
as at Mareh 31, 2017 | Inir vabue Guough
o
as at March 33, 2017
Financial Asseta:
Non-cigrent:
Amount recoverable from 1,943,283 - - 1,93,283 1,593,283
- iy Other receivables 3,91,97,436 - - 3,91,97436 3,91,57436
’ Current :
Sundry debtors 58441,18,393 - - 5,84,41,18,393 5,84,41,18.393
Cash and cash equivalenty 15.28,092 - - 15,2802 15,28,092
Advances lo Suppliens/ 59,773 - B 59,773 59,773
Contragtogs (OEM)
" il Amount recoverable from 89,65,732 - - 89,65,732 89,65,732
employeey —
Receivables from PGCIL 5,98,33,707 - - 5.98.33,707 5,98,33,707
Amount recoverable from 24,79,555 - - 24,79.555 24,79,555
Suppliers
Total 5,95,63,75,971 - - 5,95,63,75,971 5,95,63,75,971
Financial Usbilities: -
Noo-corrent
Long kerm booowigs | 43,82,12,28,297 - - £3,8212.28,297 ] 43,77,24,06,016
bt Ot
Borzowrgs 2,08,80,54,943 - - 2,08,80,94,%43 2,08,80,94,5423
- [Fadiors kx| Capital Z3,90,85,558 - - 23,00,85,808 23,50,65 868
et
| Cmclilns for  mepply  of] 4,03,38,080 - - 4,09,38,080 4,09,38,080
| Mdevind - OdS .
Deposit & ' 32,23,15772 - - N.A315772 R.2215772
money from suppliers &
o ractors
Creditors for expenses 38,67,17, 560 - - 38,67,17,560 38,67,17 560
1CT- Payables to PSPCL A7,70,24,581 - - 47,70,24,561 47,7024, 581
Current maturity of long 4,81,29.59912 - - 4,81,2959,312 4,81,29,59.312
term loana
Interest accrued but not 16,11,94,855 - - 16,11,94,895 16,11,%4,895
due on boxowings TIC
-~ ot
Miscellaneaus linbilities 11,65,60,212 - - 11,65,60.212 11,6560 212
_ ~ Staff relnted linbilities 158214827 - - 1582148 15821482
Total 53.62,43,34,367 - - 52,62,43,24,367 | 52,57,5512,086




FUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORFORATION LIMITED

Fair Value Hisrarchy
Levei 1 - Level 1 Mesarchy includes Snencla? fnatruments messured using quoted prices {mradfusted) fa active markets,

Level 2 - Level 2 hisrarchy inclndes financinl instruments messured using inputs other than qeoted prices included within Lovel 1 that are obacrvable for the azsat
or liability, either directly (Le, o5 prices) or indirectly {Le. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Level 3 Merarchy includes Anancial instruments measured using inputs that are not based on observable market date {uniobservabls inputs).

The following table present fair velue hierarchy of essets and lisbilitien meastured at fair volue

{Amonnt in Rupees )
Fartlewlars ! March 31, 28 March 31, 2017

Financls] Lishiiitlen ot falr Value : Loan from PSPCL (QIXKV_VCD)
Levell B .
Level2 - .
Level 3 J00,47,685 2,71,06,617
Tetal 30047655 271,806,617
Valuaton Techrdgue and key inputs DF DCF
Significant unobservable inputs Intereat rate of simdlar loan {i¢, 10.85%) Inlerest rate of similar joan (Le. 10.85%)

* Interest free foan received from PSPCL. Loan is shown at its fair valtee and remaining awount apeared in Deferred Income under non current Exbilitizs veing (DCF) Valuation
techmique and key inputs.

Financial riak management

Financial tisk fartors
The Company's activities expose it to & variety of financial riske: market risk, credit sisk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary focus in to foresea the

unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potentisl adverse effects on ita financial pecformance,

Risk Exposure arlaing from Measurement Remarks

Market risk- Interest rate  [Long term borrowings at variable rate of Sensitivity analysla  [The Company hes not taken any measure to aveld risk arlsing

interest from intercst rate. Since campany is able to obtain frence at
competitive interest rate

Credit risk Ceah ard cosh cquivalent, trade receivables,  jAgeing analysis Mgjority of recelvable are from Government undertaking. They
financial instruments. Credit rating ere unsecured but considered good,

LigridRly riak Borrowings end other linbilitiea Rolling cash i IMaintaining edequate cash and cash equivalent

forecnnts
Bl Biak

Eestmere? pofe elnlc

Teer compmny’s m2ein interest rete viek arise from long term borrowings with varisble rates, which expose the company to ceah flow &
b d in INR currency daring Merch 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

&
TS T

rate risk Compeny’s

Tiee exprozure of cespeny's bormowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

(Amounl it Reipees)

Particulars Tvizrch 33, 2018 Wiarch 31, 27
Variable rale bommowings 551,604,654 10,17.75,65.461
Fized yate borrowings 14.43,09,54.227 9.06,55,20,993
Tolal bovrawings 18,94,70,00.891 19,24.30,86 474

The abowe table covers all pariable rate borrowing except REC loan, The Company is quaiting loan in many trenches o it is very difficulifcumbersome and impracticalle for then
to figured out parisble portion atiached in the REC Loans as the same huos been received in various trencles,

Sensitivi
Profit or l?rsa io peneitive to higher/lower expense from borrewings g9 a result of change in indereat smten. The table summarizep the impact of incrense/decrease In
interest ratea on Frofit or loga,
{Anount in Rupees)
Impact on profit affer tax

Fasticulars March 31,2018 Rarch 32,2087
Interest rates- increase by 50 basis Pts (19,77,93,569) {20,91.69.147)
Inlerest rates- decrense by 50 basis Ptg 19,77,98,56% 20,491,69,147
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

Credit Rlak

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a fnancial lnss, The madmum expostre to the credit risk at the reporting
date is primarily from trade receivables and unbilled revenue, Accordingly, credit risk {from trade receivables has been separately evaluated from all other
financial aseets in the following paragraphs,

Trade Recelvables
The company has outstanding trade receivables amounting te Rs.323.16 Crores (March 31, 2018) and Rs,584.41 Crores {March 31, 2017). Trade receivables are
typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers.

Credit risk exposure
An analysis of age of trade receivables st each reporting date is summarized as follows:
{Aniorint in Rupees)
Particulars March 32,2018 March 31,2017
Grosas Amount Impairment Gross Amount Dnpalrment

Not due 1,15,39,49,999 - 79,89,94,000 -
Past due less than six montha 1,83,23,00492 - 4,79,97,92,147 .
Past due more than 3ix months 24,53,32,246 - 24,5332, 246 -
Total 323,158,737 - £,8441,18,393 -

Trude receivables are tmpaired when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the recovery analysis performed by the company for individual trede
receivables, The company considers that all the above financial assels that exe not impaired and past due for each reporting dates under review are of good credit
quality.

The company does not hold any collateral or other enhancements to cover ils credit risks associated with its financinl pasets.

Other financla) asacts
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. %,42,16,531/ - March 31, 2018 and Rs. 15,258,092/~ March 31, 2017. The cash and cash equivalents are held with

pablic sector banks and high rated private sector banks and do not have any eignificant credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

The cowrpeay’s principel sources of liquidity are cash and cash eqmvaicnu, cash generated from operations.

Commpaery whscrgres its Jiquidity needs by contin Iy ing cash i grd by maintaining adequate cash and cash equival
e ceinprared %0 xvrilable cxoh in order to determine nny shon!alls

Shoet Soon. Mxgoidity requirements consists mainty of sundry creditors, expense poyable, other payable arlsing during the normal course of business ay nt ench
meporting dabe. Company maintnins a sufficient balsnce in cash and cash equivalents to meet its short term liquidity requirements.

Net cash requi tn

Counpacry aseess ong term liquidity requirements on a periodical bagis and mannge them through intemal sccruals,
The table below provides detaila regarding the contractual maturities of non-derivative financiaf linbilities. The amouat disclosed in the table i the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The table includes both principal & interest cash flows.

(Amount in Rupees )
Particulsrs Less than 6 months 6 montha to ) year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2018
Short Term Borrowing 1,00,00,00,000 64,66,226 - - 1.00,64,66,226
Long Term Borrowing 2,35,27,71,889 1,79,24,21 548 18,79,18,88,461 26,14,30,73,846 48,9871 55,744
Security Deposit 249,22,390 22.42,15,502 - - 25,%3.38.292
Ctther financinl lability - 1.0,05,71,222 - - 1,07,05,73.22%
‘Totsl 3.27.96.M.279 2,09.36,71,895 18,79,48,38,461 25,14,30,73 846 51,31,13,31 44
As at March 31, 2007
Short Term Borzowing 1,00,00,00,000 1,08.80,94,43 - - 2.08.80,94,943
Long Term Borrowing 2,70,14,08.000 2.11,15,51,312 17,13,33,26,000 26,70,79,02,297 48,6341 97,609
Serurity Deposit 11,92.10,957 70,31,04,815 . N 32515772
Other financial lability - 1.57,97,35,043 - - 1.57,57,36,043
Total 3,82,06,18,957 4,96,24, 87,113 17,11,33.26,000 25,70,79,02,297 52624334367

“The nbove figures are showon at their originel carrying amount excluding Ind AS Adjustert
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Capltal Management
Risk Menagement:

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

1. Safeguerd their ability to continue es & going concern, so that they can continue to provide retumns for shareholders and benafits to other stakeholder, end

2. Maintzin an gptimal capital structure to reduce the coat of capital,

Conaistent with others in the Industzy, the Company monitors ¢apitel on the besis of following mtio:

Net Debt {Total Borrowings) divided by
Total ‘Equity’ as shown in the Balance Sheet

The debt —equity rakio of the Company s as follows :

(Amount it Rupees)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

Ap at March 31, 2017

Long term debt

48,93.72,74.531

48,58,53,65,328

Equity (including Capital Reserve}

28,64,80,98,111

28,60,77,65,666

Debt-Equity Ratio

1.71

150

Dlsclosere In respect of Iridlan Accounting Standard (Iod AS)-23 “Borcowing Conts”

Tha amourt caplialized with Property, Plant & Bquipment's as borrowing cost is Rs,39,75.59,007/ - & Rs. 61,81,87,295/- for the year ended March 31, 2013 & March 31, 2017

respectively a3 per policy of berrowlng coat 25 mentiened In significant accounting palicles.

DMecloanre In xespoct of Indlin Accomuting Stagdard (frd AS)-36 "Empalinent of ssets”
The company has assessed there s no Impairment of Fixed Assats belng classified under major heads such aa Land, Bullding. Plant and Machinery, Lincs & Cables. In case of
Agpzets not In use - Damaged /Unrepairable impairment loss of Rs. 3,58,46,100/- and Rs. NIL has recognised in March 2018 and March 2017 respectively,

Disclosure in respect of Indian Actounting standard {Ind AS) 17 "Leases”

As leszee
Operzting Lease

Fuipre eriniarn lezes payments ander nen-canceliable operating leases

{Ampund In Rupses)

Particulan

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Moo lenr thoon 1 jrer

63,4047

6340476

Lader thoen 1 year znd mot leter than 5 years

3.62.67.524

3,49,26,024

%mmsmn

20,30,12,099

21,06,84,075

Diziormre In reopect of Indizy Accounting standasd (In

ity Wise Disciorares.
L Informating about mafor costormen

AS)108: "Operating Segmeniz*
Beeerd om the "manepement approach® os defined in Ind AS 108, the Chisf Operating Decislon Maker {CODM) ovalizatea tha
prexfrmance sand allocaiza resowrces based on an anslysis of verious performance Indicators by business segments,

[Amonunt in Rupeest

Quetomer Narme

Segment 1

Bfarch 31, 2018

March 31, 2087

Punjalb State Power Corporation Limited

ll.snm,m.ﬁeﬂi

12.34,44,00,000

There is enly one customer which contribute more than 106% of entity revenue.

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

2. Gengraphical Information
Ravenue from external qustomens by focation of operations and Infotrmation about Il non current assets* by focation of assets are 28
follows:
{Amount in Rupees)
Revenne from extemal castomers Non carrent Assets®
Particalam
ddarch 31, 2018 Maxch 31, 2007 Harch 33, 2618 March 31, 2007
india (Punfab) 11824631, 275 12,43,15,78,564 76,18,08,28936 75,52,08,57,572
['}'aw F1.82/46,31,275 12,43,15,78 564 76,18,00,20,935 75.52,00,57,572

* Non-current assets for this purpose consists of Property, Plant & Bguipment and Capltal work In progress,

3. Revenue From stajor products

Revenue from external customers for each preduct and service are ss folfow:-

(Ameunt in Rupeaes)

Perticnlars March 31, 2115 Mareh 31, 2037
Punjab State Power Corporation Limiled 11,50,22,00,000 12,34,44.00,000
Total 11,£0,22,00,060 T2.3544.00,060
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46 Disclopure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 "Employee Benefits"
General description of various defined employee's benefits schemes are as under:
Employees recruited by PSTCL covered under the NPS scheme.

Gratuity and Leave Encashment
1 Summary of membership data

Pasticudars Gratuity Leave
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 ;
Numbers of emplovees [i77] 560 o 560
Total Monthly Salary (in lacs) 276.50 221.5§ 276.5() 221,58
Total Monthly Salary for leave availment (in lacs) - - 276,50 -
Average Past Gervice (Years) 3.28 3.82 328 382 .
Avarage Age (Years) 30,51 3L.00 30.51 31.00
Average remaining working Jife (Years) 2949 2251 2049 251
Leave balance considered on valuation date - - 68.976 -
'Weighted averare duration of PBO 2075 - 20.75 -
Averape accumulated leave per emplovees {davs) - - 74.81 87.00
2 Actuarial Assumgptions
a) Bconomic Assumptions
Particalara Gratuity Leave
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 blarch 31, 2018 March 31, 207
THscounting Rate TTE% 7.00% 7.71% 7.00%
Future Salary Iecyease 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 5.00% :
b) Demographic Assumptions f
Particulars Gratuity Leave i
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Retiremnent Age {Years) Class [V - 80 Yrs Class IV - 60 Yrs] Class [V - 60 Yrs Class IV - 60 Yrs
Others - 58 Yrs Cthers - 58 Yrs: Others - 58 Yrs| Others - 58 Yo
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disablity 100% of IALM (2006-08) 100% of IALM (2006-08}
Atirition at Ages Withdraw] Rate (%)) Withdraw] Rate (%)] _ Withdrawl Rate (%) Withdraw] Rate (%]
Less than 50 Years 1.00% 1.00% 1,00% 1.00%
Abcerve 50 Years 2.00% 2.00% 200% 200%
Leave - R 68,976 -
Leave avaiiment Rate - - 2.56% -
Leave lapse rate while in service - " E b
Leve lapse rate on exit - i - o
Leave encashment rate while in service - . N -
3 Actwarial Method: Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method
4 Scale of Benefits
Particalars Gratuity Leave
Salary for calculation of gratuity Last drawn qualifying salary Last drawn qualifying salary
Veating neriod 5 years of service NIL
Benefits on normal retirement As per Gratuity rules applicable to State | Madmum upto 300 days or Actual
Covernment Emplovess (CSR Rules) agcumwlation whichever is less
Benefit on early refirement/withdrawl/resignation  [5ame as normal retirement benett based aame as normal retirement benefit
on service upto the date of exit.
. . . Same as normal retirement benefit based
Benefits on death in service on service upto the date of death & no
Limit 20.00 lacs
Benefits 3
1. Yearly accrual - 22.81 days %
2. Maximum accumulation - 300 days &
3. Total Leave Days - 68,976 E
4, Availment in service (compensated absence) - Yes |
5. Leave encashment in service - No :
4. Leave encashment on exit - Yes !
7. Month to be treated as - 30 days %
5 Pla Liability -
- Gratuity: Leave %
Farticulars March 31,2006 | March 35, 3017 | March 31,2018 | Macch 31, 2017 .
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 4,50,03,764 2416L090 | 7,02,63,687 7,05.64,224 g
! z




PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORFORATION LIMITED

& Eervice Cost
. Gratmity Leave
Pasticulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Service cost 94 01.638 61.86.522 2.68.62.660 233,11.655
Past Service cost including curtailment Gains/ Lossas - - - -
(sains or Losses on Non routine settlaments - - - .
Totnal Service Cost 0£,61,635 61,866,822 2,68,62.660 233,711,655
7 Nei Interest Cost
. Gratuity Leave
Particulass Wiarch 31, 2018 Miarch 31, 2017 Tarch 51, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest cost on defined benefit obligaton 16.91,276 13,71,814 49,3246 X2 A8 TG
interest income on Plan Assels - - . -
{Net Intevest cost {Income) 16,91,276 10.71,814 49,32.495 2243770
8 Change in Benefit Obligation
. Gratuity Leave
Farticulars Wiach 31,2018 | Maxeh 31,0007 | March 31,206 |_ Maxeh 3%, 2007
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the 2,41,61,090 153,311,622 7,04,64.224 3,20,53,858
period
Acquisiton adjustrent - - - -
Iniprest cost 16,91,276 10,71,814 49,32,496 22,435,770
Service cost 94.61.638 61,806,822 2,65,62,660 2,3311,655
Past service cost including curtailment Gaing/Losses - - - -
Benefits Paid - - - .
Total Actuarial (Gain}/Loss on obligation ©6,89,760 15,890,832 (3,19,95,693) 1,28,54,941
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period £5003,764 2,41,61,090 7,02,63,687 7.04.64,224
2 Bifmrcation of Actearial Gain/Loss en oblipation
: Gratuity Leave
Pasticulara March o1, 2018 | March 31, 5007 | Mazch 31,3008, | March 31, 3017
Ackaaris! {Gain}/ Less on arising from change in - - - -
Tanoerachic Assumntion
Argreiad {Gain)/Loss on anising from change in 22,94,971 31,12,856 38,256,672 -
 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience 73,94, 769 {15,22,024) (3,56,22,365) -
- Adbmsbnyea?
Tednd Acimania] {Gain)fLess on obligation 95,89,760 1590632 {3,19,55,603} 1,28,54,541
16 Actuarizl Gein/Logs on Plan Asset
Gratuity Leave
Fasticulacs March 37,2018 _|_ Mardh 31,5017 | March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
Expected Interest Income - - - -
Actual Income on Plan Aszet - - - -
Actuarial Gain/ (Loas) for the year on Asset - - - -
11 Balance Sheet and related analysis
Particulars Grakuiby Leave
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
Pregent value of the obligation at end 4,50,03,764 2,41,61,090 7.02,63,687 70464224
Fair value of Plan Assets - - - -
Unfunded {Liability}/Provision in Balance Sheet {4,50,03,764) (2.41,61,090) {7,02,63,687) (7,04,60.224)
12 The amounts recognized in the income sfatement
- Gratuity Leave
Farticulars March 31, 2018 | March. 31, 3017 Tarch 51, 2018 March 54, 2017
Tatal service cost 94,61,638 £1,86,822 2,68,62,660 2,33,11,655
Met inferest cost 16,91,276 10,71,814 49,32, 496 22,43,770
Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognized in the period - - {3,19,95,643) 1,28,54 941
Expenges recognized in the income statement 1,11,52.914 72,58,636 =.00,537) 38410366
13 Cther Comprehensive Income (OCT)
, Gratulty Leave
Particulars March 31,9018 | Mardi 3L, 0017 | Mareh 33, 2018 | _ March 31, 2037
Net curmulative unrecopnized actuarial gain/ (loss) - - - -
opening
Actusrial gain/(loss) for the year on PRO (96,89,760) {15,90,632) - -
Actuarial peinf {loss) for the year on Asset - z - z
Unrecognized actuarial gain/ (loss) at the end of the (96,69,760) {15,50,832) -
year .

e
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

Change in Plan Assets
_— Gratuify Leave
Pasticulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 Macch 31, 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period " ' - -
Actual return on plan assels - - - .
Emplover contribution - . - .
Benefits paid - - - -
Fair value of plan assels at the end of Ihe period - - - .
Major categories of plan assels {as percenlage of total plan assets)
Gratuity Leave
Particulars Mareh 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Covernment of India Securities - - - .
ICtate Government Securities - - - -
Hizh Craality Corporate Bonds - B - -
Equity Shares of Listed Companies - - - -
Property - - - -
Funds managed by Insurer - - - “
Bank Balance - . - N
Total - - - .
Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Gratuity Leave
Particulars Rarch 31,2008 | March 31,2017 | March 51,2038 | March 31, 2017
Net defined benefit linbility at the beginning of the 241,61,090 15311622 7,04,64,224 3,20,53,858
period Y
Acguisition adjustment - - - -
Total Service cost 94,61,638 61,856,822 2.68,62,660 2.33,11,655
Net Interest cost (income) 16,981,376 10,71,814 19,532,496 243,770
Re - maasurements 96,89,760 15,90,832 {3,19,95,693) 1,28,54. 541
Coriribution paid 1o the Fund - N - T
Senefit paid directly by the enterprise - - - -
et defined benefit Hability at the end of the period 4,50,03,764 241,561,080 7,02,63,687 7.04,64,.224 |
Bifmreation of PBO at the end of the year in current and non-current
: Gratuity Leave
Fasticulars March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current liability (Amount due within one year) 11,653,991 53,518 20,90,814 750116
Non current liability {Amount due over one year) 4,38,39,773 241,07,272 6,81,72.873 6,97,14,108
Total PBO at the end of the year 4,50,03,764 2,41,61,090 7,04.63,687 704,604,224
Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period
Particulars Gratuity Leave
Service cost 1,30,77,670 1,71,02,593
Net interest cost 34,69,790 54,17,330
Expected expenses for the next annual reporting 1,45,47,460 2,259,923
[period
Senstivity Analysis of the defined benefifs obligation
Farticulars Cratuity Leave
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a)} Impact of the Change in discount rate
Prasent value of obligation at the end of the period 4.50,03,764 2.41,61,0%) 702,63 687 70464224
(i} Impact due to increase of 1% {74,18 464} {35,31,702) (1,45,19,254} {86,02,560)
{ii) Impact due to decreaseof 1% 83,01 812 44,15,908 1,12,64416 1,05,04,007
b) Impact of the Change in salary increase
Present vatue of obligation at the end of the period 4,50,03,764 2.41,61,09%) 7,02,63,687 7,04,64,224
{f} lmpact due to increase of 1% 84,15,321 43,90,474 1,14.24,302 1,04,31,955
(i) Impact due to decrease of 1% {75,52,105) {34,76,53%} {1,47,46,074} {84,37,142
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FPUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS})-33 "Earnings Per Share(EPS)"

i) Basic EPS

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the entity
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

{Amount in Rupees)

Far the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the company 5:00,02,205 493,809,799
Earnings used in calculation of basic earnings per share (4) 5,00,02,205 4,53,89,7590
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 60,58,83,465 60,58,83,465
basic earnings per share {B)

Basic EPS (A/B) 0.08 0.08
ii} Diluted EPS

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the entity (after
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

{Amount in Rupees)

For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 51, 2017

Profit (foss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the company 5,00,02,205 4,93,89,799
Earnings uced in calculation of basic earnings per share 5,00,02,205 4,93,89,759
Profit 2ifribatable to equity holders of the owner adjusted for the 5,00,02,205 4,03 89,709
effect of dilution {A)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of 60,58,83465 60,58,83,465
basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of 60,58,83 465 60,58,83,465
dilution (B)

0.08 0.08

Diluted EPS (A/B)

Assets hypothecated as security

The carrying amount of assets hypothecated as security for current & non current borrowings are:

{Amount in Rupezs)

Particulars For the year ended {For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cuerent
Financial Agpels
First Charge (Hypothecation) 3,40,55,15,053 6,02,40,31,255
Non-Financial Assels
Hypothecation - -
Total Current aesets 3,40,55,15,053 6,02,40,31,255
Non Current
Hypothecation 35,56,34,12,875 36,25,69,11,800
Total Non Current assets 35,56,34,12,875 36,25,69,11,800
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50 In pursuance to memo no. 01/15/2010-EB(PR)/396 dated 29.11.2011 from Department of Power,
Government of Punjab, Chandigarh, certain units of PSTCL were ordered to be transferred to PSPCL
on account of transfer of 66 XV works to PSPCL. However, certain balances which are un-identified
on account of either opening balances or non-availability of details thereof have been kept on "as is
where is basis" and these will be transferred to PSPCL in future when identified.

51 There are some unidentifiable receivables and payables which pertain to erstwhile PSEB period and
are very old which are being examined in detail and will be reconciled in due course of time for
effecting the required corrections, adjustments and set offs as the case may be.

52 Some of the assets as allocated to the Company, vide Notification dated 24.12.2012 by the Govt. of
Punjab, are being utilized by Punjab State Power Corporation Ltd. (PSPCL). Similarly, the
Company is also using some of the assets of PSPCL. The accounting of rentals payable/receivable
to/from PSPCL has not been made in the accounts of Company in the absence of any agreement
between the two Companies for use of such assets.

53 As per Ind AS-12, the deferred tax assets (the deferred tax benefits) should be recognized only when
there is a certainty for the income generation in future which can be utilized for setting off the said
deferred tax assets. Considering the accumulated unabsorbed losses, it is not probable that the same
can be set off with the future income within the allowable period specified in the Income Tax Act
1961. In view of the said uncertainty, it is considered prudent not to recognize the deferred tax asset
in the current financial year 2017-18.

54 The balances of trade receivables, advances to suppliers/contractors, loans & advances and other
parties shown in the accounts as at 31,03.2018 are subject to confirmation.

55 The balance under Inter Corporate Transaction (ICT) payable to PSPCL as shown in Note 20
amounting to Ks.13,80,18,344/- as on 31.03.2018 is subject to confirmation.

56 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Based on the information available with the company, there are no outstanding balances of parties
covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
i. Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year to Micro, Small & Medium enterprise; -
NIL
ii. Interest accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of the year to Micro, Small & Medium enterprise
for the current year; - NIL
iii. Amount of interest paid during the year along with the payment of principal amount made
beyond the appointed day; - NIL
iv. Amount of interest carried forward from last accounting year with interest for the current year on
such interest; - NIL

57 As per paragraph 49 of framework for preparation and presentation of financial statement and
Guidance Note on MAT credit issued by ICAL
"An asset is a resource controlled by the enterprise as a result of past events from which future
economic benefits are expected to flow to the enterprise”. For the purpose of consideration of the
probability of expected future economic benefits in respect of MAT credit, the fact that a company is
paying MAT and not the normal income tax, provides a prima facie evidence that normal income tax
Hability may not arise within the specified period to avail MAT credit. In view of this, MAT credit
should be recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Since as per income tax return
PSTCL has unabsorbed brought forward depreciation of 923.12 crores as on’March 31, 2017. Hence,
management has estimated that no future economic benefit from MA ill flow to the entity.
Hence, MAT credit is not recognised in the books of account. ’
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The books of account of Civil Works Division, Jalandhar include completed assets of Plant &
Machinery which has not been transferred to the respective P&M Divisions. Pending transfer of
completed assets which relates to erstwhile PSEB period, to the concerned P&M divisions,
depreciation on all such completed assets of Rs. 1,64,50,080/- in respect of Civil Work division
Jalandhar has been provided in the concerned construction division as charge to P&L account.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the

Corporation's financial statements are disclosed below. The Corporation intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standards:

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS (Revenue from Contracts with
Customers) which would be applicable to the Corporation for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st April 2018. This standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to report
useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Corporation is evaluaing the
requirements of the standard and its impact on its financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for unrealised losses:

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary
difference. Further more, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery
of some assets for more than their carrying amount. The corporation is evaluating the requirements
of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2018.

The previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped/merged for the purpose of
comparison with the current year's figures in the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and

Notes to accounts, wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajiv Goel & Assoriates
Chartered Accountants
FRIN 01110614

(Rohit Goel)
Partner

M.No 091756
Place: Patiala

Date:ftf.ﬁ.’?/‘fi%/
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(Er. Ajay Kumar Kapur}  (A. Venu Prasad)
Director/ Technical Chairman-cum-Managing

Director

(Vinod Bassal) (Jasvir Singh)
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